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While we manufacture our products in several facilities and maintain insurance covering our facilities, including business interruption
insurance, our manufacturing facilities could be materially damaged by natural disasters, such as floods, storms, tornadoes,
hurricanes and earthquakes, whether or not as a result of climate change, or by fire or other unexpected events such as adverse
weather conditions, acts of war, terrorism, protests, energy shortages and disruptions, pandemics or other public health crises or other
disruptions to our facilities, supply chain or our customers” facilities. We have experienced such losses in the past. We could incur
uninsured losses and liabilities arising from such events, including damage to our reputation, and suffer material losses in operational
capacity, which could have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition and results of operations. These types of
events could also affect our suppliers, installers, and customers, which could have a material adverse impact on our business.
Disruptions to or failures of information technology...... manage payroll and human resources information. The market IT systems
we use may be disrupted......, results of operations and the trading price of our common stock has been volatile and the value of
your investment may decline. The market price of our common stock has been volatile in the past and may continue to be
volatile going forward. Such volatility may cause precipitous drops in the price of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global
Select Market and may cause your investment in our common stock to lose significant value. As a general matter, market
price volatility has had a significant effect on the market values of securities issued by many companies for reasons unrelated
to their operating performance. We cannot predict the market price for our common stock going forward . Sales of our
principal products have been and may continue to be affected by adverse economic cycles, and effects in the new construction market
and renovation market. Sales of our principal products are related to the renovation and construction of commercial and institutional
buildings. This activity is cyclical and has been affected by the strength of a country’ s or region’ s general economy, prevailing
interest rates and other factors , including increased office vacancies caused by lingering effects from the COVID- 19 pandemic
and hybrid work schedules, that lead to cost control measures or reduction in the use of space by businesses and other users of
commercial or institutional space. In addition, the effects of cyclicality and other factors affecting the corporate office segment have
traditionally tended to be more pronounced than the effects on other market segments. Historically, we have generated more sales in
the corporate office market segment than in any other market segment. The effects of cyclicality and other factors on the new
construction segment of the market have also tended in the past to be more pronounced than the effects on the renovation segment.
These effects may recur and eould be more pronounced if global economlc condltlons do not 1mprove or are weakened by negatlve
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disasters, like saeh-as-fires;* power loss;® software “ bugs ”,hardware defects or human error;and ¢ hacking,computer viruses,denial
of service attacks,malware,ransomware,phishing scams,compromised or irretrievable backups or other cyber- attacks.Any of these
events which deny us use of vital IT systems may seriously disrupt our normal business operations.These disruptions may lead to
production or shipping stoppages,which may in turn lead to material revenue loss and reputational harm.Despite security designs and
internal controls,the IT systems we use have in the past experienced,and may in the future become subject to,attempts by
unauthorized third parties to access and exfiltrate confidential information,manipulate data or disrupt our operations.In November
2022,we discovered a cybersecurity attack,perpetrated by unauthorized third parties,affecting our IT systems (the “ Cyber Event ”).In
response,we promptly shut down certain systems,including shipping,inventory management and production systems,and engaged
forensic experts to evaluate the extent of the Cyber Event and its disruption to our operations.The investigation of the Cyber Event by
our forensic experts was completed during fiscal year 2023.In fiscal year 2022,in connection with the Cyber Event,our revenues were
adversely affected by approximately $ 8 million due to lost sales.Additionally,we incurred Cyber Event costs of approximately $ 5
million in fiscal year 2022 primarily due to idle plant costs,direct labor costs during the period our manufacturing facilities were idle
and third- party remediation costs.We have eyber-insurance and anticipate that a portion during2024;werecevered-$-5-6-mithienof
our financial losses related to the Cyber Event will ultimately be recovered by insurance .Following the Cyber Event,we
implemented measures to enhance our cybersecurity protections against,and reduce the potential of,any future cybersecurity
attack.We expect to incur ongoing costs to enhance cybersecurity with-the-geal-ef-and plan to take further steps to preventing—-
prevent unauthorized access to,or manipulation of,our systems and data.However,there is no guarantee that these enhancements and
steps will be adequate to mitigate future losses due to IT system disruptions,and we may incur significant expense in correcting and
recovering from future disruptions.To the extent our IT systems store sensitive data,including data related to customers,employees or
other parties,security breaches may expose us to fines and other liabilities,and reputational harm if such data is misappropriated.In
addition,as cybercriminals continue to become more sophisticated and numerous,the costs to defend and insure against cyberattacks
can be expected to rise.The impact of potential changes to environmental laws and regulations and industry standards regarding
climate change and other sustainability matters could lead to unforeseen disruptions to our business operations.Addressing the effects
of climate change has taken on increased importance throughout the world.The continued efforts to combat climate change could
include more restrictive federal,state,and foreign environmental laws and regulations,heightened industry standards,or other
mitigation measures that may have a material adverse effect on our global operations.These initiatives could,for example,increase the
cost of obtaining raw materials for production of our products,increase the cost of energy for our manufacturing processes,negatively
impact our supply chain and capital expenditures,or increase our administrative costs.In 2021,we established and publicly disclosed
targets and other commitments related to certain sustainability matters,including a goal to reduce our CO2 emissions across our
Company and supply chain by 2030.We also set a goal to become a carbon negative enterprise by 2040.If we are unable to



meet these targets or commitments on our projected timelines or at all,or if they are perceived negatively,including the
perception that they are not sufficiently robust or,conversely,are too costly,our reputation as well as our relationships with
investors,customers and other stakeholders could be harmed,which could in turn adversely impact our business,results of
operations and the trading Health crisis events, such as epidemics or pandemics, have adversely impacted, and may continue to
impact, the economy and disrupt our operations and supply chains, which may have an adverse effect on our results of operations.
Health crisis events, including epidemics or pandemics, such as COVID- 19, have impacted areas where we operate and sell our
products and could have additional impacts on economrc growth supply chalns and forergn currency exchange rates —Reeeﬁt-l-y—

38 A 8 RE aFS &t . A public health emergency in the future could have a materlal
adverse effect on our ability to operate our results of operations, financial condition, and demand for our products. International Risk
Factors Our substantial international operations are subject to various political, economic and other uncertainties that could adversely
affect our business results, including foreign currency fluctuations, restrictive taxation, custom duties, tariffs, border closings or other
adverse government regulations. We have substantial international operations and intend to continue to pursue and commit resources
to growth opportunities beyond the United States. Outside of the United States, we maintain manufacturing facilities in the
Netherlands, the United Kingdom, China, Australia and Germany, in addition to product showrooms or design studios in England,
France, Germany, Spain, the Netherlands, India, Australia, United Arab Emirates, Singapore, Hong Kong, China and elsewhere. In
2024 and 2023 sapproximately 43 % and 46 % of our net sales , respectively, and a significant portion of our production were
outside the United States, primarily in Europe and Asia- Pacific. International operations carry certain risks and associated costs,
such as: the complexities and expense of administering a business abroad; complications in compliance with, and unexpected
changes in, legal and regulatory restrictions or requirements; foreign laws, international import and export legislation; trading and
investment policies; economic and political instability in the global markets; foreign currency fluctuations; exchange controls;
increased nationalism and protectionism; crime and social instability; tariffs and other trade barriers; difficulties in collecting
accounts receivable; potential adverse tax consequences and increasing tax complexity or changes in tax law associated with
operating in multiple tax jurisdictions; uncertainties of laws and enforcement relating to intellectual property and privacy rights;
difficulty in managing a geographically dispersed workforce in compliance with diverse local laws and customs, including health and
safety regulations and wage and hour laws; potential governmental expropriation (especially in countries with undemocratic or
authoritarian ruling parties); and other factors depending upon the jurisdiction involved. There can be no assurance that we will not
experience these risks in the future. In addition, due to our global operations, we are subject to many laws governing international
relations and international operations, including laws that prohibit improper payments to government officials and commercial
customers and that restrict where we can do business, what information or products we can import and export to and from certain
countries and what information we can provide to a non- U. S. government. These laws include but are not limited to the U. S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“ FCPA ), the U. K. Bribery Act 2010, the Mexican National Anticorruption System (Sistema
Nacional Anticorrupcion, or “ SNA ), the U. S. Export Administration Act and U. S. and international economic sanctions and
money laundering regulations. We have internal policies and procedures relating to compliance with such regulations; however, there
is a risk that such policies and procedures will not always protect us from the improper acts of employees, agents, business partners
or representatives, particularly in the case of recently acquired operations that may not have significant training in applicable
compliance policies and procedures. Violations of these laws, which are complex, may result in criminal penalties, sanctions and / or
fines that could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and reputation. In addition, we
are subject to antitrust laws in various countries throughout the world. Changes in these laws or their interpretation, administration or
enforcement may occur over time. Any such changes may limit our future acquisitions, divestitures or operations. Finally, we may
not be aware of all the factors that may affect our business in foreign jurisdictions. The risks outlined above, and others specific to
certain jurisdictions that we may not be aware of, could adversely and materially affect our business and results. The eenfliet
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in the Middle East fsrael-—Hamas-war-could adversely affect our business, results of
operations and financial position. Given the nature of our business and our global operations, political, economic, and other
conditions in foreign countries and regions, including geopolitical risks arising from the eenfliet-conflicts between Russia and
Ukraine and the Middle East fsrael—Hamas-war-, may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial position.
Historically, Russia was a key supplier of natural gas, oil, and other raw materials to European countries. We have substantial
manufacturing operations in Europe (including Germany, the Netherlands, and the United Kingdom), and we have key suppliers in
Europe, which rely upon natural gas, oil, and other raw materials to operate. Our sole rubber flooring plant is in Germany, and our
primary European carpet tile plant is in the Netherlands. Any disruption in the supply of natural gas, oil, or other raw materials from
Russia to Europe could adversely affect our ability to operate our business, our results of operations and our financial position, or
adversely affect the ability of our key suppliers to meet our raw material requirements. In particular, the-earrently-reduced Russian
exports of natural gas and oil to Europe may materially impede our European manufacturing operations and may result in higher
energy costs to operate our facilities. Our customers’ businesses, results of operations and financial positions also could be adversely
impacted by the conflict in Ukraine, which could reduce their spending on our products. While we permanently closed our operations
in Russia in the third quarter of 2022, the effects of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine on us as well as the global economy
cannot be predicted. The eenflet-conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in the Middle East Israel-—Hamas-war-arc ongoing and
the duration of the conflict and war are uncertain. We cannot predict the outcome of the conflict and war or the impact on the broader
region, as the conflict and war and related government actions are evolving and are beyond our control. To the extent the eenfliet
conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in the Middle East Israel-—Hamaswar-adversely affects our business, the conflict and war
may also have the effect of heightening other risks disclosed in our Annual Report, any of which could materially and adversely
affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Such risks include, but are not limited to, adverse effects on
macroeconomic conditions, including inflation and reduced corporate and consumer spending; disruptions to our global technology
infrastructure, including through cyberattack, ransom attack, or cyber- intrusion; adverse changes in international trade policies and
relations; our ability to maintain or increase our prices, including fuel surcharges in response to rising fuel costs; further disruptions in



global supply chains; terrorist activities targeting business infrastructure; our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations; and
constraints, volatility, or disruption in the capital markets. Other potential consequences of the ongoing conflict and war include or
may include government sanctions, embargoes, unstable energy markets , tariff wars , regional instability, geopolitical shifts,
potential retaliatory action by the governments involved in the conflict and war against companies or other countries, and increased
tensions between the involved governments and the United States or other countries in which we operate. Fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates have had, and could continue to have, an adverse impact on our financial condition and results of operations.
Changes in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U. S. dollar have adversely affected our results of operations and financial
position and could continue to do so. In recent periods, as the value of the U. S. dollar has strengthened in comparison to certain
foreign currencies — particularly in our EAAA segment and the impact of the Euro on our European operations — our reported
revenues have been negatively impacted. As approximately 46-43 % of our revenue is denominated in foreign currencies, these
exchange rate fluctuations have had, and could continue to have, a significant adverse impact on our financial results. The uncertainty
surrounding the ongoing implementation and effect of the U. K.” s exit from the European Union, and related negative developments
in the European Union, could adversely affect our business, results of operations or financial condition. In 2016, voters in the U. K.
approved an exit from the European Union via a referendum (commonly referred to as “ Brexit ””). The U. K. ceased to be a member
of the European Union on January 31, 2020. In December 2020, the U. K. and the European Union agreed on a trade and cooperation
agreement. Because the agreement merely sets forth a framework in many respects and will require complex additional bilateral
negotiations between the U. K. and the European Union as both parties continue to work on the rules for implementation, significant
political and economic uncertainty remains about how the precise terms of the relationship between the parties will differ from the
terms before withdrawal. The uncertainty leading up to and following Brexit has had, and the ongoing implementation of Brexit may
continue to have, a negative impact on our business and demand for our products in Europe, and particularly in the U. K. Brexit
could adversely affect European or worldwide political, regulatory, economic or market conditions and could contribute to instability
in political institutions and regulatory agencies. Brexit could also have the effect of disrupting the free movement of goods, services,
and people between the U. K., the European Union and elsewhere. In addition, Brexit has had a detrimental effect, and could have
further detrimental effects, on the value of either or both of the Euro and the British Pound sterling, which could negatively impact
our business (principally from the translation of sales and earnings in those foreign currencies into our reporting currency of U. S.
dollars). Such a development could have other unpredictable adverse effects, including a material adverse effect on demand for office
space and our flooring products in the U. K. and in Europe if the U. K. exit leads to economic difficulties in Europe. Risk Factors
Related to our Indebtedness We have a substantial amount of debt, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations and our ability to meet our payment obligations under our debt. We have a substantial amount of debt and debt
service requirements. As of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , we had approximately $ 424-305 . -6 million of outstanding debt, and we
had $ 298-299 . 4-3 million of undrawn borrowing capacity under our Syndicated Credit Facility. This level of debt could have
significant consequences on our future operations, including: * making it more difficult for us to meet our payment and other
obligations under our outstanding debt; ¢ resulting in an event of default if we fail to comply with the financial and other restrictive
covenants contained in our debt agreements, which event of default could result in all of our debt becoming immediately due and
payable; ¢ reducing the availability of our cash flows to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or strategic
investments and other general corporate purposes, and limiting our ability to obtain additional financing for these purposes; *
subjecting us to the risk of increasing interest expense on variable rate indebtedness, including borrowings under our Syndicated
Credit Facility;  limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, and increasing our vulnerability to, changes in our business,
the industry in which we operate and the general economy; ¢ placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors
that have less debt or are less leveraged; ¢ limiting our ability to attract certain investors to purchase our common stock due to the
amount of debt we have outstanding; and ¢ limiting our ability to refinance our existing indebtedness as it matures . ® limiting our
ability to pay dividends or repurchase our shares . In addition, borrowings under our Syndicated Credit Facility have variable
interest rates, and therefore our interest expense will increase if the underlying market rates (upon which the variable interest rates are
based) increase. For information regarding the current variable interest rates of these borrowings and the potential impact on our
interest expense from hypothetical increases in short term interest rates, please see the discussion in Item 7A of this Report. Any of
the above- listed factors could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to
meet our payment obligations under our debt. Servicing our debt requires a significant amount of cash, and we may not have
sufficient cash flow from our operations to pay our indebtedness. Our ability to generate cash in order to make scheduled payments of
the principal of, to pay interest on or to refinance our indebtedness depends on our future performance, which is subject to economic,
financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. In addition, our ability to borrow funds in the
future to make payments on our debt will depend on the satisfaction of the covenants in our Syndicated Credit Facility and our other
financing agreements, including the indenture governing the Senior Notes, and other agreements we may enter into in the future.
Specifically, we will need to maintain certain financial ratios under our Syndicated Credit Facility. Our business may not continue to
generate sufficient cash flow from operations in the future and future borrowings may not be available to us under our existing
revolving credit facility or from other sources in an amount sufficient to service our indebtedness, including the Senior Notes, to
make necessary capital expenditures or to fund our other liquidity needs. If we are unable to generate cash from our operations or
through borrowings, we may be required to adopt one or more alternatives, such as selling assets, restructuring debt or obtaining
additional equity capital on terms that may be onerous or highly dilutive. Our ability to make payments on our indebtedness or
refinance our indebtedness will depend on the capital markets and our financial condition at such time, as well as the terms of our
financing agreements, including the Syndicated Credit Facility, and the indenture governing the Senior Notes. We may not be able to
engage in any of these activities or engage in these activities on desirable terms, which could result in a default on our debt
obligations. In addition, borrowings under our Syndicated Credit Facility have variable interest rates, and therefore our interest
expense will increase if the underlying market rates (upon which the variable interest rates are based) increase. We may incur
substantial additional indebtedness, which could further exacerbate the risks associated with our substantial indebtedness. Subject to
the restrictions in our Syndicated Credit Facility and in the indenture governing our Senior Notes, we and our subsidiaries may be



able to incur additional indebtedness in the future. Although our Syndicated Credit Facility and the indenture governing the Senior
Notes contain restrictions on the incurrence of additional debt, these restrictions are subject to a number of significant qualifications
and exceptions, including the ability, on a non- committed basis, for us to increase revolving commitments and / or term loans under
our Syndicated Credit Facility, and debt incurred in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. If new debt is added to
our and our subsidiaries’ existing debt levels, the related risks we now face would increase. Legal Risk Factors We face risks
associated with litigation and claims. We have been, and may in the future become, party to lawsuits including, without limitation,
actions and proceedings in the ordinary course of business, such as claims brought by our customers in connection with commercial
disputes, employment claims made by our current or former employees, or claims relating to intellectual property matters or
regulatory investigations and enforcement . Litigation might result in substantial costs and may divert management’ s attention and
resources, which may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. An unfavorable judgment against us
in any legal proceeding or claim could require us to pay monetary damages and, depending on the nature of the claim and
proceeding, may harm our reputation . [nsurance might not cover such claims, might not provide sufficient payments to cover all
the costs to resolve one or more such claims, and might not continue to be available on terms acceptable to us. In addition, an
unfavorable judgment in which the counterparty is awarded equitable relief, such as an injunction, could harm our business, results of
operations and financial condition. Please refer to Item 3, “ Legal Proceedings, ” within this Report for additional information related
to litigation and claims. ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS None. ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY Risk Management
Strategy Assess, Identify and Manage Material Risks from Cybersecurity Threats Interface has integrated cybersecurity risk
management into our broader enterprise risk management framework. This integration ensures that cybersecurity considerations are
an integral part of our entity- level risk assessment and decision- making process. Cybersecurity risk management is also a vital part
our IT incident management and disaster recovery policy that outlines a systematic approach of implementing and executing
strategies and procedures to enable the recovery and restoration of vital business functions and IT infrastructure following a
significant disruptive event. Engagement of Third Parties Interface engages a range of external experts in evaluating and testing our
cybersecurity risk management systems. These partnerships enable us to leverage specialized knowledge and insights, ensuring our
cybersecurity strategies and processes remain at the forefront of industry best practices. In the event of a cybersecurity incident, the
Company uses external experts to assist with an investigation of the incident, an evaluation of the extent to which the cybersecurity
event has impacted the Company’ s operations, financial condition, and IT infrastructure, and the recovery and restoration following
the incident. We evaluate the inherent risk associated with using external experts by conducting thorough security assessments before
engagement and perform ongoing monitoring to ensure compliance with our cybersecurity standards. Governance and Oversight The
Audit Committee has oversight responsibility for cybersecurity risk management. The Audit Committee is comprised of board
members with diverse experience and expertise to effectively oversee risk, although none of them are cybersecurity experts. Our
Chief Information Officer, in his capacity, regularly informs the Audit Committee (typically twice per year) and the full board
(typically once per year) on all aspects related to cybersecurity risks, as well as any remediation efforts in response to a cybersecurity
incident. Our IT systems face a myriad of cybersecurity threats, including, without limitation, hacking, computer viruses, denial of
service attacks, malware, ransomware, phishing scams, compromised or irretrievable backups, and other cyber attacks. Any of these
events which deny us use of vital IT systems may seriously disrupt our normal business operations and lead to production or shipping
stoppages, revenue loss, and reputational harm. To the extent our IT systems store sensitive data, including data related to customers,
employees or other parties, risks from cybersecurity threats may expose us to fines and other liabilities, and reputational harm if such
data is misappropriated. In addition, as cybercriminals continue to become more sophisticated and numerous, the costs to defend and
insure against cyberattacks can be expected to rise. On November 20, 2022, we discovered a cybersecurity attack, perpetrated by
unauthorized third parties, affecting our IT systems. In response to this Cyber Event, we notified law enforcement and took steps to
supplement existing security monitoring, including scanning and protective measures. The investigation of the Cyber Event was
completed during fiscal year 2023. A more detailed discussion of the Cyber Event can be found in Item 7 entitled “ Management’ s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations * of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. ITEM 2.
PROPERTIES We maintain our corporate headquarters in Atlanta, Georgia in approximately 42, 000 square feet of leased space. The
following table lists our principal manufacturing and distribution facilities and other material physical locations (some locations are
comprised of multiple buildings) by reportable segment, all of which we own except as otherwise noted: Location FloorSpace (Sq.
Ft.) AMSLaGrange, Georgia669, 145 LaGrange, Georgia (1) 250, 000 Union City, Georgia (1) 370, 000 West Point, Georgia250,
000 Salem, New Hampshire (1) 126, 766 EAAACraigavon, N. Ireland (1) 72, 200 Minto, Australia240, 000 Scherpenzeel,
Netherlands1, 250, 960 Weinheim, Germany (1) 834873 , +43-243 Taicang, China (1) 142, 500 (1) Leased. We maintain sales or
marketing offices in over 40 locations in 19 countries. Most of our sales and marketing locations are leased. We believe that our
manufacturing and distribution facilities and our marketing offices are sufficient for our present operations. We will continue,
however, to consider the desirability of establishing additional facilities and offices in other locations around the world as part of our
business strategy to meet global market demands. Substantially all of our owned properties in the United States are subject to
mortgages, which secure borrowings under our Syndicated Credit Facility. ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS From time to time, we
are a party to legal proceedings, whether arising in the ordinary course of business or otherwise. See Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K. ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES Not
applicable. PART II ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’ S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Global Select
Market under the symbol TILE. As of February +6-14 , 2024-2025 , we had 598-537 holders of record of our common stock. We
estimate that there are in excess of 11, 000 beneficial holders of our common stock. Although we have a history of paying
quarterly cash dividends on our common stock, Fature-future declaration and payment of dividends is at the discretion of our
Board, and depends upon, among other things, our investment policy and opportunities, results of operations, financial condition,
cash requirements, future prospects, and other factors that may be considered relevant by our Board at the time of its determination.
Such other factors include limitations contained in the agreement for our Syndicated Credit Facility and the indenture for our Senior
Notes, each of which specify conditions as to when any dividend payments may be made. As such, we may discontinue our dividend



payments in the future if our Board determines that a cessation of dividend payments is proper in light of the factors indicated above.
Stock Performance The following graph and table compare, for the period comprised of the Company’ s five preceding fiscal years
ended December 34-29 , 2623-2024 , the Company’ s total returns to shareholders (assuming all dividends were reinvested) with that
of (i) all companies listed on the Nasdaq Composite Index, and (ii) our previous self- determined peer group, and (iii) our new self-
determined peer group, assuming an initial investment of $ 100 in each on December 368-29 , 2648-2019 (the last day of the fiscal
year 2648-2019 ). In 2023-2024 . the Company updated its self- determined peer group to exclude KimbatHnternational- PGT
Innovations , Inc., SP Plus Corporation, and Glatfelter Corporation, which was-were acquired in 2623-2024 and no longer trades
- trade publicly ;-and also to incorporate other peer group changes to align with the peer group used to measure executive
compensation . Unifi, Inc. was removed because its smaller size no longer aligned with the peer group profile. American
Woodmark Corporation, Gibraltar Industries, Inc., Quanex Building Products Corporation, and Tredegar Corporation were
appropriate additions in terms of size and industry, while also enhancing the group’ s sample size and placing the Company
near the median of the peer group . In determining its peer group companies, the Company considered various factors, including
the potential peer’ s industry, business model, size and complexity. The Company chose a peer group that is a better representation of
the Company’ s size and market capitalization with minimal revenue dispersion, and with companies in similar industries or lines of
business or subject to similar economic and business cycles, including companies with a significant international presence that are
also focused on sustainability. December 30;2848Beeember-29, 2019January 3, 2021January 2, 2022January 1, 2023December 31,
2023December 29, 2623nterface-2024Interface , Inc. $ 100 $ H8-64 $ 76-98 $ H5-61 § 72-78 § 92NASDAQ-154NASDAQ
Composite Index $ 100 $ 438144 $ +99-176 $ 243-119 $ +64-172 $ 238Previons-228Previous Sclf- Determined Peer Group (+6-12
Stocks) $ 100 $ 432-82 § 122-104 $ +66-65 $ 123-93 $ +56New-114New Self- Determined Peer Group (12 Stocks) $ 100 $435-90 $
+H4-103 $ 44469 $ 94100 $ 435-112 Notes to Performance Graph (1) If the annual interval, based on the fiscal year- end, is not a
trading day, the preceding trading day is used. (2) The index level was set to $ 100 as of December 36-29 , 2648-2019 (the last day of
fiscal year 26482019 ). (3) The Company s fiscal year ends on the Sunddy nealest Deuembel 31. (4) The followmg compames are
mcludcd n thc Prcv1ous e ed-above: atrd - y -

e o S-REGHHS he-fo RE-ecompantes-are-inetud he-New Selt DetermmedPeerGroup
deplcted dbove ACCO Brands Corpordtlon Apogee Enterprlses lnc Almstrongz World Industries, Inc.; Enviri Corporation
tformerly Harseo-Corporation);-Glatfelter-Corporation—; HNI Corporation; MillerKnoll, Inc.; Steelcase Inc Unifi, Inc.; and VSE
Corporation. Glatfelter Corporation, PGT Innovations, Inc. 3, and SP Plus Corporation were acqulred in 2024 and no longer
trade publicly, and therefore are excluded from the Previous Self- Determined Peer Group. (5) The following companies are
included in the New Self- Determined Peer Group depicted above: ACCO Brands Corporation; American Woodmark
Corporation; Apogee Enterprises, Inc.; Armstrong World Industries, Inc.; Enviri Corporation; Gibraltar Industries, Inc.;
HNI Corporation; MillerKnoll, Inc.; Quanex Building Products Corpordtlon Steelcase Inc.; Tredegar Corporation Unifi,ine—;
and VSE Corporation. Securities Authorued for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans See Item 12 of Part III of this Annual
Report on Form 10- K. Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities The following table contains information with respect to purchases
made by or on behalf of the Company, or any “ affiliated purchaser ” (as defined in Rule 10b- 18 (a) (3) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934), of our common stock during our fourth quarter ended December 3429 , 2623-2024 : Period (1) TotalNumber
ofSharesPurchasedAveragePricePaidPer ShareTotal Numberof Shares Purchasedas Part of Publicly Announced Plans or Programs
(2) Approximate Dollar Value of Shares thatMay Yet BePurchased Under thePlans or Programs (2) Oeteber2-September 30 , 2023
2024 — October 2927 , 20232024 — $§ — — $ 82, 828, 595 October 36-28 , 2023-2024 — December 3-1 , 2023-2024 — — — 82,
828, 595 December 4-2 |
identified above correspond to the Company’ s fiscal fourth quarter of 2623-2024 , which commenced Oetober2-September 30 ,
2023-2024 and ended December 3429 , 2623-2024 . (2) On May 17, 2022, the Company announced a share repurchase program
authorizing the repurchase of up to $ 100 million of common stock. The program has no specific expiration date. There were no
shares repurchased pursuant to this program during the Company’ s fiscal fourth quarter of 2623-2024 . ITEM 6. [ RESERVED ]
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT” S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS Overview Our revenues are derived from sales of floorcovering products, primarily modular carpet, resilient
flooring, including luxury vinyl tile (“ LVT ”), rubber flooring products, and installation services and accessories. Our business, as
well as the commercial interiors industry in general, is cyclical in nature and is impacted by economic conditions and trends that
affect the markets for commercial and institutional business space. The commercial interiors industry, including the market for
floorcovering products, is largely driven by reinvestment by corporations into their existing businesses in the form of new fixtures
and furnishings for their workplaces. In significant part, the timing and amount of such reinvestments are impacted by the
profitability of those corporations. As a result, macroeconomic factors such as employment rates, office vacancy rates, work from
home policies, capital spending, productivity and efficiency gains that impact corporate profitability in general, also affect our
business. The Company has two operating and reportable segments — namely Americas (“ AMS ) and Europe, Africa, Asia and
Australia (collectively “ EAAA ). The AMS operating segment includes the United States, Canada and Latin America geographic
areas. See Note 20 entitled “ Segment Information ” included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional
information. The results of operations discussion below also includes segment information. We focus our marketing and sales efforts
on both corporate office and non- corporate office market segments, to reduce somewhat our exposure to economic cycles that affect
the corporate office market segment more adversely, as well as to capture additional market share. More than half of our consolidated
net sales were in non- corporate office markets in fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-and-2021+-, primarily in education, healthcare,
public buildings , retail , residential / living, retath-and-hospitality , transportation, and consumer residential market segments.
See-ttenrExecutive Summary During 2024, we had consolidated net sales of § 1, entited—Business-315. 7 million , >Hneladed
up 4.3 % compared to $ 1, 261. 5 million in 2023, primarily due to increased customer demand — particularly this-Annual




55 addittonal-informationregarding S5uy sates-in the retail and education eerperate-office-versesromn

eorporate-offfee-market segments . Consolldated operatlng income for 2024 was $ 134 thelastthreefisealyears-byrepertable
. Exeeutive-Summary-4 million compared to consolidated operating income of $ 104. 5 million in 2023, primarily due
to higher sales volumes and lower raw material costs. Consolidated net income for 2024 was $ 86. 9 million, or $ 1. 48 per
diluted share, compared to consolidated net income of $ 44. 5 million, or $ 0. 76 per diluted share, in 2023. During 2023, we
had consolidated net sales of $ 1, 261. 5 million, down 2. 8 % compared to $ 1, 297. 9 million in 2022, primarily due to decreased
customer demand — particularly in the retail market segment. Consolidated operating income for 2023 was $ 104. 5 million compared
to consolidated operating income of $ 75. 4 million in 2022, primarily due to a non- recurring goodwill and intangible asset
impairment charge of $ 36. 2 million recognized in 2022. Consolidated net income for 2023 was $ 44. 5 million, or $ 0. 76 per diluted
share, eompared to LOllSOllddted net mcome of 5 19. 6 million, or 5 O 33 per dlluted shale in 2072 Duﬂﬂg—l—@%%—w&had

detailed dlseusslon of our 2024 and 2023 aﬁd%@%—}eonsollddted and segment pelformdnee appears below undel Analysls ot
Results of Operations 7. Cybersecurity Event As previously disclosed -in our current report on Form 8- K filed with the
Commlssmn on Nm embel 2—9—23 2072 we dlSCO\ eled a eybelsecul ity ’llld(,k on November 20 2022 pelpetl ated by umulhon 1/ed

nelad : : e e 2 A exten fthc(ybc1
Event and—rts—nﬁpaet—te-etrr—epefaﬁeﬂs-was completed in ﬁscal year 2023 We have cyber rlsk insurance a-}se—teelesteps—te

4 s_inelading rirg-111d recovered $ 5 proteetivemeastres;and-notifieddaw-enforeement
flihe-eempaﬂ-yhsebsianﬁall-y—fesaimed—res—epef&&eﬁs—6 mllllon in insurance proceeds during fiscal year 2024, representing business
interruption proceeds and reimbursement of certain costs in connection within-- with twe-weeks-feHowing-the-eeeurrenee-of
the Cyber Event. Of the total insurance proceeds received in fiscal 2024, $ 4. 8 million of business interruption proceeds were
recognized as a benefit in other income / expense, net in the consolidated statements of operations and $ 0. 8 million was
recognized as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses. The ivestigationefinsurance claim for the Cyber
Event has been closed by-etiforensie-expertswas— as eompleted-of December 29, 2024, and we are not expecting additional
proceeds. during-During 2023 —We-, the Company incurred approximately $ 1. I million efeests4r2023-in connection with the
investigation of the Cyber Event, which were recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements
of operations. In 2022, we estimated that the Cyber Event adversely affected our fiscal year 2022 revenues by approximately $ 8
million in lost sales. We incurred approximately $ 5 million of costs related to the Cyber Event in 2022 for idle plant costs, direct
labor costs during the period our manufacturing facilities were idle and third- party remediation costs. Approximately $ 4. 8 million
of the Cyber Event costs in 2022 were included in cost of sales in the L(msolldatcd statements of ()pcrdtlons and dpproxmmtcly $0. 3
million were included in sellm; geneml and administrative expenses eFrave-ts

S attor-ofou d-data—[mpact ot Md(.lOCL()ll()llll(, (ondltlons-Bu-ng—ﬁsea-l-
year%@%%—the—eeﬂtmﬂedﬂsm-pﬂeﬂ—Dlsruptlons in economic mmkels due to engeing-inflation, high tnereases+n-interest rates, the
Russia- Ukraine war ;-and the enset-efconflict in the Middle East Israel-Hamaswar-, a fatrly-stabilizedbut-still challenging supply
chain environment, a—s—lew—pest—@@%LH}feeevefy—m-Ghma—&nd-slow market conditions in the-rest-certain parts of Asta-the globe, the
impact of potential tariffs on the demand for our products, fluctuating freight costs , and significant financial pressures in the
commercial office market globally, all pesed— pose challenges ferus-which may adversely affect our future performance .
Management believes it is reasonably likely that these challenges will COHI]I]UL to dffC(,t our tutmc opuatlons dnd dundnd for our
ploduels to some demee dulmg hsml yean %924—2025 We are-also-antieipating-deeres 55 als-an sh

FVOLa ufaety A 3 plan t()
contmuc ev. a]uatmg our cost str uctuu and Hlobal manuf’letmmg footprmt to 1dcnt1ty md um ate opportumtles to dccrcasc costs and
opt1m|7e our global cost structure. The Company expects Ae y ess-ofatrimpac

hat t t f wrhigher raw

m&teﬁa-l-productlon volumes and lower per unit ﬁxed costs in 2025 higheﬁffeight—eests—and antlclpates these shlppmg—delays—

8 impacts will benefit our gross profit margin in 2022-2025 . We also
expect that contlnumg challenges in supply cham markets will result in higher freight costs to some degree in 2025-
particularly in the first half of 2025. We anticipate that continuing slow market conditions in parts of the globe and
significant financial pressures in the commercial office market globally will adversely impact our future performance and
demand for our products . Analysis of Results of Operations Consolidated Results The following discussion and analyses reflect
the factors and trends discussed in the preceding sections. Consolidated net sales denominated in currencies other than the U. S.
dollar were approximately 43 % in 2024, 46 % in 2023, and 47 % in 2022 ;and-56-%-n2624+. Because we have substantial
international operations, we are impacted, from time to time, by international developments that affect foreign currency transactions .
In 2024, the weakening of the Euro, Canadian dollar, and Chinese Renminbi against the U. S. dollar had a negative impact
on our net sales, partially offset by the strengthening of the British Pound sterling against the U. S. dollar. Currency
fluctuations had no material impact to operating income in 2024 . [n 2023, the strengthening of the Euro against the U. S. dollar
had a positive impact on our net sales, partially offset by the weakening of the Australian dollar, Chinese Renminbi, and Canadian
dollar. Currency fluctuations had no material impact to operating income in 2023. In 2022, the weakening of the Euro, Australian
dollar, British Pound sterling and Chinese Renminbi against the U. S. dollar had a negative impact on our net sales and operating




: —The lL()HO\’Hllé, table presents the amounts (m U S. dollms) by

w hl(,h thc cuham,g rates for tlanslatms, Eums Brmsh Pounds sterling, Australian dollars, Chinese Renminbi and-, Canadian dollars ,
and other currencies into U. S. dollars have affected our consolidated net sales and operating income during the past three years:
202320222621-202420232022 (in millions) Impact of changes in foreign currency on consolidated net sales $ (1. 8)$1.4 $ (58.8) %
23—5-Impact of changes in foreign currency on consolidated operating income (0. 1) (0. 6) (8. 3) 3=—=2-The following table presents, as
a percentage of net sales, certain items included in our consolidated statements of operations during the past three years: Fiscal Year
202320222021 Net-202420232022Net sales100. 0 % 100. 0 % 100. 0 % Cost of sales65-sales63 . 3 65 . 0 66. 3 64—06-Gross profit35
profit36 . 7 35 . 0 33. 7 36-—0-Selling, general and administrative expenses26. § 26. 9 25. 0 27-8-Restructuring, asset impairment,
other (gains) and charges — (0. 2) 0. 2 8-3-Goodwill and intangible asset impairment charge — — 2. § —Operating ineeme$
incomel0 .2 8 . 3 578 7 Interest / Other expense, net3-netl . 6 3 . 2 2. 6 2=FIncome before income tax expenseS-expense8 .65 .
| 3. 1 6=6-Income tax expenset-expense2.01 .5 |. 7 +4-Net ineormre3-income6 . 6 % 3 . 6 % 1. 4 9%44-6-% Consolidated Net Sales
Below we provide information regarding our consolidated net sales and analyze those results for each of the last three fiscal years.
Fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;and2024-cach included 52 weeks. Fiscal YearPercentage Change 2023202220212623
2024202320222024 compared with 26222022-20232023 compared with 2624-2022 (in thousands) Consolidated net sales $ 1, 315,
658 81,261,498 51,297,919 4.3 % (2. 8) % Consolidated net sales for 2024 compared with 2023 For 2024, our consolidated
net sales increased $ 54. 2 million (4. 3 %) compared to 2023, comprised of higher sales volumes (approximately 2. 7 %) and
higher average sales prices (approximately | ;266;398<2-. 6 %). Fluctuations in currency exchange rates had a negative
impact on our year- over- year consolidated net sales comparison of approximately $ 1 . 8 %-8-million, indicating that if
currency levels had remained constant year- over- year, our 2024 net sales would have been higher by this amount . +5%45On a
market segment basis, the sales increase was most significant in the retail, education, residential living, and public buildings
market segments partially offset by decreases in the hospitality, corporate office, and consumer residential market segments.
See the segment results discussion below for additional information on market segments. Consolidated net sales for 2023
compared with 2022 For 2023, our consolidated net sales decreased $ 36. 4 million (2. 8 %) compared to 2022, comprised of lower
sales volumes (approximately 7. 9 %) partially offset by higher prices (approximately 5. 1 %). Fluctuations in currency exchange
rates had a positive impact on our year- over- year consolidated net sales comparison of approximately $ 1. 4 million, meaning that if
currency levels had remained constant year- over- year, our 2023 net sales would have been lower by this amount. On a market
segment basis, the sales decrease was most significant in the retail and healthcare market segments partially offset by increases in
gduumon and lwldumal living market segments. See thg segment results discussion bclow for addmonal information on malkut

informationon-marketsegments—Censelidated-Cost and l:‘(penses The follownw table presems our (,()rl%()llddted cost of sales and
selling, general and administrative (“ SG & A ) expenses during the past three years: Fiscal YearPercentage Change
2623202226242023-2024202320222024 compared with 20222622-20232023 compared with 26242022 (in thousands) Consolidated
cost of sales $ 832, 710 $ 820, 429 $ 860, 186 $F67-6651.5 % (4. 6) %12+% Consolidated selling, general and administrative
expenses339-expenses348 , 542 339 | 049 324, 190 324;345-2. 8 % 4. 6 %6-6-"% Consolidated Cost of Sales For 2024, our
consolidated cost of sales increased $ 12. 3 million (1. 5 %) compared to 2023, primarily due to higher sales partially offset by
lower raw material costs. Currency translation had a positive impact on consolidated cost of sales and partially reduced our
costs by approximately $ 1. 4 million (0. 2 %) compared to 2023. As a percentage of net sales, our consolidated cost of sales
decreased to 63. 3 % in 2024 versus 65. 0 % in 2023. Management believes it is reasonably likely that lower per unit fixed
costs due to higher production volumes and plant productivity initiatives will reduce our costs to some degree in 2025,
particularly in the first half of 2025. These favorable impacts are expected to be partially offset by higher freight costs in
2025. For 2023, our consolidated cost of sales decreased $ 39. 8 million (4. 6 %) compared to 2022, primarily due to lower sales and
lower freight costs (approximately $ 19 million) due to stabilizing supply chain conditions. Currency translation had no material
impact on consolidated cost of sales compared to 2022. As a percentage of net sales, our consolidated cost of sales decreased to 65. 0
% in 2023 versus 66. 3 % in 2022. Consolidated Gross Profit For 2024, consolidated gross profit, as a percentage of net sales,
was 36. 7 % compared to 35. 0 % for 2023. The increase in gross profit percentage was primarily due to (i) lower costs
(approximately 1 %) driven by lower raw material costs and lower fixed costs per unit as a result of higher volume and (ii)
hlgher prlclng (approx1mately %) Management believes it is ICdSOlldb llkely that gross proﬁt -}ewer—mﬂaﬁeﬁ—aﬂd-deefeases—m

gross plolll as a pelcenlwe ol nel sales was 35. 0 % wmp ued to 33 7 % for 2027 The increase in gross plolll pelcenlwe was
primarily due to (i) higher pricing (approximately 4 %), partially offset by (ii) the unfavorable impact of inflation on raw material



costs (apploxlmalely I 9 >) and (iii) um‘a\()lable manuhuulln}: flxed cost absmpllon md ploducl mix (applowmtely 2 %).

2024, our consolldated SG & A expenses were $ 348 5 mllllon versus $ 339 0 mllllon in 2023 Currency translatlon had no
material impact on consolidated SG & A expenses for 2024. Consolidated SG & A expenses increased $ 9. 5 million (2. 8 %)
in 2024 compared to 2023, primarily due to higher people costs of $ 15. 7 million driven by increased variable compensation
as a result of higher operating income compared to 2023, partially offset by lower severance costs of $ 5. 6 million driven by
employee headcount reduction and cost saving initiatives in the prior year period. As a percentage of net sales, SG & A
expenses decreased to 26. 5 % in 2024 versus 26. 9 % in 2023. For 2023, our consolidated SG & A expenses were § 339. 0 million
versus $ 324. 2 million in 2022. Currency translation had a $ 1. 5 million (0. 5 %) negative impact on the year- over- year
comparison. Consolidated SG & A expenses increased $ 14. 9 million (4. 6 %) in 2( 23 compared to 2022, primarily due to (i) $ 6. 5
million of higher selling expenses due to sales and marketing initiatives, (ii) $ 6. 3 million of higher severance costs driven by
employee headcount reductions and initiatives to reduce future costs, (iii) $ 4. 4 million of higher professional fees, and (iv) § 1. 9
million of higher variable compensation costs. These increases were partially offset by lower plant closure costs of approximately $ 4.
l mllhon related to 1he LIOSUIG o[ our Thalhnd and Russia operations in 2072 As a pelcenlage of net mles SG & A expenses

Restl uctulanP-}aﬂS= Plan On Septembel 8,2021, the Company umimltted toa restluuulmg plan that wntmued to fows on eﬁmts
to improve efficiencies and decrease costs across its worldwide operations, involving the closure of the Company’ s manufacturing
facility in Thailand. During the second quarter of 2023, the Company completed the sale of the Thailand real estate and recognized a
gain of § 2. 7 million. This restructuring plan was completed following the sale of the Thailand facility. During 2022, in
conjunction with the closure of its Thailand facility, the Company recorded a write- down of inventory of § 2. 5 million within cost of
sales in the consolidated statements of operations. See Note 16 entitled “ Restructuring and Other ”” and Note 7 entitled “ Property,
Plant and Equipment ” of Part II, Item 8 of this Annual Report for additional information. Goodwill, Intangible Asset and Fixed
Asset Impairment During 2024 and 2023 ;-there was no impairment of our goodwill or indefinite- lived intangible assets. During
2022, we recognized a charge of $ 36. 2 million for the impairment of goodwill and certain intangible assets. See Note 12 entitled
Goodm 1 and Othel lntdngble Assets ” of Part II, Item 8 of this Annudl Repon for dddmona mtmmatlon Dﬂfﬁg%@%—thefe—wefe

e s ated-statermen P S lntelest l:xpense For 2024, our interest expense was $ 23. 2
mllllon, versus $ 31. 8 mllllon in 2023 primarily due to lower outstanding term loan borrowings under the Syndicated Credit
Facility. Our average borrowing rate under the Syndicated Credit Facility as of December 29, 2024, was 5. 62 % compared to
6. 61 % at December 31, 2023. For 2023, our interest expense was $ 31. 8 million, versus $ 29. 9 million in 2022, primarily due to
higher interest rates on outstanding term loan borrowings under the Syndicated Credit Facility, partially offset by lower outstanding
term loan borrowings under the Facility. Our average borrowing rate under the Syndicated Credit Facility as of December 31, 2023,
was 6. 61 % compared to 5. 78 % at January 1, 2023. Fer-Other Income Expense, net During 2022-2024 , eurinterestother

(mcome) gxpcnsc , net, was %%9—(2 9—4) mllllon Fversus $20 I millienin2021-Higherinterestratesin 2022 were-offset by lower

W&S—$ 9 1 m1l]10n —Vefsus—$—3—6—m+l-l-reﬁ—m 2—92—2—2023 Tha, mere&se—decrease was pr]manly duu to thu recelptsﬂbsf&nﬁa-}
heuidation-ofour-foretgn-substdiaries-in Brazt-and-Russta-and-2024 of $ 4. 8 million of business interruption insurance proceeds
related to the resulting-Cyber Event and $ 2. 4 million of insurance proceeds related to a property casualty loss that occurred
in fiscal year 2023. These benefits were partially offset by the recognition of $ 6-2 . 2 million of cumulative translation
adjustments-losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss due to the substantial liquidation of our foreign
subsidiary in Thailand during 2024. During 2023, $ 6. 2 million of cumulative translation losses were recognized in other
(income) expense, net as a result of the substantial liquidation of our foreign subsidiaries in Brazil and Russia . Tax For fiscal
year 2024, the Company recorded income tax expense of $ 26. 6 million on pre- tax income of $ 113. 6 million, resulting in an
effective tax rate of 23. 4 % compared with income tax expense of $ 19. 1 million on pre- tax income of $ 63. 7 million,
resulting in an effective tax rate of 30. 1 %, for fiscal year 2023. The decrease in the effective tax rate for fiscal year 2024,
compared to fiscal year 2023, was primarily due to the release of the valuation allowance on interest expense carryforwards,
favorable tax benefits related to share- based compensation, and a favorable tax benefit related to a change in tax rate related
to the UK pension plan. These favorable changes were partially offset by a decrease in favorable tax benefits related to the
repatriation of previously taxed foreign earnings and utilization of foreign tax benefits. For fiscal year 2023, the Company
recorded income tax expense of $ 19. 1 million on pre- tax income of $ 63. 7 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of 30. 1 %.
This compares with income tax expense of $ 22. 4 million on pre- tax income of $ 41. 9 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of
3.3 %, for fiscal year 2022. The effective tax rate for fiscal year 2022 was significantly impacted by a non- deductible goodwill
impairment charge. Excluding the impact of the non- deductible goodwill impairment charge, the effective tax rate was 31. 4 % for
fiscal year 2022. The decrease in the effective tax rate for fiscal year 2023, as compared to fiscal year 2022, excluding the goodwill
impairment, was primarily due to favorable changes related to the cash surrender value of Company- owned life insurance, utilization



of foreign tax credits, favorable U. S. tax effects from the repatriation of previously taxed foreign earnings, and non- deductible
charges related to the closure of the Company’ s manufacturing facility in Thailand in fiscal year 2022. This decrease was partially

oﬁset bv a h\ 01ablc chanﬂe to umecoa,mzed tax bcnehts in hswl yczu 2022. Feﬁﬁseal—yeai%@%%—ﬂ%e—@eﬁﬁaaﬁy—feeefded—meeme—ta*

able-changesrelated etgn-exchange-movements: Surmmt Results /\s dl%cusscd db()\(, the (_()ll]]’)dﬂ\/ hds two
opualmg and re mllablc segments — AMS and EAAA Su Note 20 entitled “ Segment Information  included in Item 8 of this
Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. During fiscal year 2024, the Company implemented a cost center
realignment initiative as part of the Company’ s efforts to centralize certain global / shared functions. During 2024, SG & A
expenses for these global support functions were allocated to adjusted operating income (“ AOI ”) for each reportable
segment consistent with the allocation methodology used to allocate corporate overhead in prior periods. Prior year AOI
amounts below were not recast as there was no material impact to the measure of segment profit for each reportable segment.
There were no changes to the composition of the Company’ s operating or reportable segments. AMS Segment — Net Sales and
Adjusted Operating Income (“ AOI ") The following table presents AMS segment net sales and AOI for the last three fiscal years:
Fiscal YearPercentage Change2023202220212023-Change2024202320222024 compared with 26222622-20232023 compared with
2024-2022 (in thousands) AMS segment net sales $ 800, 811 $ 736, 955 § 753, 740 $65+246-8. 7 % (2. 2) %+5-F% AMS
segment AOI (1) 106, 594 87, 789 102, 370 85;-644-21. 4 % (14. 2) %26—4-% (1) Includes allocation of corporate SG & A expenses
and allocation of global support SG & A expenses as discussed above . Excludes Cyber Event eests-impact , intangible asset
impairment charge, and restructuring, asset impairment, severance, and other, net. See Note 20 entitled “ Segment Information
included in Item & of this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. AMS segment-Segment Net Sales for 2024
compared with 2023 During 2024, nct sales in AMS increased 8. 7 % versus 2023, comprised of higher sales volume and
higher average sales prices. On a market segment basis, the AMS sales increase was most significant in the retail (up 81. 5 %),
education (up 13. 5 %), public buildings (up 27. 9 %), and residential living (up 23. 3 %) market segments partially offset by
decreases in the corporate office (down 1. 7 %), hospitality (down 18. 0 %), and consumer residential (down 10. 4 %) market
segments. AMS Segment Net Sales for 2023 compared with 2022 During 2023, net sales in AMS decreased 2. 2 % versus 2022,
comprised of lower sales volume partially offset by higher average sales prices. On a market segment basis, the AMS sales decrease
was most significant in the retail (down 50. 6 %) market segment partially offset by increases in the education (up 7. 9 %), corporate
office (up 4. 1 %) and residential living (up 15. 4 %) market segments. AMS segrment-AOI for 2024 compared with 2023 AOI in
AMS increased 21. 4 % during 2024 compared to 2023. Higher adjusted gross profit in 2024, driven by higher sales, lower
raw material costs, and favorable fixed cost absorption contributed to the increase in AMS AOI for the current year. AMS
SG & A expenses as a percentage of nct sales for2622-decreased approximately 0. 8 % compared svith-to 2624-2023 During
%92—2— also contrlbuted to the increase in AOI As a percentage of mt sales -l-ﬂ—A-NI—S— AOI erCdst -lé—to 13 7—3 % in 2024

%}ﬁaﬂeet—segﬁﬁﬂ-t— AMS AOI for 7023 compar ed w Ilh 2022 AOI in AMS deueased 14. 2 % during 2023 compared to 2022 5
primariy-dueto-. Lower adjusted gross profit in 2023 driven by unfavorable manufacturing fixed cost absorption and lower sales,
partially offset by lower freight costs contributed to the decrease in AMS AOI . AMS SG & A expenses as a percentage of net
sales increased approximately 1. 1 % compared to 2022, primarily due to higher selling expenses also ;whtel-contributed to the
dcucasu in AOI for 2023 t—he—euffeﬁt—ye&r— As a puumagc of net sales, A()l dcucdscd to 11. 9 % in 2023 versus 13. 6 % in 2022 -

%—tﬂ%@%%—vefsus—l-?y—H%—m%O%l— EAAA Suvmem — Net Sales and A()I The lollomnﬁ mble prcsems EAAA %wmenl ncl %aleq and
AOI for the last three fiscal years: Fiscal YearPercentage Change2623262226242623-Change2024202320222024 compared with
20222022-20232023 compared with 26242022 (in thousands) EAAA segment net sales $ 514, 847 $ 524, 543 § 544, 179 $-549,482
(1. 8) % (3. 6 ¥%6-9-) % EAAA segment AOI (1) 34, 803 28, 608 30, 058 3%H26821. 7 % (4. 8 ¥F%49-3-) % (1) Includes
allocation of corporate SG & A expenses and allocation of global support SG & A expenses as discussed above . Excludes

goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges, purchase accounting amortization , Cyber Event impact , Thailand plant closure
inventory write- down -CyberEventeosts, and restructuring, asset impairment, severance, and other, net. See Note 20 entitled

Segment Information ” included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K for additional information. EAAA segment-Segment
Net Sales for 2024 compared with 2023 During 2024, net sales in EAAA decreased 1. 8 % versus 2023, primarily due to lower
sales volume. Currency fluctuations had a negative impact of approximately $ 0. 8 million (0. 2 %) on EAAA net sales for
2024 compared to 2023 due to the weakening of the Euro, Chinese Renminbi, and Australian dollar against the U. S dollar,
partially offset by the strengthening of the British Pound sterling against the U. S. dollar. On a market segment basis, the
EAAA sales decrease was most significant in the public buildings (down 21 %), hospitality (down 24. 1 %), and healthcare
(down 6. 8 %) market segments, partially offset by an increase in the residential living (up 9. 1 %) market segment. EAAA
Segment Net Sales for 2023 compared with 2022 During 2023, net sales in EAAA decreased 3. 6 % versus 2022, comprised of
lower sales volume partially offset by higher selling prices. Slower economic recovery and decreased customer demand in Asia
resulted in approximately 25 % lower net sales in Asia during 2023 compared to 2022. Currency fluctuations had a positive impact of



approximately $ 3. 5 million (0. 6 %) on EAAA net sales for 2023 compared to 2022 due to the strengthening of the Euro, partially
offset by the weakening of the Australian dollar and Chinese Renminbi against the U. S. dollar. On a market segment basis, the
EAAA sales decrease was most significant in the corporate office (down 3. 5 %), healthcare (down 23. 5 %), retail (down 22. 8 %),
and education (down 3. 9 %) market segments, partially offset by an inereases— increase in the hospitality (up 11. 5 %) market
segment. EAAA segment-AOI for 2024 compared with 2023 AOI in EAAA increased 21. 7 % during 2024 versus 2023. Higher
adjusted gross profit in 2024, driven by lower raw material costs partially offset by lower sales volume contributed to the
increase in EAAA AOI for the current year. Currency fluctuations had no material impact on EAAA AOI in 2024 compared
to 2023. As a percentage of net sdlcs -fer%@%%—eempafed—wtt-lﬁn—%%—l—]at&mg—}%%— AOI was 6 ﬁet—sa-}es—rﬁ—E-&A—A—deefeased-G— 98 %
in 2024 versus 26245 . 5 g prie Re-votute-w pac :

EAAA AOI for 2023 compalcd w1th 2()22 AOI in EAAA dccwdscd 4 8 % dulmg 2023 versus 2022 pﬁmﬁf&y—d&e—tﬁ—the—l—mp&et—e%
Lower adjusted gross profit in 2023, driven by lower sales, inflationary pressures on raw material costs, and unfavorable
manufacturing fixed cost absorption on lower production volumes contributed to the decrease in EAAA AOI . Currency
fluctuations had no matcnal impact on EAAA AOI n 2023 comparcd to 2022 Asa pcrccntagc of net sales, AOI was 5. 5 % in both
2023 and 2022 AA W A e - e d

—F 1nan01a1 Condmon Liquidity and Capltal Rebources
Generdl In our business, we require cash and other llquld assets prlmarlly to purchase raw materials and to pay other manufacturing
costs, in addition to funding normal course SG & A expenses, anticipated capital expenditures, interest expense and potential special
projects. We generate our cash and other liquidity requirements primarily from our operations and from borrowings under our
Syndicated Credit Facility (the * Facility ™) discussed below. We anticipate that our liquidity 18-, cash flows from operations, cash
and cash equivalents, and other sources of liquidity are sufficient to meet our obligations for the next 12 months, and we expect to
generate sufficient cash to meet our long- term obligations . However, the Company’ s cash flows from operations can be affected
by numerous factors including raw material availability and cost, demand for our products, and other factors described in
Risk Factors ” included in Part I, Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10- K . Below are estimates of our material cash
requirements for future periods. The short- term period represents payments due within the 12 months following December 3429 ,
2023-2024 , and the long- term period represents payments due beyond the short- term period. Payments Due by Period Short-
TermLong- TermTotal (in thousands) Long- term debt obligations $ 482 8;-572-5 443-305 , 686-082 $ 424-305 , 658-564 Operating
and finance lease obligations19, 8761+66-820 92 . 130126-314 112 , 866-134 Expected interest payments24-payments16 , 254-82
796 49 , 978167952 66 , 232-748 Purchase obligationsté-obligations27 , 13734435 41 , 967-51-147 68 , 644-582 Pension cash
obligations4, 664-29-294 28 . +60-33-556 32 , 76+-850 Total § 73-68 , 440-827 $ 666-517 , 261+-051 $ 739-585 , 764+-878 Historically,
we use more cash in the first half of the fiscal year, as we pay insurance premiums, taxes and incentive compensation and build up
inventory in preparation for the holiday / vacation season of our international operations. As outlined in the table above, we have
approximately $ 73-68 . 4-8 million in material contractual cash obligations due within the next year, which includes, among other
things, scheduled debt repayments under the Facility, pension contributions, interest payments on our debt, and lease commitments.
Our long- term debt obligations include the contractually scheduled principal repayment of our term loan and revolving loan
borrowings under the Facility, which matures in 2027, and $ 300 million on our Senior Notes due in 2028. Operating and finance
lease obligations consist of undiscounted lease payments due over the term of the lease. Expected interest payments are those
associated with borrowings under the Facility and Senior Notes consistent with our contractually scheduled principal repayments.
Our purchase obligations are for non- cancellable agreements primarily for raw material purchases and capital expenditures. Our
pension obligations include contributions and expected benefit payments to be paid by the Company related to certain defined benefit
pension plans and exclude the expected benefit payments for two of our funded foreign defined benefit plans as these obligations will
be paid by the plans. Based on current interest rates and debt levels, we expect our aggregate interest expense for 2624-2025 to be
approximately $ 2720 million. We estimate aggregate capital expenditures in 2624-2025 to be approximately $ 42-45 million,
although we are not committed to this amount. At December 3429 , 2023-2024 , we had $ 44699 . 5-2 million in cash.
Approximately $ 5-3 . -1 million of this cash was located in the U. S., and the remaining $ +84-96 . 8-1 million was located outside
of the U. S. The cash located outside of the U. S. is indefinitely reinvested in the respective jurisdictions (except as identified below).
We believe that our strategic plans and business needs, particularly for working capital needs and capital expenditure requirements in
Europe, Asia, and Australia, support our assertion that a portion of our cash in foreign locations will be reinvested and remittance will
be postponed indefinitely. Of the $ $84-96 . 8-1 million of cash in foreign jurisdictions, approximately $ 548 . 9-8 million represents
earnings which we have determined are not permanently reinvested, and as such we have provided for foreign withholding and U. S.
state income taxes on these amounts in accordance with applicable accounting standards. As of December 34-29 , 2623-2024 , we had
$ +24-5 . #-6 million of borrowings outstanding under our Facility, all of which were term loan borrowings. There were no revolving
loan borrowings outstanding as of December 3429 , 2623-2024 . Additionally, $ +-0 . -7 million in letters of credit were outstanding
under the Facility at the end of fiscal year 2623-2024 . As of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , we had additional borrowing capacity of
$ 208-299 . 4-3 million under the Facility. As of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , the weighted average interest rate on borrowings
outstanding under the Facility was €-5 . 6462 %. As of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , there were no other lines of credit available to
the Company. In addition, as of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , we had $ 300. 0 million of 5. 50 % Senior Notes due 2028 (the “



Senior Notes ) outstanding, which are discussed further below. It is important for you to consider that we have a significant amount
of indebtedness. Our Facility matures in October of 2027, and the Senior Notes, as discussed below, mature in December 2028. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to renegotiate or refinance any of our debt on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. If we
are unable to refinance our debt or obtain new financing, we would have to consider other options, such as selling assets to meet our
debt service obligations and other liquidity needs, or using cash, if available, thdt would hdve been used for othel business purposes.

We have Ht-is-alse-impertantfor-you-to-eonsider-that-borrowings 4 2
indebtedness;and-thatthese-berrowings-are-based on variable interest rates (as descrlbed below) that expose the Company to the risk

that interest rates may increase. For information regarding the current variable interest rates of these borrowings, the potential impact
on our interest expense from hypothetical increases in short term interest rates, and the former interest rate swap transaction, please
see the discussion in Item 7A of this Report. We are not a party to any material off- balance sheet arrangements. Balance Sheet
Accounts receivable, net, were $ 171. 1 million at December 29, 2024, compared to $ 163. 4 million at December 31, 2023 5
eompared-to-$182S-mithenatJantary 152023 The deerease-increase of $ 49-7 . 47 million was primarily due to the 1mpact of
higher net sales as a result of increased customer eeHeetions-demand in 2023-2024 . Inventories . net ineludingthe-impaet-of
delaysineustomerbillingsfromthe Cyber Event, inwhich the-due-datesfor those-delayed billings-were pushed-fremthefourth
guarterof$ 260. 6 million at December 29, 2022-2024 te-the-firstquarterof 2023 Inventories-, compared to netwere-S 279. |
million at December 31, 2023 —eefﬂpafed—te%%@é%—ﬁnﬁtefrai—l&ﬂu&fy—l—'&@%— The decrease of $ 2718 . 2-5 million was primarily
due to higher sales deeres rtyear-, stronger lowermanufacturing-volumeduete

fe&ueed-eﬁstemeﬁdemaﬁd—&nd—mpfevemeﬂfs—m— orkmg cqpltal management and lower raw material costs during the current
year . Analysis of Cash Flows The following table presents a summary of cash flows for fiscal years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
202+ Fiscal Year 202320222024-202420232022 (in thousands) Net cash provided by (used in): Operating activities $ 148, 430 $
142,034 $ 43, 0601 $86;-689-Investing activities ( 30,374) (19, 514) (18, 437 H28;69+) Financing activities ( 125,234) (111, 564)
(19, 490 3466;-858-) Effect of exchange rate changes on easkhd— cash (4, 094) 1, 978 (4, 822 H3;-561) Net change in cash and cash
equivalentsi2—- equivalents (11, 272) 12, 934 312 5;-80H-Cash and cash cqu1va1cntq at beginning of peried97-period110, 498 97 ,
564 97, 252 +83;853-Cash and cash equlvalents at end of period $ 99,226 $ 110, 498 § 97, 564 We ended 2024 with $ 97-99. 2
million in cash , 252-a decrease of $ 11. 3 million during the year. The decrease was primarily due to the following: « Cash
provided by operating activities was $ 148. 4 million for 2024, which represents an increase of $ 6. 4 million compared to
2023. The increase in operating cash flows was primarily due to higher sales during 2024 resulting in a source of cash from
lower inventory balances partially offset by a use of cash as a result of higher accounts receivable. The 2023 comparable
period includes a source of cash for accounts receivable as delayed customer billings related to the 2022 Cyber Event were
collected in 2023. » Cash used in investing activities was $ 30. 4 million for 2024, which represents an increase of $ 10. 9
million compared to 2023. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in capital expenditures due to increased
capital investment partially offset by $ 2. 4 million of insurance proceeds related to a 2023 property casualty loss. The 2023
comparable period includes proceeds of approximately $ 6. 6 million from the sale of the Company’ s Thailand real estate. ¢
Cash used in financing activities was $ 125. 2 million for 2024, which represents an increase of $ 13. 7 million compared to
2023. The increase was primarily attributable to higher prepayments of term loan borrowings during 2024 compared to the
2023 comparable period. We ended 2023 with § 110. 5 million in cash, an increase of § 12. 9 million during the year. The increase
was primarily due to the following: « Cash provided by operating activities was $ 142. 0 million for 2023, which represents an
increase of $ 99. 0 million compared to 2022. The increase in operating cash flows was primarily due to a greater source of cash from
working capital in 2023. Specifically, customer collections in 2023 contributed to a decrease in accounts receivable, primarily
attributable to delays in customer billings from the Cyber Event, in which due dates for those delayed billings were pushed from the
fourth quarter of 2022 to the first quarter of 2023. The 2022 comparable period also included a greater use of cash for working capital
attributable to an increase in inventories compared with 2023. ¢ Cash used in investing activities was $ 19. 5 million for 2023, which
represents an increase of $ 1. 1 million compared to 2022. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in capital
expenditures due to increased capital investment, partially offset by the proceeds of approximately $ 6. 6 million from the sale of the
Company’ s Thailand real estate in 2023. « Cash used in financing activities was $ 111. 6 million for 2023, which represents an
increase of $ 92. 1 million compared to 2022. The year- over- year difference was primarily due to lower revolving loan borrowings
combined with higher repayments of term loan borrowings in 2023 as a result of cash generated from operating activities as described
above. Fiscal year 2022 also included repurchases of the Company’ s common stock that did not occur in 2023, which partially offset
the increased use of cash for financing activities in 2023 compared with 2022. We ended 2022 with § 97. 6 million in cash, an
increase of $ 0. 3 million during the year. The increase was primarily due to the following: * Cash provided by operating activities
was $ 43. 1 million for 2022, which represents a decrease of $ 43. 6 million compared to 2021. The decrease was primarily due to a
greater use of cash for working capital during 2022. Specifically, higher inventories as a result of higher raw material costs and input
costs contributed to the greater use of cash for working capital in 2022. Higher variable compensation payouts in the first quarter of
2022 (related to 2021 performance) also contributed to the increased use of cash for 2022. Cash provided by operating activities in
2022 also was negatively impacted by delays in billings due to the Cyber Event, which pushed the due dates for those delayed
billings from the fourth quarter of 2022 to the first quarter of 2023. ¢ Cash used in investing activities was $ 18. 4 million for 2022,
which represents a decrease of $ 9. 6 million compared to 2021. The decrease was primarily due to reduced capital expenditures.
Cash used in financing activities was $ 19. 5 million for 2022, which represents a decrease of $ 41. 4 million compared to 2021. The
year- over- year difference was primarily due to higher revolving loan borrowings in 2022 as a source of cash to fund operating
activities as described above, offset by a use of cash for repurchases of the Company’ s common stock pursuant to a new share
repurchase program adopted in the second quarter of 2022. Fiscal year 2021 also included higher repayments of approximately $ 60
million of term loan borrowmas which contributed to a greater use of cash in that penod We—eﬂéed%@%l—mﬁh%%ﬂﬁieﬁ—m—e&s-h;




ﬂsu&nee—e#t:he%—?r@(?ﬁﬁxeﬂ—Seﬁmr—Netes)—Share Repurchases In the second quarter of 2022 the Company adopted anew share

repurchase program in which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $ 100 million of its outstanding shares of common stock.
The program has no spec1ﬁc explratlon date. No shares of common stock were repul chased durmg, 2024 and 2023 pursuant to thls

program. Puring2022the-Companyreptrehased-and G 0 63
44—per—sh&re—er4$—l—7—2—miﬂieﬁ—p&rsuaﬂt—te-tkﬂs—pfegfaﬂa—As of December 3—1—29 292—3—2024 approx1mately $ 82 8 m11110n remains
authorized pursuant to this program for future share repurchases. The program does not require the Company to repurchase a specific
number or amount of shares, or to do so within any specific time periods. Syndicated Credit Facility In the normal course of business,
in addition to using our available cash, we fund our operations by borrowing under our Facility. At December 34-29 , 2023-2024 , the
Facility provided the Company and certain of its subsidiaries with a multicurrency revolving loan facility up to $ 300 million, as well
as other U. S. denominated and multicurrency term loans. On October 14, 2022, in connection with the fifth amendment to the
Facility, the maturity date was extended to October 2027. Material terms under the Facility are discussed below. For additional
information please see Note 9 entitled “ Long- Term Debt ” in Item 8 of this Report. Interest Rates and Fees Under the Facility,
interest on base rate loans is charged at varying rates computed by applying a margin ranging from 0. 25 % to 2. 00 %, depending on
the Company’ s consolidated net leverage ratio (as defined in the Facility agreement) as of the most recently completed fiscal
quarter. Interest on SOFR- based and alternative currency loans are charged at varying rates computed by applying a margin ranging
from 1. 25 % to 3. 00 % over the applicable SOFR rate or alternative currency rate, depending on the Company’ s consolidated net
leverage ratio as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter. In addition, the Company pays a commitment fee ranging from 0. 20
% to 0. 40 % per annum (depending on the Company’ s consolidated net leverage ratio as of the most recently completed fiscal
quarter) on the unused portion of the Facility. Fees for commercial letters of credit are computed as 1. 00 % per annum of the amount
available to be drawn under such letters of credit. Fees for standby letters of credit are charged at varying rates computed by applying
a margin ranging from 1. 25 % to 3. 00 % per annum of the amount available to be drawn under such standby letters of credit,
dependmg on the Company ] consohdated net leverage ratio as of the most recently completed ﬁscal quarter -]:I'B'eR—Tfa-ﬁsﬁiﬁﬁ-eﬁ-

: : 8 ars—(Covenants The F ac111ty contams standard and
customary covenants for agreements of this type 1ncludmg various reportmg, affirmative and negative covenants. Among other
things, these covenants limit our ability to:  create or incur liens on assets; * make acquisitions of or investments in businesses (in
excess of certain specified amounts); ¢ engage in any material line of business substantially different from the Company’ s current
lines of business; ¢ incur indebtedness or contingent obligations; * sell or dispose of assets (in excess of certain specified amounts); ©
pay dividends or repurchase our stock (in excess of certain specified amounts); * repay other indebtedness prior to maturity unless we
meet certain conditions; and ¢ enter into sale and leaseback transactions. The Facility also requires us to remain in compliance with
the following financial covenants as of the end of each fiscal quarter, based on our consolidated results for the year then ended: *
Consolidated Secured Net Leverage Ratio: Must be no greater than 3. 00: 1. 00. « Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio: Must be no
less than 2. 25: 1. 00. Events of Default If we breach or fail to perform any of the affirmative or negative covenants under the
Facility, or if other specified events occur (such as a bankruptcy or similar event or a change of control of Interface, Inc. or certain
subsidiaries, or if we breach or fail to perform any covenant or agreement contained in any instrument relating to any of our other
indebtedness exceeding $ 20 million), after giving effect to any applicable notice and right to cure provisions, an event of default will
exist. If an event of default exists and is continuing, the lenders’ Administrative Agent may, and upon the written request of a
specified percentage of the lender group shall: ¢ declare all commitments of the lenders under the facility terminated; ¢ declare all
amounts outstanding or accrued thereunder immediately due and payable; and ¢ exercise other rights and remedies available to them
under the agreement and applicable law. Collateral Pursuant to a Second Amended and Restated Security and Pledge Agreement, the
Facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of Interface, Inc. and our domestic subsidiaries (subject to exceptions for certain
immaterial subsidiaries), including all of the stock of our domestic subsidiaries and up to 65 % of the stock of certain eurfirst—tier
material foreign subsidiaries. If an event of default occurs under the Facility, the lenders’ Administrative Agent may, upon the
request of a specified percentage of lenders, exercise remedies with respect to the collateral, including, in some instances, foreclosing
mortgages on real estate assets, taking possession of or selling personal property assets, collecting accounts receivable, or exercising
proxies to take control of the pledged stock of domestic and certain first—tier-material foreign subsidiaries. Under the Facility, we are
required to make quarterly amortization payments of the term loan borrowings. The amortization payments are due on the last day of
the calendar quarter. We are in compliance with all covenants under the Facility and anticipate that we will remain in compliance
with the covenants for the foreseeable future. As of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , the Company had $ 300 million of Senior Notes
outstanding. The Senior Notes bear an interest rate at 5. 50 % per annum and mature on December 1, 2028. Interest is paid semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year. Debt issuance costs associated with the Senior Notes are recorded as a reduction of
long- term debt in the consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the life of the outstanding debt. The Senior Notes are
unsecured and are guaranteed, jointly and severally, by each of the Company’ s material domestic subsidiaries, all of which also
guarantee the obligations of the Company under its Facility. The Company’ s foreign subsidiaries and certain non- material domestic
subsidiaries are considered non- guarantors. Net sales for the non- guarantor subsidiaries were approximately $ 573 million for fiscal
year 2024, $ 584 million for fiscal year 2023, and $ 597 million for fiscal year 2022 ;and-$-594-millionforfiseal-year 2021 Total




indebtedness of the non- guarantor subsrdrarres was approxrmately $ 102 million and § 133 mrlhon as of December 29 2024, and
December 31, 2023 - o &
subs-rdr&ﬂes— respectlvely

redeemed on or after December 1 2023 at spec1ﬂed redemptlon prlces See Note 9 entltled « Long- Term Debt ” in Item 8 ofthls
Report for addltlonal 1nf0rmat10n - W 0 P

and Estimates The policies and estimates drscussed below are considered by management to be crltrcal to an understanding of our
consolidated financial statements because their application places the most significant demands on management’ s judgment, with
financial reporting results relying on estimations about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. Specific risks for these
critical accounting policies are described in the following paragraphs. For all of these policies, management cautions that future
events may not develop as forecasted, and the best estimates routinely require adjustment. Impairment of Long- Lived Assets. Long-
lived assets are reviewed for impairment at the asset group level whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying amount of
the asset, an impairment is indicated. A loss is then recognized for the difference, if any, between the fair value of the asset (as
estimated by management using its best judgment) and the carrying value of the asset. Management’ s judgment in estimating the
undiscounted cash flows based on market conditions and trends, and other industry specific metrics used in determining the fair value
is subject to uncertainty. If actual market value is less favorable than that estimated by management, additional write- downs may be
required. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Liabilities. The carrying values of deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the
application of our income tax accounting policies in accordance with applicable accounting standards and are based on management’
s assumptions and estimates regarding future operating results and levels of taxable income, as well as management’ s judgment
regarding the interpretation of the provisions of applicable accounting standards. The carrying values of liabilities for income taxes
currently payable are based on management’ s interpretations of applicable tax laws and incorporate management’ s assumptions and
judgments regarding the use of tax planning strategies in various taxing jurisdictions. The use of different estimates, assumptions and
judgments in connection with accounting for income taxes may result in materially different carrying values of income tax assets and
liabilities and results of operations. We evaluate the recoverability of these deferred tax assets by assessing the adequacy of future
expected taxable income from all sources, including reversal of taxable temporary differences, forecasted operating earnings and
available tax planning strategies. These sources of income inherently rely heavily on estimates. We use our historical experience and
our short- term and long- term business forecasts to provide insight. Further, our global business portfolio gives us the opportunity to
employ various prudent and feasible tax planning strategies to facilitate the recoverability of future deductions. To the extent we do
not consider it more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will be recovered, a valuation allowance is established. As of December
29, 2024, and December 3 | ;2023-andJanuaryt-, 2023, we had state net operating loss carryforwards of $ 492-190 . 1 million and
$ +62-192 . 8-1 million, respectively. Certain of these state net operating loss carryforwards are reserved with a valuation allowance
because, based on the available evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that we would not be able to utilize those deferred tax
assets in the future. The remaining year- end 2623-2024 amounts are expected to be fully recoverable within the applicable statutory
expiration periods. If the actual amounts of taxable income differ from our estimates, the amount of our valuation allowance could be
materially impacted. Goodwill. We review the carrying values of our goodwill annually at the beginning of the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, or more often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of a reporting unit may exceed its fair
value as set forth in Accounting Standards Codification 350 “ Intangibles — Goodwill and Other ”, as amended by Accounting
Standards Update (“ ASU ) 2017- 04. We test goodwill at the reporting unit level, which is an operating segment or one level below
an operating segment. We utilize the present value of expected future cash flows and the guideline public company method to
determine the estimated fair value of our reporting units. The present value model requires management to estimate future cash
flows, the timing of these cash flows, and a discount rate based on a weighted average cost of capital. The assumptions we use to
estimate future cash flows and the development of any forecasts to be used in the fair value determination are subject to inherent risk
and judgment. If we determine that the estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill of the reporting
unit is not impaired. If we determine that the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, we measure the
goodwill impairment charge based on the excess of the reporting unit’ s carrying value over its fair value consistent with ASU 2017-
04, “ Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment ” ;whieh-we-adopted-onBeeember30;2049-. During the fourth quarter of 2024
and 2023, we performed our annual quantitative goodwill impairment testing. We focused our testing on the Americas reporting unit
sinee-because it is the only reporting unit with an allocated goodwill balance. The allocated goodwill balances for our EMEA and
Asia = Pacific reporting units were written off in prior years as a result of goodwill impairment charges. The Company performed
limited procedures for our EMEA and Asia - Pacific reporting units during the 2024 and 2023 goodwill testing to facilitate a
reconciliation of market capitalization. The annual quantitative goodwill testing performed in 2024 and 2023 for our Americas
reporting unit was consistent with our prior year methodology. The Company prepared valuations for the Americas reporting unit on
both a market comparable methodology and an income methodology, utilizing a combination of the present value of expected future
cash flows and the guideline public company method to determine the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. In preparing the
valuation, past, present and future expectations of performance were considered, including our expectations for the short- term and
long- term impacts of macroeconomic conditions, ineludinginflatien;-and our expected financial performance, including planned



revenue and operating income for the Americas reporting unit. The present value model requires management to estimate future cash
flows, the timing of these cash flows, and a discount rate based on a weighted average cost of capital. The discount rate used for the
Americas reporting unit was +H-10 . 5 % in 2623-2024 compared to +3-11 . 5 % in 2622-2023 , which fluctuated based on a lower risk
premium assigned to estimates of expected future performance. There is inherent uncertainty associated with key assumptions and
estimates used in our impairment testing, including the impact of macroeconomic conditions . As a result of our 2024 annual
goodwill testing, we determined that the fair value of our Americas reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 132 % at the
2024 measurement date, and therefore no impairment was indicated. The goodwill balance of $ 99. 9 million at December 29,
2024, is allocated entirely to our Americas reporting unit . As a result of our 2023 annual goodwill testing, we determined that the
fair value of our Americas reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by 71 % at the 2023 measurement date, and therefore no
impairment was indicated. The goodwill balance of § 105. 4 million at December 31, 2023, is-was allocated entirely to our Americas
reporting unit . During the fourth quarter of 2022,we performed our annual goodwill quantitative testing for each reporting unit
.We considered factors such as,but not limited to,our expectations for the short- term and long- term impacts of macroeconomic
factors,including ongoing inflation,foreign currency exchange rates,and our expected financial performance,including planned
revenue and operating income of each reporting unit.The discount rate used for each reporting unit ranged from 13.5 % to 14.0
%,which primarily fluctuated based on a country risk premium assigned to the geographical region of the reporting unit.For fiscal
year 2022,we determined that the carrying value of our EMEA reporting unit exceeded its fair value and that the associated goodwill
was impaired.We rccordcd a goodw1ll 1mpa1rmcnt chargc of $ 29 4 m11110n to write off all the goodw1ll allocatcd to our EMEA
reporting unit as-th g W 0 v s

.As of the 2022 measurement date the falr value of our Amerlcas reportlng unit exceeded its carrymg value by 71 %, and the
Americas reporting unit was not impaired. The Americas reporting unit had a goodwill balance of $ 102.4 million at the end of fiscal
2022.The goodwill balance allocated to our Asia- Pacific reporting unit was previously written off in connection with the 2020
goodwill impairment . We have not made any material changes to our goodwill impairment loss assessment methodology during the
past three fiscal years. Currently, we do not believe there is a reasonable likelihood that there will be a material change in future
assumptions or estimates we use to calculate impairment losses. However, we cannot predict or control market factors, including the
impact of macroeconomic conditions and the impact of certain risks inherent to our operations, as described in Item 1A “ Risk
Factors ” of this Annual Report. If actual results are not consistent with our assumptions and estimates, we may be exposed to
additional goodwill impairment losses that could be material. During the fourth quarter of 2022....... value that exceeded their
carrying value. Inventories. We determine the value of inventories using the lower of cost or net realizable value. We write down
inventories for the difference between the carrying value of the inventories and their net realizable value. If actual market conditions
are less favorable than those projected by management, additional write- downs may be required. Management’ s judgment in
estimating our reserves for inventory obsolescence is based on continuous examination of our inventories to determine if there are
indicators that carrying values exceed net realizable values. Experience has shown that significant indicators that could require the
need for additional inventory write- downs are the age of the inventory, the length of its product life cycles, anticipated demand for
our products and current economic conditions. While we believe that adequate write- downs for inventory obsolescence have been
made in the consolidated financial statements, consumer tastes and preferences may continue to change, and we could experience
additional inventory write- downs in the future. Our inventory reserve on December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 andJanuary
+2023- was $ 38. 3 million and $ 34. 0 mithenand-$28-5-million, respectively. To the extent that actual obsolescence of our
inventory differs from our estimate by 10 %, our 2823-2024 net income would be higher or lower by approximately $ 2. 49 million,
on an after- tax basis. Pension Benefits. Net pension expense recorded is based on, among other things, assumptions about the
discount rate, estimated return on plan assets and salary increases. While management believes these assumptions are reasonable,
changes in these and other factors and differences between actual and assumed changes in the present value of liabilities or assets of
our plans above certain thresholds could cause net annual expense to increase or decrease materially from year to year. The actuarial
assumptions used in our salary continuation plan and our foreign defined benefit plans reporting are reviewed periodically and
compared with external benchmarks to ensure that they appropriately account for our future pension benefit obligation. The expected
long- term rate of return on plan assets assumption is based on weighted average expected returns for each asset class. Expected
returns reflect a combination of historical performance analysis and the forward- looking views of the financial markets, and include
input from actuaries, investment service firms and investment managers. The table below represents the changes to the projected
benefit obligation as a result of changes in discount rate assumptions: Foreign Defined Benefit PlansIncrease (Decrease) inProjected
Benefit Obligation (in millions) 1 % increase in actuarial assumption for discount rate $ (24-19 . 57 ) 1 % decrease in actuarial
assumption for discount rate30-rate25 . 4-3 Domestic Salary Continuation PlanIncrease (Decrease) inProjected Benefit Obligation
(in millions) 1 % increase in actuarial assumption for discount rate $ (1.9-6 ) 1 % decrease in actuarial assumption for discount rate2
ratel . 2-9 Allowances for Expected Credit Losses. We maintain allowances for expected credit losses resulting from the inability of
customers to make required payments. Estimating the amount of future expected losses requires us to consider historical losses from
our customers, as well as current market conditions and future forecasts of our customers’ ability to make payments for goods and
services. By its nature, such an estimate is highly subjective, and it is possible that the amount of accounts receivable that we are
unable to collect may be different than the amount initially estimated. Our allowance for expected credit losses on December 29,
2024 and December 31, 2023 andJanuary+2623- was $ 3. 8-8 million and $ 4-3 . 0 million, respectively. To the extent the actual
collectability of our accounts receivable differs from our estimates by 10 %, our 2623-2024 net income would be higher or lower by
approximately $ 0. 2-3 million, on an after- tax basis, depending on whether the actual collectability was better or worse,
respectively, than the estimated allowance. Product Warranties. We typically provide limited warranties with respect to certain
attributes of our carpet products (for example, warranties regarding excessive surface wear, edge ravel and static electricity) for
periods ranging from ten to twenty years, depending on the particular carpet product and the environment in which the product is to
be installed. Similar limited warranties are provided on certain attributes of our rubber and LVT products, typically for a period of 5
to 15 years. We typically warrant that any services performed will be free from defects in workmanship for a period of one year
following completion. In the event of a breach of warranty, the remedy typically is limited to repair of the problem or replacement of




the affected product. We record a provision related to warranty costs based on historical experience and future expectations and
periodically adjust these provisions to reflect changes in actual experience. Our warranty and sales allowance reserve on December
29,2024 and December 31, 2023 andJanuary+-2623-, was $4-5 . 3 million and $ 2-4 . +3 million, respectively. Actual warranty
expense incurred could vary significantly from amounts that we estimate. To the extent the actual warranty expense differs from our
estimates by 10 %, our 2623-2024 net income would be higher or lower by approximately $ 0. 3-4 million, on an after- tax basis,
depending on whether the actual expense is lower or higher, respectively, than the estimated provision. Recent Accounting
Pronouncements Please see Note 2 entitled “ Recent Accounting Pronouncements ” in Item 8 of this Report for discussion of these
items. ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK Market Risk As a result of
the scope of our global operations, we are exposed to an element of market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates. Our results of operations and financial condition could be impacted by this risk. We manage our exposure to market
risk through our regular operating and financial activities and, to the extent we deem appropriate, through the use of derivative
financial instruments. From time to time, we employ derivative financial instruments as risk management tools and not for
speculative or trading purposes. We monitor the use of derivative financial instruments through objective measurable systems, well-
defined market and credit risk limits, and timely reports to senior management according to prescribed guidelines. We have
established strict counter- party credit guidelines and enter into transactions only with financial institutions with a rating of
investment grade or better. As a result, we consider the risk of counter- party default to be minimal. There were no active derivative
instruments as of December 34-29 , 2623-2024 . Interest Rate Market Risk Exposure Changes in interest rates affect the interest paid
on our variable rate debt. To mitigate the impact of fluctuations in interest rates, our management monitors interest rates and has
developed and implemented a policy to maintain the percentage of fixed and variable rate debt within certain parameters, subject to
approval by our Board of Directors. In addition, from time to time, we may enter into derivative transactions, such as interest rate
swaps, in order to manage exposure to interest rate fluctuations. There were no active interest rate derivative instruments as of
December 34-29 , 2623-2024 . Foreign Currency Exchange Market Risk Exposure A significant portion of our operations consists of
manufacturing and sales activities in foreign jurisdictions. We manufacture our products in the United States, Northern Ireland, the
Netherlands, Germany, China, and Australia, and we sell our products in more than 100 countries. As a result, our financial results
have been, and could be, significantly affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic
conditions in the foreign markets in which we distribute our products. Our operating results are exposed to changes in exchange rates
between the U. S. dollar and many other currencies, including the Euro, British Pound sterling, Canadian dollar, Australian dollar
and Chinese Renminbi. When the U. S. dollar strengthens against a foreign currency, the value of anticipated sales in those
currencies decreases, and vice versa. Additionally, to the extent our foreign operations with functional currencies other than the U. S.
dollar transact business in countries other than the United States, exchange rate changes between two foreign currencies could
ultimately impact us. Finally, because we report in U. S. dollars on a consolidated basis, foreign currency exchange fluctuations
could have a translation impact on our financial position. To mitigate the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates,
we may enter into derivative transactions from time to time, such as forward contracts and foreign currency options. There were no
active foreign currency derivative instruments as of December 3429 , 2023-2024 . During 2023-2024 , we recognized a $ 4923 . 2-7
million deerease-increase in our accumulated other comprehensive loss — foreign currency translation adjustment account compared
with fiscal year January=5-2023, primarily due to the strengthening-weakening of the Euro , Chinese Renminbi, and Australian
dollar against the U. S —dollar ##2023- partially offset by the weakening-strengthening of the British Pound sterling Australian
deHar-and-Chinese-Renminbtagainst the U. S. dollar. Sensitivity Analysis For purposes of specific risk analysis, we use sensitivity
analysis to measure the impact that market risk may have on the fair values of our market- sensitive instruments. To perform
sensitivity analysis, we assess the risk of loss in fair values associated with the impact of hypothetical changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates on market- sensitive instruments. The market value of instruments affected by interest rate and
foreign currency exchange rate risk is computed based on the present value of future cash flows as impacted by the changes in the
rates attributable to the market risk being measured. The discount rates used for the present value computations were selected based
on market interest and foreign currency exchange rates in effect at December 3+29 , 2623-2024 . The values that result from these
computations are then compared with the market values of the financial instruments. The differences are the hypothetical gains or
losses associated with each type of risk. Interest Rate Risk As discussed above, our Facility is comprised of a combination of term
loan and revolving loan borrowings. The following table summarizes our market risks associated with our variable rate debt
obligations under the Facility and fixed rate Senior Notes debt as of December 34-29 , 2023-2024 . For debt obhgatrons the table
presents principal cash flows by year of maturity. Rate- Sensitive Liabiities20242025202620272028FotalFair—--
Liabilities2025202620272028TotalFair Value (in thousands) Long- term Debt: Variable Rate $ 482 8;-572-$ 482 85725 84, 600
5728959425 — $ 4245 658564 $ 1215, 658-564 Fixed Rate — — ——300, 000 300, 000 284294 , 99+-738 Our weighted
average interest rate for our outstanding borrowings under the Facility as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;-2623-and
January1- 2023 was 5. 62 % and 6. 61 Y%-and-5-—F8-"%, respectively. An increase in our effective interest rate of 1 % on our variable
rate debt would increase annual interest expense by approximately $ 0. 1 —2-million. We will continue to review our exposure to
interest rate fluctuations and evaluate whether we should eertirte-te-manage such exposures through any future interest rate swap
transactions. The carrying value of the Company’ s borrowings under our Facility approximates fair value as the Facility bears
variable interest rates that are similar to existing market rates. Based on a hypothetical immediate 100 basis point increase in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, the fair value of our fixed rate long- term debt would be impacted by a net decrease of $
+-10 . 6-0 million. Conversely, a 100- basis point decrease in interest rates would result in a net increase in the fair value of our fixed
rate long- term debt of $ +#2-6 . 2-6 million. Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk As of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , a 10 %
decrease or increase in the levels of forergn currency exchange rates against the U S. dollar, Wrth all other Varlables held constant,
would result in a respectlve decrease A-th v A Re h-a

app pithenor a-increase in the farr value of our financial mstruments ofappfexmafel-y—‘s
-1-4-12 8—6 mllhon —respeet-wel-y— As the 1mpact of offsetting changes in the fair market value of our net foreign investments is not
included in the sensitivity model, these results are not indicative of our actual exposure to foreign currency exchange risk. ITEM 8.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA INTERFACE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (in thousands, except per share data) FISCAL YEAR 202326222024 Net-202420232022Net
sales $ 1,315,658 $ 1, 261, 498 $ 1, 297, 919 $45266;398-Cost of sates820-- sales832 , 710 820 , 429 860, 186 #674-665-Gross
profitdd-profitd82 , 948 441 , 069 437, 733 432;-733-Selling, general and administrative expenses339-expenses348 , 542 339 , 049
324, 190 324;3+5-Restructuring, asset impairment, other (gains) and charges — (2, 502) 1, 965 3;-624-Goodwill and intangible asset
impairment charge — — 36, 180 —Operating ineemet+04-incomel34 , 406 104 , 522 75, 398 +04;79FInterest expense3t—
expense23 , 205 31 , 787 29, 929 29;-68+Other (income) expense, retd— net (2, 353) 9 . 081 3, 552 2483-Income before income
ax expense63-expensell13, 554 63 , 654 41, 917 #2-633-Income tax expensel9-expense26, 608 19 , 137 22, 357 +7-399-Net
income $ 86,946 $ 44,517 $ 19, 560 $55;234-Earnings per share — basic $ 1.49 $ 0. 77 $ 0. 33 $6-94-Earnings per share — diluted
$1.48$0.76 % 0. 33 $08-94-Common shares outstanding — basic58, 282 58, 092 58, 865 58;-:9H-Common shares outstanding —
diluted58, 871 58, 335 58, 865 58;-9H-See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. INTERFACE, INC. AND
SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FISCAL YEAR 202320222024 Net
202420232022Net income $ 86,946 $ 44, 517 § 19, 560 $55;:234-Other comprehensive (loss) income fess)-, after tax: Foreign
currency translation adjustmentt9--- adjustment (23, 727) 19 , 185 (38, 334 340, H0-) Reclassification from accumulated other
comprehensive loss — discontinued cash flow hedge749---- hedge — 749 1, 973 3;468-Pension liability adjustment ( 5, 818) (6, 468)
26, 340 +5;-460-Other comprehensive (loss) income (408829, 545 ) 13, 466 (10, 021 H24242-) Comprehensive income $ 57, 401 $
57,983 $ 9, 539 $33;-992-CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (in thousands, except par values) END OF FISCAL YEAR
20232022ASSETS-20242023ASSETS Current assets Cash and cash equivalents $ 99,226 $ 110, 498 $97,-564-Accounts receivable,
aett63-netl 71, 135 163 . 386 482,807 Inventories, aet279-net260, 581 279 , 079 366;327-Prepaid expenses and other current
assets30-assets33 , 355 30 . 895 36;339-Total current assets583-assets564 , 297 583 | 858 6+#-03FProperty, plant and equipment,
net29+-net282, 374 291 . 140 204-996-Operating lease right- of- use assets87— assets76 , 815 87 , 519 8+;-644-Deferred tax asset2t
asset24 , 624 21 , 721 1767-GeedwilH05-Goodwill99 , 887 105 , 448 +62,4+FIntangible assets, net56-netd8, 273 56 , 255 59;
F#8-Other assets84-assets74 , 546 84 | 154 89:-884-Total assets $ 1, 170, 816 $ 1, 230, 095 $45266;-503-LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’” EQUITY Current liabilities Accounts payable § 68,943 $ 62, 912 $78;264-Accrued expensest30-expenses134
,996 130 , 890 +20,438-Current portion of operating lease liabilities12, 296 12, 347 H5-85FCurrent portion of long- term debt&
debt482 8 , 572 +0;2H-Total current hiabiities2+4-liabilities216 , 717 214 , 721 220:-476-1.ong- term debt468-debt302, 275 408 ,
641 540-603-Operating lease habitttes7S-liabilities68 , 092 78 | 269 72;-385-Deferred income taxes33-taxes31 , 822 33 | 832 38;
662-Other long- term Habilitiesé8-liabilities62 , 762 68 , 685 63;-526-Total Habilities804-liabilities681 , 668 804 , 148 904,966
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18) Shareholders’ equity Preferred stock, par value $ 1. 00 per share; 5, 000 shares
authorized; none issued or outstanding at December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023-andJanuary—+-, 2023 — — Common stock,
par value $ 0. 10 per share; 120, 000 shares authorized; 58, 304 and 58, 112 and-58;1086-shares issued and outstanding at December
29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 andFanuary+52023-, respectivelys, $H-830 5, 811 Additional paid- in eapitai252-capital261 ,
028 252 , 909 244;459-Retained eammgs%%@-earnmgs%s 441 320 833 2—7—8—639—Accumulated other Lomprehenblve loss — foreign
currency translation ( 143, 317) (119, 590 cHa 2 ¢ 9-)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — penSIOn liability ( 39 834) ( 34,01 6 )-9—7%4-8—) Total shareholders eqﬁﬁ-y42§—equlty489
148 425 , 947 364537 Total liabilities and shareholders” equity $ 1, 170, 816 $ 1, 230, 095 $4266;563-CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FISCAL YEAR 26232022202 HO0PERATING---- 2024202320220PERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 86,946 $ 44, 517 $ 19, 560 $-55;234-Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amertization49-amortization39 , 333 40 , 774 40, 337 46;345-Share- based compensation experse}d-expensel2 ,
907 10 , 265 8, 527 5;469+GaimHess-Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, retnet264 (2, 252) 4, 319 4,427
Loss on foreign subsidiary heutdattené-liquidation2 , 152 6 , 221 Bad debt expenseS3-expensel , 476 53 26 263)-Deferred
income taxes and-(3, 034) (10, 082) 10, 310 ether-Other (8, 869480 ) 43-1 . 273 3 44416~ 104 379-Amortization of acquired
intangible assets5, 172 5, 172 §, 038 5;-636-Goodwill and intangible asset impairment — — 36, 180 —Working capital changes:
Accounts reeetvable2t—- receivable (13, 872) 21, 798 (17, 489) 36;-096)nventortes3+ Inventories10 , 467 31 , 040 (49, 651
47-674-) Prepaid expenses and other current assets (3, 079) (302) 7, 020 £45:-806)-Accounts payable and accrued expenses
expenses18 , 178 (0, 443) (24, 220) #4492-Cash provided by operating aetivitiest42-activities148 , 430 142 , 034 43, 061 86;689
INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Capital expenditures ( 33, 788) ( 26, 107) (18, 437 H28;-07) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipmenté-equipmentl , 040 6 , 593 — Insurance proceeds from property casualty loss2, 374 — — Cash used in investing
activities ( 30,374) (19, 514) (18, 437 H28:07F-) FINANCING ACTIVITIES: Revolving loan berrewing96-borrowing34 , 243 90 ,
000 206, 031 #6;-8606-Revolving loan repayments ( 34, 243) (114, 381) (189, 281 HFH5566-) Term loan repayments ( 115, 213) ( 80,
927) (13, 191 3H66;485-) Repurchase of common stock — — (17, 171) —Dividends paid (2, 338) (2, 323) (2, 355 H2,362-) Tax
withholding payments for share- based compensation ( 4, 770) ( 1, 514) (402 393-) Debt issuance costs — — (1, 032 3H36-)
Finance lease payments (2, 913) (2, 419) (2, 089 H2;282-) Cash used in financing activities ( 125, 234) (111, 564) (19, 490 3665
§58-) Net cash (used in) provided by fased4m-operating, investing and financing aetivitiesto—- activities (7, 178) 10 , 956 5, 134
240¥-Effect of exchange rate changes on eashi— cash (4, 094) 1, 978 (4, 822 33;:56+) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: Net
(decrease) increase ( deerease-11,272 ) 12,934 312 (5,—89—19—Balance, beginning of year97-year110, 498 97 , 564 97, 252 +83;-053
Balance, end of year $ 99,226 $ 110, 498 $ 97, 564 $97252-NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTE
1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Nature of Operations Interface is a global flooring company
specializing in earberneuntral-carpet tile and resilient flooring, including luxury vinyl tile (“ LVT ”), and nora ® rubber flooring. The
Company manufactures modular carpet focusing on the high quality, designer—- design - oriented sector of the market, sources
resilient flooring including LVT from third parties and focuses on the same sector of the market, and provides specialized carpet
replacement, installation and maintenance services. The Company also manufactures and sells resilient rubber flooring. The
Company has determined that it has two operating and reportable segments — namely Americas (“ AMS ) which includes the United
States, Canada and Latin America geographic areas, and Europe, Africa, Asia and Australia (collectively “ EAAA ™). See Note 20
entitled “ Segment Information  for additional information. On November 20, 2022, we discovered a cybersecurity attack,




perpetrated by unauthorized third parties, affecting our IT systems (the “ Cyber Event ”). In response to this Cyber Event, we notified
law enforcement and took steps to supplement existing security monitoring, including scanning and protective measures. The
investigation of the Cyber Event was completed during 2023 . During 2024, we recovered $ 4. 8 million in business interruption
insurance proceeds, which are recognized as a benefit within other income / expense, net in the consolidated statements of
operations. During 2024, we also recovered $ 0. 8 million of costs from our cyber risk insurance, which are recorded as a
reduction of selling, general, and administrative expenses. The insurance claim for the Cyber Event is now closed . Principles
of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All of our
subsidiaries are wholly- owned, and we are not a party to any joint venture, partnership or other variable interest entity that would
potentially qualify for consolidation. All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated. Use of Estimates The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U. S. requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Examples include provisions for returns, bad debts, product claims reserves, inventory obsolescence and the length of product life
cycles, accruals associated with restructuring activities, income tax exposures and valuation allowances, and the carrying value of
goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. Actual results could vary from these estimates. Risks and
Uncertainties Global economic challenges, including the impacts of the Russia- Ukraine and-dsrael-Hamas-wars— war , inflation-the
conflict in the Middle East, and other conflicts around the globe . supply chain disruptions, potential government- imposed
tariffs, and the-slow macro environments pest-COVID-—9-reeevery-in China-certain geographical regions could cause economic
uncertainty and volatility. In connection with the Cyber Event discussed above, security breaches may expose us to fines and other
liabilities to the extent sensmve data stored in our IT systems mcludmg data related to customers, suppliers or employees, are
misappropriated —Asyp me-. The Company considered these
impacts and subsequent general uncertainties and volatlhty in the global economy on the assumptions and estimates used herein,
including the goodwill and intangible asset assessments and impairments discussed in Note 12 entitled “ Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. ” These uncertainties could result in a future material adverse effect to the Company’ s financial statements if
actual results differ from these estimates. Revenue Recognition Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized to depict the
transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. To achieve this core principle, the guidance provides that an entity should apply the following
steps: (1) identify the contract (s) with a customer; (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; (3) determine the
transaction price; (4) allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and (5) recognize revenue when, or
as, the entity satisfies a performance obligation. Revenue Recognized from Contracts with Customers Contracts with customers
typically take the form of invoices for purchase of materials from the Company. Customer payment terms vary by region and are
typically less than 60 days. The performance obligation is the delivery of these materials to the customer’ s control. Revenue from
the sale of modular carpet, resilient flooring, rubber flooring, and related products {FaeFilesinstallation-materials;ete)-was
approximately 98-97 % of the Company’ s total revenue in 2823-2024 , approximately 9798 % of the Company’ s total revenue in
2622-2023 , and approximately 98-97 % of the Company’ s total revenue in 26242022 . The revenue from sales of these products is
recognized upon shipment, or in certain cases, upon delivery to the customer. The transaction price for these sales is readily
identifiable. The remaining revenue of approximately 3 % for 2024, approximately 2 % for 2023, and approximately 3 % for 2022
Fandapproximately 2-%-for262+-was generated from the installation of carpet and other flooring- related material. For installation
projects underway, the Company recognized installation revenue over time based on a project cost input method as the customer
simultaneously received and consumed the benefit of the services. The installation of the carpet and related products is a separate
performance obligation from the sale of carpet. The majority of these projects are completed within five days of the start of
installation. The transaction price for these sale and installation contracts is readily determinable between flooring material and
installation services and typically is specifically identified in the contract with the customer. The Company has utilized the portfolio
approach to its contracts with customers, as its contracts with customers have similar characteristics, and it is reasonable to expect
that the effects from applying this approach are not materially different from applying the accounting standard to individual
contracts. The Company does not have any other significant revenue streams outside of these sales of flooring material, and the sale
and installation of flooring material, as described above. The Company does not record taxes collected from customers and remitted
to governmental authorities within revenues. The Company records such taxes collected as a liability on our consolidated balance
sheets. Performance Obligations As noted above, the Company primarily generates revenue through the sale of flooring material to
end users either upon shipment or upon arrival of the product at its destination. In these instances, there typically is no other
obligation to the customers other than the delivery of flooring material, with the exception of warranty. The Company does offer a
warranty to its customers which guarantees certain on- floor performance characteristics and warrants against manufacturing defects.
The warranty is not a service warranty, and there is no ability to separate the warranty obligation from the sale of the flooring or
purchase it separately. The Company’ s incidence of warranty claims is extremely low, with less than 0. 5 % of revenue in claims on
an annual basis for the last three fiscal years. Given the nature of the warranty as well as the financial impact, the Company has
determined that there is no need to identify this warranty as a separate performance obligation, and the Company accounts for
warranty on an accrual basis. For the Company’ s installation business, the sales of carpet and other flooring materials and
installation services are separate deliverables which under the revenue recognition requirements should be characterized as separate
performance obligations. The nature of the installation projects is such that the vast majority — an amount in excess of 85 % of these
installation projects — are completed in less than five days. The Company’ s largest installation customers are retail, education and
corporate customers, and these are on a project- by- project basis and are short- term installations. The Company has evaluated these
projects at the end of each reporting period and recorded revenue in accordance with the accounting standards for projects which
were underway as of the end of 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2824-. Costs to Obtain Contracts The Company pays sales commissions
to many of its sales personnel based upon their selling activity. These are direct costs associated with obtaining the contracts and are
expensed as the revenue is earned-recognized . As-these-These commissions become payable upon shipment (or in certain cases




delivery) of product 5h 38 G as-th &1 . There are no other material costs the Company incurs
as part of obtaining the sales contract Shlppmg and Handhng Shlpplng and handling fees billed to customers are classified in net
sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Shipping and handling costs incurred are classified in cost of sales in the
consolidated statements of operations. Advertising and Promotion The Company’ s advertising and promotional activities primarily
consist of product samples, printed materials, digital marketing, trade shows, and customer events. Advertising and promotional costs
are expensed when the advertising / promotional activity first takes place. Advertising and promotional expenses were $ 39. 2
million, $ 34. 6 millionand $ 31. 3 million ard-$28-4mithen-for the years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-, respectively, and
were recorded in selling, general and administrative (“ SG & A ) expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. Research
and Development Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and are included in SG & A expenses and cost of sales
in the consolidated statements of operations. Research and development expense includes costs associated with the development of
new products as well as the improvement and enhancement of existing products. Research and development expense was $ 15. 1
million, $ 17. 0 million, and $ 19. 1 million ;and-$49—3-milien-for the years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2624- respectively. Cash,
Cash Equivalents and Short- Term Investments Highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less are
classified as cash and cash equivalents. Investments with maturities greater than three months and less than one year are classified as
short- term investments. Significant concentrations of credit risk may arise from the Company’ s cash maintained at various banks, as
from time to time cash balances may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company did not hold any significant amounts of cash equivalents
and short- term investments at December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023-andFanuary+—, 2023. Supplemental Cash Flow
Information Cash payments for interest amounted to approximately $ 2822 . 8 million, $ 28. 8 million, and $ 25. | million ;and-$
22 9-millien-for the years 2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024- respectively. Income tax payments amounted to approximately $ 25-37 .
8 million, $ 25. 8 million and $ 31. 4 million and-$23—+-mitlien-for the years 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-2024-, respectively. During
the years 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and-20624-, the Company received income tax refunds of $ 3. 3 million, $ 2. 5 milliony;and $ 12 —4
mithonand-$5- 4 million, respectively. The Company maintains allowances for expected credit losses for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of customers to make required payments. Estimating the amount of future expected losses requires the Company to
consider historical losses from our customers, as well as current market conditions and future forecasts of our customers’ ability to
make payments for goods and services. By its nature, such an estimate is highly subjective, and it is possible that the amount of
accounts receivable that the Company is unable to collect may be different than the amount initially estimated. Inventories are
carried at the lower of cost (standards approximating the first- in, first- out method) or net realizable value. Costs included in
inventories are based on invoiced costs and / or production costs, as applicable. Included in production costs are material, direct labor
and allocated overhead. The Company writes down inventories for the difference between the carrying value of the inventories and
their estimated net realizable value. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional
write- downs may be required. Management estimates its reserves for inventory obsolescence by continuously examining its
inventories to determine if there are indicators that carrying values exceed net realizable values. Experience has shown that
significant indicators that could require the need for additional inventory write- downs are the age of the inventory, the length of its
product life cycles, anticipated demand for the Company’ s products, and current economic conditions. While management believes
that adequate write- downs for inventory obsolescence have been made in the consolidated financial statements, consumer tastes and
preferences may continue to change, and the Company could experience additional inventory write- downs in the future. Leases The
Company records a right- of- use asset and lease liability for operating and finance leases once a contract that contains a lease is
executed and the Company has the right to control the use of the leased asset. The right- of- use asset is measured as the present
value of the lease obligation. The discount rate used to calculate the present value of the lease liability is the Company’ s incremental
borrowing rate, which is based on the estimated rate for a fully collateralized borrowing that fully amortizes over a similar lease term
at the commencement date and for the applicable geographical region. The Company made an accounting policy election to exclude
leases with an initial term of 12 months or less from the calculation of the right- of- use asset and lease liability recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets. These leases primarily represent month- to- month operating leases for equipment where we were
reasonably certain that we would not elect an option to extend the lease. The Company also made an accounting policy election not to
separate lease and non- lease components for all asset classes and accounts for the lease payments as a single component. Property,
Plant and Equipment and Long- Lived Assets Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight- line method over the following estimated useful lives: buildings and improvements — ten to forty years; equipment, furniture
and fixtures — three to twelve years; and computer software — three to six years. Certain manufacturing equipment in our Weinheim
manufacturing facility have estimated useful lives up to twenty- five years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter
of the asset life or lease term, generally between three to twelve years. Interest costs for the construction / development of certain
long- term assets are capitalized and amortized over the related assets’ estimated useful lives. Total depreciation expense amounted to
approximately $ 34. 3 million, $ 35. 9 million, and $ 36. 3 million ;-ard-$-4H-—9-mitien-for the years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and
2021, respectively. Long- lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the expected future undiscounted cash flow is less than the carrying amount of
the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the asset. Repair and maintenance costs
are charged to operating expense as incurred. In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the Company tests goodwill for
impairment annually and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the
fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. During the fourth quarters of 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2024-, the Company
performed the annual goodwill impairment test. The Company tests goodwill at the reporting unit level, which is an operating
segment or one level below an operating segment. In performing the impairment testing, the Company prepared valuations of
reporting units on both a market comparable methodology and an income methodology, and those valuations were compared with the
respective carrying values of the reporting units to determine whether any goodwill impairment existed. In preparing the valuations,
past, present and future expectations of performance were considered. See Note 12 entitled “ Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
for additional information. Trademark and trade name intangible assets acquired in connection with the nora acquisition are not
subject to amortization, but are tested for impairment annually and between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change




that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the intangible asset below its carrying amount. For the annual tests performed
in 2024, 2023, and 2022 ;-and2021-, the Company prepared valuations of the intangible assets using the present value of cash flows
under the relief from royalty method, which were compared to the carrying value of intangible assets to determine whether any
impairment existed. See Note 12 entitled “ Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets ” for additional information. The Company’ s other
intangible assets primarily consist of developed technology that is amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life of
7 years. The Company typically provides limited warranties with respect to certain attributes of its carpet products (for example,
warranties regarding excessive surface wear, edge ravel and static electricity) for periods ranging from ten to twenty years,
depending on the particular carpet product and the environment in which it is to be installed. Similar limited warranties are provided
on certain attributes of its rubber and LVT products, typically for a period of 5 to 15 years. The Company typically warrants that
services performed will be free from defects in workmanship for a period of one year following completion. In the event of a breach
of warranty, the remedy typically is limited to repair of the problem or replacement of the affected product. The Company records a
provision related to warranty costs based on historical experience and future expectations and periodically adjusts these provisions to
reflect changes in actual experience. Warranty and sales allowance reserves amounted to $ 4-5 . 3 million and $ 2-4 . -3 million as of
December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023-andJanunary+-, 2023, respectively, and are included in accrued expenses in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Income Taxes The Company accounts for income taxes under an asset and liability
approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that
have been recognized in the Company’ s financial statements or tax returns. In estimating future tax consequences, the Company
generally considers all expected future events other than enactments of changes in tax laws or rates. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates will be recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment date. The
Company has elected to account for tax effects of the global intangible low- taxed income (*“ GILTI ) in the period when incurred,
and therefore has not provided any deferred tax impacts for these provisions in its consolidated financial statements. The Company
records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will expire before realization of the benefit or that future deductibility is not probable. The ultimate realization of the
deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable income of the appropriate character in the future. This
requires us to use estimates and make assumptions regarding significant future events such as the taxability of entities operating in the
various taxing jurisdictions. For uncertain tax positions, the Company applies the provisions of relevant authoritative guidance,
which requires application of a “ more likely than not ” threshold to the recognition and derecognition of tax positions. The
Company’ s ongoing assessments of the more likely than not outcomes of tax authority examinations and related tax positions require
significant judgment and can increase or decrease the Company’ s effective tax rate as well as impact operating results. For further
information, see Note 17 entitled “ Income Taxes. ” Fair Values of Financial Instruments Fair values of cash and cash equivalents and
short- term debt approximate cost due to the short period of time to maturity. Fair values of debt are based on quoted market prices or
pricing models using current market rates and classified as level 2 within the fair value hierarchy. See Note 5 entitled “ Fair Value of
Financial Instruments * for further information. Translation of Foreign Currencies The financial position and results of operations of
most of the Company’ s foreign subsidiaries are measured using local currencies as the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of
these subsidiaries are translated into U. S. dollars at the exchange rate in effect at each year- end. Income and expense items are
translated each month at average monthly exchange rates throughout the year. The resulting translation adjustments are recorded in
the foreign currency translation adjustment account. In the event of a divestiture or substantial liquidation of a foreign subsidiary, the
related foreign currency translation results are reclassified from equity to income. Foreign exchange translation gains (losses) were $
(23.7) million, $ 19. 2 million, and $ (38. 3 ymithenand-$-(46—1) million for the years 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2624-,
respectively. Earnings per Share Basic earnings per share is computed based on the average number of common shares outstanding,
including participating securities. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential increase in average common shares outstanding
that would result from share- based awards or the assumed exercise of outstanding stock options, calculated using the treasury stock
method. See Note 15 entitled “ Earnings Per Share ™ for additional information. Share- Based Compensation The Company has
share- based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 14 entitled *“ Shareholders' Equity. ” The
Company recognizes expense related to its restricted stock, restricted share unit and performance share grants based on the grant date
fair value of the shares awarded, as determined by its market price at date of grant. Net pension expense recorded is based on, among
other things, assumptions about the discount rate, estimated return on plan assets and salary increases. While the Company believes
these assumptions are reasonable, changes in these and other factors and differences between actual and assumed changes in the
present value of liabilities or assets of the Company’ s plans above certain thresholds could cause net annual expense to increase or
decrease materially from year to year. The actuarial assumptions used in the Company’ s salary continuation plan and foreign defined
benefit plans reporting are reviewed periodically and compared with external benchmarks to ensure that they appropriately account
for our future pension benefit obligation. The expected long- term rate of return on plan assets assumption is based on weighted
average expected returns for each asset class. Expected returns reflect a combination of historical performance analysis and the
forward- looking views of the financial markets, and include input from actuarles investment service ﬁrms and 1nvestment managers.
Reclassifications Certain reclassifications to Prier-prior year information
in-the-eonselidated-balaneesheets-have been reelassified-made in the consolidated statements of cash ﬂows to conform w-rt-h—to the
current period presentation. Addittenally;prier-The prevnously reported lme item deferred income taxes and other ” was
separated into two line 1tems in the current period af 6 p p y :

prcscntatlon of the consolldated statements of cash ﬂows to provnde addltlonal mformatlon These rccla551ﬁcat10ns had no effect
on tetal-assets-cash provided by operating activities as previously reported . Reclassifications were also made to prior year
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities and the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of gross
unrecognized tax benefits presented in Note 17 entitled “ Income Taxes ” to conform to the current period presentation. See
Note 17 entitled “ Income Taxes > for additional information . The Company’ s fiscal year is the 52 or 53 week period ending on
the Sunday nearest December 31. All references herein to “ 2023-2024 , ” ©“ 2023, ” and “ 2022 Z-and-<2621-, ” mean the fiscal



years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023, andJantary2,2022;respectively. Fiscal years 2024,
2023 7and 2022 and202+-were each comprised of 52 weeks. NOTE 2 — RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements — Adopted In Jud~November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“

FASB ”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ ASU ) 2023-63-07 , * Segment Reporting Presentation-ofFinanetal-Statements

( T()plL %95—280 )—l-ﬁeefne- Improvements to Reportable -Statemeﬁt—--- Segment Dlsclosures —Repefﬁﬂg—Gem-pfehenﬁve—l-ﬂeeme

HE- Thlb ASU ameﬂds—v&ﬂeus—pafagr@hs—requlres addltlonal dlsclosures in annual and mterlm perlods for sngmﬁcant

segment expenses included in thc measure aeceountingeodifieationpursuant-to-the-issuanee-of Commission-Staff Aeeounting
Bulletirsegment profit provided to the chief operating decision maker (“ SAB-CODM ) number+26-. Disclosure of other

segment items by reportable segment as well as a description of its composition is also required . The new ASU-prevides

elarifring-ouidance is effectlve for annual perlods begmmng after December 15 related-te-employee-andnen—employee-share-

based-paymentaceounting-, awards-2023, and for interim periods beginning after
December 15, 2024 . The Company adopted the prov1s1ons of ASU 2023- 83—~wvas-effeetive-upen-issuanee-07 for the year ended
December 29 2024 (see Note 20 entltled “ Segment Informatlon ”). Thc dd()ptl()n ofthis ASU-did not have a mdtCl‘ldl 1mpdct ot

statements. Recemly Issued Aeeounlmo Plonouneemenls — Nol Yel Adopted In November 2024 the FASB issued ASU 2024- 03, «
Income Statement Reporting- Comprehensive Income- Expense Disaggregation (Topic 220- 40) ”. This ASU requires public
entities to provide additional footnote disclosures to disaggregate the cost and expense line items presented in the income
statement into specific categories including (a) purchases of inventory; (b) employee compensation; (c) depreciation: and (d)
intangible asset amortization. The ASU also requires qualitative disclosure of other relevant expense categories not separately
disclosed, the total amount of selling expenses, and the definition of selling expenses in annual reporting periods. The new
guidance in ASU 2024- 03 is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026. In January 2025, the FASB
issued ASU 2025- 01 to clarify the interim reporting period effective date for ASU 2024- 03. The provisions of ASU 2024- 03
are effective for interim periods within annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2027. Early adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this ASU to its consolidated financial statements. [n December
2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023- 09, “ Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. ”” This ASU requires
public entities on an annual basis to disclose a rate reconciliation with explicit categories, as outlined in the ASU, and requires
additional disclosures for reconciling items that meet certain quantitative thresholds. Other disclosures include disaggregation of
income taxes paid, pre- tax income, and income tax expense. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted. FThe-Company-We are currently assessing the updated guidance; however, it is
eﬁfreﬂt-l-y—eva-}u&t-m-g—t-he—not expected to have a materlal 1mpdct efthisASH-0 our consolldated ﬁnanc1al statements -rts—meefﬁe

The Company generates revenue from sales of modular carpet, 1e5111cnt flooring, rubber ﬂommg dnd other flooring- related material,
and from the installation of carpet and other flooring- related material. A summary of these revenue streams, as a percentage of net
sales, for fiscal years 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-2024-is a follows: Fiscal ¥ear2062320222021 Revente—--
Year202420232022Revenue from the sale of flooring matertald8-material97 % 98 % 97 %98 Revenue from installation of
flooring matertal2-material3 % 2 % 3 %2-% Disaggregation of Revenue For fiscal years 2024, 2023 s-and 2022 and-202+- revenue
from the Company’ s customers is broken down by geography as follows: Fiscal %&Geegraphy%@%%@%%%@%—lﬁneﬁe&sé&----
YearGeography202420232022Americas60 .9 % 58 . 4 % 58. 0 % §4-Europe28 36 % -Eufepe%e-30 1 9%29.2 % 34=—F%Asia-
Paeiftet-Pacificl0. 5 % 11 . 5 % 12. 8 %+4-6-% Revenue from the Company’ s customers in the Americas corresponds to the
AMS reportable segment, and the EAAA reportable segment includes revenue from the Europe and Asia- Pacific geographies. See
Note 20 entitled “ Segment Information > for additional information. NOTE 4 — RECEIVABLES The Company has adopted credit
policies and standards intended to reduce the inherent risk associated with potential increases in its concentration of credit risk due to
increasing trade receivables. Management believes that credit risks are further moderated by the diversity of its end customers and
geographic sales areas. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and requires
collateral as deemed necessary. The Company maintains allowances for expected credit losses resulting from the inability of
customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of its customers were to deteriorate, resulting in a change in their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. As of December 29, 2024, and December 3 | ;2023;-and-Jantary
1+, 2023, the allowance for expected credit losses amounted to $ 3. 9-8 million and $ 4-3 . 0 million, respectively, for all accounts
receivable of the Company. NOTE 5 — FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Accounting standards establish a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure estimated fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under applicable accounting standards are
described below: Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or liabilities. Level 2 Inputs to the valuation methodology include: ¢ quoted prices for similar assets in active



markets; ¢ quoted prices for identical or similar assets in inactive markets; * inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset; and * inputs that are derived principally or corroborated by observable data by correlation or other. Level 3 Prices or
valuations that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable. A financial instrument’ s level
within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The
following table presents the carrying values and estimated fair values, including the level within the fair value hierarchy, of certain
financial instruments: December 29, 2024December 3 | ;-2623Fanuary——, 2023Carrying ValueFair Value (Level 1) Fair Value (Level
2) Carrying ValueFair Value (Level 1) Fair Value (Level 2) (in thousands) Assets: Company- owned life insurance $ 22, 911 $ — $§
22,911 $ 22, 788 § — $ 22, 788 $22-6+6-$—$22-61+6-Deferred compensation investments28-investments30 , 521 8, 697 21, 824
28 .4179,200 19, 217 24-6401H5-60316,-607 Liabilities (1): Borrowings under Syndicated Credit Facility (2) $ 5,564 $ — $ 5,
564 $ 121,658 8 —$ 121, 658 $226;332-$—$226:332-5. 50 % Senior Notes due 2028 (3) 300, 000 — 28+-294 , 99+-738 300,
000 — 248-281 , 652991 (1) Carrying values are presented gross, excluding the impact of unamortized debt issuance costs and
including amounts presented as current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. (2) Unamortized debt issuance costs associated
with term loan borrowings under the Syndicated Credit Facility, recorded as a reduction of long- term debt in the consolidated
balance sheets, were not material as of December 29, 2024, and were $ 1. 0 million and-$4-—9-milhenras of December 31, 2023 and
January+2023;respeetively- (3) Unamortized debt issuance costs associated with the Senior Notes, recorded as a reduction of long-
term debt in the consolidated balance sheets, were $ 2. 8 million and $ 3. 4 million and-$-4—2-miHiernas of December 29, 2024 and
December 31 ;72023-andJanunary+-, 2023, respectively. Company- Owned Life Insurance The fair value of Company- owned life
insurance is measured on a readily determinable cash surrender value on a recurring basis. Company- owned life insurance is
recorded at fair value within other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of Company- owned life
insurance are recognized in SG & A expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. Deferred Compensation Investments
Assets associated with the Company’ s nonqualified savings plans are held in a rabbi trust and consist of investments in mutual funds
and insurance contracts. The fair value of the mutual funds is derived from quoted prices in active markets. The fair value of the
insurance contracts is based on observable inputs related to the performance measurement funds that shadow the deferral investment
allocations made by participants in the nonqualified savings plans. These investments are recorded at fair value within other assets in
the consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the fair value of the investments associated with the nonqualified savings plans are
recognized in SG & A expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. See Note 19 entitled “ Employee Benefit Plans ” for
additional information on the Company’ s nonqualified savings plans. Syndicated Credit Facility and Senior Notes The Company’ s
liabilities for borrowings under the Syndicated Credit Facility (the “ Facility ) and 5. 50 % Senior Notes due 2028 (the *“ Senior
Notes ) are not recorded at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. The carrying value of borrowings under the Facility
approximates fair value as the Facility bears variable interest rates that are similar to existing market rates. The fair value of the
Senior Notes is derived using quoted prices for similar instruments. Other Assets and Liabilities Due to the short maturity of cash and
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, their carrying values approximate fair value. See Note
19 entitled “ Employee Benefit Plans  for additional information on defined benefit plan assets. NOTE 6 — INVENTORIES
Inventories are summarized as follows: End of Fiscal Year 26232022-20242023 (in thousands) Finished goods $ 192, 705 $ 201, 821
$269,478-Work- in- preeess20-process18 , 552 20 , 892 45;-463-Raw matertals56-materials49 , 324 56 , 366 85386 Inventories,
net $ 260,581 $ 279, 079 $3086;32FReserves for inventory obsolescence amounted to $ 38. 3 million and $ 34. 0 million and-$28-
S-millien-as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 1 72023-andJanuwary+-, 2023, respectively, and have been netted against
amounts presented above. NOTE 7 — PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Property, plant and equipment consisted of the
following: End of Fiscal Year 20232022-20242023 (in thousands) Land $ 14, 844 § 15, 810 $3+6;367Buildings and
improvementst62-improvements159 , 741 162 , 359 +69:-376-Equipment, furniture and fixtures (1) 533, 314 533, 418 5H5;946
Computer software66, 226 66, 792 66—8%6—C0nstmct10n in- progress (2) 21,394 21, 577 24-795 . 866-519 799, 956 788;485
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3) ( 513, 145) ( 508, 816) (499—599)—Pr0pe1“[y, plant and equipment, net § 282, 374 $§
291, 140 $297976-(1) Includes $ 13. 1 million and $ | | —9-millien-and-$9- 9 million of leased equipment for 2024 and 2023 and
2622-, respectively. (2) Construetion—Primarily represents manufacturing equipment not yet placed in service —progress-eosts
afe—pfeseﬂfed-ae of December 29 a—sq&&r&te—asset—e&tegeﬁ—Ametmfs—fe{—}GQ—Q—2024 and December 31 , 2023 thatsvere-previeusly
aeh-as errreclasstfie eoffort he-etrren ot (3)Includes$5 0 million and $ 4. 7
mrl-l-teﬂ—a—nd—$—4—l—m11hon of accumulated amortlzatlon on leased equlpment for 2024 and 2023 and2622-, respectively. Assets
Disposed On September 8, 2021, the Company announced a restructuring plan that involved the closure of its manufacturing facility
in Thailand and committed to a plan to sell the Thailand facility in connection with this restructuring plan. See Note 16 entitled “
Restructuring and Other ” for additional information. During the second quarter of 2023, the Company completed the sale of the
Thailand facility for a selling price of $ 6. 6 million and recognized a gain of § 2. 7 million, which is recorded in restructuring, asset
impairment, other (gains) and charges in the consolidated statements of operations and is attributable to the EAAA reportable
segment. The Company determined that the Thailand facility sale did not meet the criteria for classification as discontinued
operations. NOTE 8§ — ACCRUED EXPENSES Accrued expenses are summarized as follows: End of Fiscal Year 20232622
20242023 (in thousands) Compensation $ 97, 190 $ 87, 265 $80;245-Interest1, 276 1, 338 2,933 Restrueturing—456TFaxestS
Taxes13, 762 18 , 300 +%-092-Accrued purehasesS-purchases3 , 888 5. 141 Warranty and sales allowances5, 254 4, 669
W&ff&ﬂt-r&ﬁd-sa-}es—a-l-lew&ﬂeeﬂ,%w 2;-091+-Other14-Otherl3 , 626 14 , 544 43;-642-Accrued expenses $ 134,996 $ 130, 890 $426;
13E-NOTE 9 — LONG- TERM DEBT Long- term debt consisted of the following: December 29, 2024December 3 | ;-2623January—+
, 20230utstanding Principallnterest Rate (1) Outstanding Principallnterest Rate (1) (in thousands) (in thousands) Syndicated Credit
Facﬂlty +Revolving-(2) Term loan borrowings $ 5,564 5. 62 % $ 121 24;250-529-% Fermloan-borrowingst2t-, 658 6. 61
%5262,-682-5-84-"% Total borrowings under Syndicated Credit Faethtyt2+-FacilityS , 564 5. 62 % 121 , 658 6. 61 %226;:332-5-78
% 5. 50 % Senior Notes due 2028300, 000 5. 50 % 300, 000 5. 50 % Total debt424-debt305, 564 421 , 658 526332 ess:
Unamortized debt issuance costs ( 2, 807) (4, 445 H6;H8-) Total debt, retd+7net302, 757 417 , 213 526; 244 ess: Current portion
of long- term debt ( 482) (8, 572 HF0;24H) Total long- term debt, net $ 302,275 $ 408, 641 $540,-803-(1) Represents the weighted
average rate of interest for borrowings under the Syndicated Credit Facility and the stated rate of interest for the 5. 50 % Senior




Notes due 2028, without the effect of debt issuance costs . (2) The Syndicated Credit Facility also includes a multicurrency
revolving loan facility as discussed below. There were no revolving loan borrowings outstanding as of December 29, 2024 or
December 31, 2023 . The Company’ s Facility provides to the Company U. S. denominated and multicurrency term loans and
provides to the Company and certain of its subsidiaries a multicurrency revolving credit facility. At December 3+29 , 2023-2024 , the
Facility provided to the Company and certain of its subsidiaries a multicurrency revolving loan facility up to $ 300. 0 million, as well
as other U. S. denominated and multicurrency term loans. At December 3429 , 20623-2024 , the Company had available borrowing
capacrty of $ 2—98—299 4—3 million under the revolv1ng loan facrllty Slgmﬁcant Fac111ty Amendments eﬂ—Beeem-ber—Q—ZOQ—l—t-he

2 hoFe-atry-Hiterestrate A-the—tttre-corses e-avattable: nOctober 14, 2022 theCompanyenteredrntoahfth
amcndment to its Facility. Thc fifth amcndmcnt pr0V1ded for, among other changes, the following amendments to the Facility: * the
amendment of the maturity date of the Facility to October 2027; and » amendments to replace the LIBOR benchmark interest rates
apphcable to all loans denomlnated inU. S. dollars wrth the SOFR benchmark 1ntere9t rates. Base rate -I-n—eeﬂﬁeeﬂeﬁ—wrth—t-he—ﬁft-h

Facility, represent short - tcrm borrowmgs atre-a ; atree-costs-as d w1thfevel=v'mg
lean-borrewings-applicable interest rates determlned was— as feeefded-m-et-heﬁ the assets—m—greater of the eeﬂsehdated—ba-}aﬁee
sheets-federal funds rate plus a margin, the prime rate, or SOFR plus a margin . Interest on base rate loans is charged at varying
rates computed by applying a margin ranging from 0. 25 % to 2. 00 %, depending on the Company’ s consolidated net leverage ratio
as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter. Interest on SOFR- based and alternative currency loans are charged at varying rates
computed by applying a margin ranging from 1. 25 % to 3. 00 % over the applicable SOFR rate or alternative currency rate,
depending on the Company’ s consolidated net leverage ratio as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter. In addition, the
Company pays a commitment fee ranging from 0. 20 % to 0. 40 % per annum (depending on the Company’ s consolidated net
leverage ratio as of the most recently completed fiscal quarter) on the unused portion of the Facility. The Facility contains standard
and customary covenants for agreements of this type, including various reporting, affirmative and negative covenants. Among other
things, these covenants limit the Company’ s and its subsidiaries’ ability to:  pay dividends or repurchase the Company’ s stock (in
excess of certain specified amounts); ¢ repay other indebtedness prior to maturity unless the Company meets certain conditions; and
The Facility also requires the Company to remain in compliance with the following financial covenants as of the end of each fiscal
quarter, based on the Company’ s consolidated results for the year then ended: If the Company breaches or fails to perform any of
the affirmative or negative covenants under the Facility, or if other specified events occur (such as a bankruptcy or similar event or a
change of control of Interface, Inc. or certain subsidiaries, or if the Company breaches or fails to perform any covenant or agreement
contained in any instrument relating to any of the Company’ s other indebtedness exceeding $ 20 million), after giving effect to any
applicable notice and right to cure provisions, an event of default will exist. If an event of default exists and is continuing, the
lenders’ Administrative Agent may, and upon the written request of a specified percentage of the lender group shall: Pursuant to a
Second Amended and Restated Security and Pledge Agreement, the Facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of the
Company and its domestic subsidiaries (subject to exceptions for certain immaterial subsidiaries), including all of the stock of the
Company’ s domestic subsidiaries and up to 65 % of the stock of certain #s-first—tter-material foreign subsidiaries. If an event of
default occurs under the Facility, the lenders’ Administrative Agent may, upon the request of a specified percentage of lenders,
exercise remedies with respect to the collateral, including, in some instances, foreclosing mortgages on real estate assets, taking
possession of or selling personal property assets, collecting accounts receivable, or exercising proxies to take control of the pledged
stock of domestic and certain first—ter-material foreign subsidiaries. As of beth-December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 and
January1520623- the Company had $ 0. 7 million and $ 1. 6 million , respectively, in lctters of credit outstanding under the Facility.
Under the Facility, the Company is required to make quarterly amortization payments of the term loan borrowings. The amortization
payments are due on the last day of the calendar quarter. The Company is in compliance with all covenants under the Facility as of
December 29, 2024, and anticipates that it will remain in compliance with the covenants for the foreseeable future. As of December
31429 , 2023-2024 , the Company had $ 300. 0 million of Senior Notes outstanding. The Senior Notes bear an interest rate at 5. 50 %
per annum and mature on December 1, 2028. Interest is paid semi- annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year. Redemption On
or after December 1, 2023, the Company may redeem the Senior Notes, in whole or in part, at any time at the redemption prices
listed below, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but excluding) the redemption date, if redeemed during the 12- month
period commencing on December 1 of the years set forth below: PeriodRedemption Price2023102. 750 % 2024101. 375 % 2025 and
thereafter100. 000 % In addition, the Company had the option to redeem up to 35 % of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior
Notes betore December 1, 2023 with the proceeds of certam equlty otferlngs ata redemptron prlce of 105. 50 % plus accrued and

p&rt—bef'ere—Deeember—l—EG%—?r— If thc Company experiences a chang,c of control thc Company w111 be rcqulrcd to offcr to purchasc
the Senior Notes at 101 % of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest to (but excluding) the date of repurchase. The

indenture governing the Senior Notes contains standard and customary covenants for agreements of this type, including various
reporting, affirmative and negative covenants. Among other things, these covenants limit the Company’ s and its subsidiaries’ ability
to: « incur additional indebtedness; ¢ declare or pay dividends, redeem stock or make other distributions to shareholders; * make
investments; * create liens on their assets or use their assets as security in other transactions; ¢ enter into mergers, consolidations or



sales, transfers, leases or other dispositions of all or substantially all of the Company’ s assets; * enter into certain transactions with
affiliates; and * sell or transfer certain assets. The Company is in compliance with all covenants under the indenture governing the
Senior Notes and anticipates that it will remain in compliance with the covenants for the foreseeable future. If the Company breaches
or fails to perform any of the affirmative or negative covenants under the indenture governing the Senior Notes, or if other specified
events occur (such as a bankruptcy or similar event), after giving effect to any applicable notice and right to cure provisions, an event
of default will exist. If an event of default exists and is continuing, the terms of the indenture permit the trustee or the holders of at
least 25 % in principal amount of outstanding Senior Notes to declare the principal, premium, if any, and accrued but unpaid interest
on all the Senior Notes to be due and payable. Debt Issuance Costs Debt issuance costs associated with the Company’ s Senior Notes
and term loans under the Facility are reflected as a reduction of long- term debt in accordance with applicable accounting standards.
These fees are amortized straight- line, which approximates the effective interest method, and over the life of the outstanding
borrowing, the debt balance will increase by the same amount as the fees that are amortized. As of December 29, 2024 and
December 3 | ;2023-andFanuary+— 2023, the unamortized debt issuance costs recorded as a reduction of long- term debt were $ 2. 8
million and $ 4. 4 mitlienand-$-6—million, respectively. Expenses related to such costs for the years 2024, 2023 and 2022 and
2024+-amounted to $ 1. 7 million, $ 1. 7 million, and $ 1. 2 mithenand-$+—6-million, respectively. Debt issuance costs related to the
issuance of revolving debt, which include underwriting, legal and other direct costs, net of accumulated amortization, were $ 1. 1
million and $ 1. 4 million and-$+—8-miten-, as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 1 ;72023-andFanunary—+, 2023, respectively.
These amounts are included in other assets in the Company’ s consolidated balance sheets. The Company amortizes these costs over
the life of the related debt. Expenses related to such costs amounted to $ 0. 4 million for each of the years 2024, 2023 and 2022 and
2024 Future Maturities The aggregate maturities of borrowings fer-each-ofthefivefiseal yearssubsequentte2023-arc as follows:
Fiscal YearAmount (in thousands) 2024-$-8-572-20258-- 2025 ;-572-$ 482 20268-2026482 20274 , 600 572202795:942-7028300,
000 Total debt $ 424-305 , 658-564 Total long- term debt in the consolidated balance sheets includes a reduction for unamortized
debt issuance costs of $ 4-2 . 4-8 million which are excluded from the maturities table above. NOTE 10 — DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS Interest Rate Risk Management From time to time, the Company enters into interest rate swap transactions to fix
the variable interest rate on a portion of its term loan borrowing in order to manage a portion of its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations. The Company’ s objective and strategy with respect to these interest rate swaps is to protect the Company against
adverse fluctuations in interest rates by reducing its exposure to variability to cash flows relating to interest payments on a portion of
its outstanding debt. Cash Flow Interest Rate Swaps In the fourth quarter of 2020, the Company terminated its designated interest rate
swap transactions with a total notional value of $ 250 million. Hedge accounting was also discontinued at that time. Losses recorded
in accumulated other comprehensive loss for these terminated interest rate swaps are reclassified and recorded in the consolidated
statements of operations to the extent it is probable that a portion of the original forecasted transactions related to the portion of the
hedged debt repaid will not occur by the end of the originally specified time period. See Note 21 entitled “ Items Reclassified From
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss 7 for additional information. All As-efBeeember3+2623;-all-amounts related to the
terminated interest rate swaps have been recognized in the consolidated statements of operations ;and there was no remaining
balance in accumulated other comprehensrve loqq associated wrth the termmated mterest rate iwaps at December 29 —As—e-f—}aﬁuafy

1 1 - LEASES The Company has operatmg and finance leases for manufacturmg equlpment corporate ofﬁces showrooms vehicles
, distribution facilities, design centers, as well as computer and office equipment. The Company’ s leases have terms ranging from 1
to 20 years, some of which may include options to extend the lease term for up to 5 years, and certain leases may include an option to

terminate the lease. Our lease accounting may include these options to extend or terminate a lease when it is reasonably certain that
we will exercise that option. As of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , there were no significant leases that had not commenced. The table
below represents a summary of the balances recorded in the consolidated balance sheets related to the Company”’ s leases as of
December 29, 2024 and December 3 | -2023-andJanuary1-, 2023: December 29, 2024December 3 | ;2623January1-, 2023 Balance
Sheet LocationOperating LeasesFinance LeasesOperating LeasesFinance Leases (in thousands) Operating lease right- of- use assets $
76, 815 $ 87, 519 $84-644-Current portion of operating lease liabilities $ 12, 296 $ 12, 347 $H5-85FOperating lease Habilitles?8
liabilities68 , 092 78 , 269 72:-395-Total operating lease liabilities $ 80, 388 $ 90, 616 $-84;+62-Property, plant and equipment, net $
8,079 $ 7, 236 $5:845-Accrued expenses $ 2, 657 $ 2, 587 $2,40+-Other long- term liabilities5, 797 5, 035 4,438-Total finance
lease liabilities $ 8, 454 $ 7, 622 $-6:239-1 case Costs Fiscal ¥ear202326222024+---- Year202420232022 (in thousands) Finance
lease cost: Amortization of right- of- use assets $ 3,079 $ 2, 808 § 2, 238 $25-653-Interest on lease Habilities349-liabilities457 319
164 +46-Operating lease eestt8-costl9 , 495 18 . 850 18, 916 245-58+-Short- term lease eesti-cost827 1, 143 849 977-Variable lease
cost2, 824 2, 509 2, 692 2-83+Total lease cost $ 26, 682 $ 25, 629 § 24, 859 $28:482-Other Supplemental Information Fiscal
Fear202320222024--- Year202420232022 (in thousands) Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities:
Operating cash flows from finance leases $ 431 $ 237 $ 128 $408-Operating cash flows from operating feasest5-leases17 , 246 15 ,
552 18, 080 22;2408-Financing cash flows from finance leases2, 913 2, 419 2, 089 2;,282-Right- of- use assets obtained in exchange
for new finance lease liabilities3, 993 3, 612 3, 436 3;259-Right- of- use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease
LabilitiestS-liabilities4 , 598 15, 561 9, 307 43;330-Lease Term and Discount Rate The table below presents the weighted average
remaining lease terms and discount rates for finance and operating leases as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 1 ;2023-and
Jamgary—+- 2023: End of Fiscal Year 20232022Weighted----- 20242023 Weighted - average remaining lease term — finance leases (in
years) 3. 703-613 . 82Weighted-70Weighted - average remaining lease term — operating leases (in years) &7 . 209-688 . 29 Weighted-
average discount rate — finance eases5-leases6 . 44 % 5 . 51 %3-—79-% Weighted- average discount rate — operating leases6. 39 % 6.
25 %-5-89-% Maturity Analysis A maturity analysis of lease payments under non- cancellable leases is presented as follows: Fiscal
YearOperating LeasesFinance Leases (in thousands) 2024-2025 $ 16, 955-724 $ 3, 096 202616, 746 2, 924-2625+6-597 202713 , 287
863 2, H1202616-018 202811 , 196-077 1, 54520273-151 20299 , 506 504 4171;105-202816,-930-570-Fhereafterd3—
Thereafter34 , 725244-706 146 Total future minimum lease payments (undiscounted) H7+102 , 5+6-8-622 9 , 496-512 Less: Present
value discount ( 26-22 ,894-234 ) (8741, 058 ) Total lease liabilities $ 96-80 , 6+6-388 $ 7-8 , 622-454 NOTE 12 - GOODWILL



AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS The Company has two operating and reportable segments — namely AMS and EAAA. See
Note 20 entitled “ Segment Information  for additional information. The Company tests goodwill for impairment at least annually at
the reporting unit level. The Company’ s reporting units consist of (1) the Americas, (2) Europe, Middle East and Africa (“ EMEA
), and (3) Asia- Pacific. The Americas reporting unit is the same as the AMS reportable segment, and the EMEA and Asia- Pacific
reporting units are one level below the EAAA reportable segment. During the fourth quarter of 2024 and 2023 ;-we performed our
annual quantitative goodwill impairment testing. We focused our testing on the Americas reporting unit siree-because it is the only
reporting unit with an allocated goodwill balance. The allocated goodwill balances for our EMEA and Asia- Pacific reporting units
were written off in prior years as a result of goodwill impairment charges. The Company performed limited procedures for our
EMEA and Asia- Pacific reporting units during the 2024 and 2023 goodwill testing to facilitate a reconciliation of market
capitalization. The annual quantitative goodwill impairment testing performed in 2024 and 2023 for our Americas reporting unit was
consistent with our prior year methodology. The Company prepared valuations for the Americas reporting unit on both a market
comparable methodology and an income methodology, utilizing a combination of the present value of expected future cash flows and
the guideline public company method to determine the estimated fair value of the reporting unit. In preparing the valuation, past,
present and future expectations of performance were considered, including our expectations for the short- term and long- term
impacts of macroeconomic conditions Firehadingtnflation;-and our expected financial performance, including planned revenue and
operating income for the Americas reporting unit. The present value model requires management to estimate future cash flows, the
timing of these cash flows, and a discount rate based on a weighted average cost of capital. The discount rate used for the Americas
reporting unit was +H-10 . 5 % in 2623-2024 compared to+3-11 . 5 % in 2622-2023 , which fluctuated based on a lewer risk premium
assigned to estimates of expected future performance. There is inherent uncertainty associated with key assumptions and estimates
used in our impairment testing, including the impact of macroeconomic conditions. As a result of our 2823-2024 annual goodwill
impairment testrng, we exeeeded—rts—eaﬂymg—%h}e—by—B%—%—at—ﬂie%O%ZﬂB measurement date and therefore no 1mpa1rment was
1nd1cated P of Aate FRerreasFepoTtie A ;
i 0 i i i 4-The eeﬂse-l-té&ted—goodwﬂl balance 0f$ 99—105 9—4 mlll101’1 at
December 2-9—31 %924—2023 is allocated eﬂt—rrel-y—to our Amerrcas reporting unit.During the fourth quarter of 2022,the Company
performed the annual goodwill impairment test,consistent with prior years.The Company performed this test at the reporting unit
level,which is an operating segment or one level below the operating segment level.In performing the impairment testing for each
reporting unit,the Company prepared valuations of reporting units on both a market comparable methodology and an income
methodology,and those valuations were compared with the respective carrying values of the reporting units to determine whether any
goodwill impairment existed.In preparing the valuations,past,present and future expectations of performance were
considered,including the ongoing impact of the COVID- 19 pandemic in 2022.As a result of our 2022 testing,we determined that the
carrying value of our EMEA reporting unit exceeded its fair value and that the associated goodwill was impaired at the measurement
date.We recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $ 29.4 million in 2022 to write off all the goodwill allocated to our EMEA
reporting unit ,as the excess of carrying value over fair value exceeded the recorded amount of goodwill for the EMEA
reporting unit .Macroeconomic factors,including inflation,foreign currency exchange rates,and the expected impact to planned
revenue and operating income contributed to the lower estimated fair value of our EMEA reporting unit.Higher discount rates also
contributed to the lower fair value of our reporting units. We determined that the fair value of our Americas reporting unit
exceeded its carrying value by 71 % at the determined that the fair value of our Americas reporting unit exceeded its carrying
value by 71 % at the 2023 measurement date, and therefore no...... carrying value by 71 % at the 2022 measurement date, and
therefore no impairment was indicated. The remaining goodwill balance of $ 102. 4 million at January 1, 2023, was allocated to our
Americas reporting unit. The goodwill balance allocated to our Asia- Pacific reporting unit was previously written off in connection
with the 2020 goodwill impairment. The ending balances and the changes in the carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each
reportable segment for the years ended December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023-andFanuary+-, 2023 are as follows (1):
AMSEAAATotal (1n thousands) Goodw1ll balance at January 21,2022-2023 § -1-98—102 595—417 $ 3—8%%9—$—l—47—925—1-m-paﬁmeﬂt
102, 417 Forergn currency tran%lanon (2) 3, 031 — 3,031 Goodwrll balance at December 3l %92—3—$—2023105 448 — 105 448 $
Foreign currency translation (2) (5, 561) — $1065-(5 , 448-561) Goodwill balance, at December 29,2024 $ 99,887 $ —$ 99, 887
(1) Goodwill balances are presented net of cumulative impairment losses of $ 358. 5 million as of beth-December 345,2023-and
Jaﬂuafy—l—EOQ%—&nd—$—3%9—— 29 I-millienasefJanuary 2, 2022-2024 . The cumulative impairment losses include impairment
charges recognized prior to 2020 related to discontinued operations that were allocated to the current reportable segments on a
proportionate basis. (2) A portion of the goodwill balance allocated to the AMS reportable segment is comprised of goodwill
denominated in foreign currency attributable to the nora acquisition. During the fourth quarter of 2024 and 2023, the Company
performed its annual impairment testing of the trademark and trade name intangible assets and determined that no impairment
existed at the 2024 or 2023 measurement date-dates . In the fourth quarter of 2022, we determined that the trademark and trade name
intangible assets related to the acquired nora business were impaired and recognized an impairment loss of § 6. 3 million. The
impairment loss consisted of charges of $ 3. 6 million and $ 2. 7 million attributable to the AMS and EAAA reportable segments,
respectively. The Company’ s intangible assets other than goodwill consisted of the following as of December 29, 2024 and
December 31 ;- 2023-andJanuary1— 2023: December 29, 2024December 3 | ;2023January+- 2023Gross Carrying
AmountAccumulated ImpairmentAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying AmountGross Carrying AmountAccumulated
ImpairmentAccumulated AmortizationNet Carrying Amount (in thousands) Intangible assets subject to amortization (1): Technology
$34,429$ —$ (31,522) $2,907 $ 37, 198 § — § (28, 845) § 8, 353 $36;069-$—3$22.854)-$13;215-Other734- Other723
(478) (34) 211 734 (478) ( 20) 236 F64-478)-(+H269-Total intangible assets subject to amertizatton37-amortization35 , 152 (478)
(31,556) 3, 118 37 , 932 (478) (28, 865) 8, 589 36;833-4783-22,- 8713484 Indefinite- lived intangible assets (1): Trademarks
and trade names58-names56 , 236 (11, 081) — 45, 15558 , 747 (11, 081) — 47, 666 5F3F5H5-068H—46;294-Total intangible
assets $ 91, 388 $ (11, 559) $ (31, 556) $ 48,273 $ 96,679 $ (11, 559) $ (28, 805) § 56, 255 $94;:208-$1H5-559-$22-8H)-$59;

F#8<1) Certain intangible asset balances are subject to changes attributable to foreign currency translation. Amortization expense




related to intangible assets during the years 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-202+-was $ 5. 2 million, $ 5. 2 million and $ 5. 0 mithenand
$-5—6-million, respectively, and is recorded in cost of sales in the consolidated statements of operations. Amortization expense related
to intangible assets is expected to be approximately $ S-mithenfor-fiseal-year2024-and-approximately-$-3 . 0 million for fiscal year
2025. The developed technology intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life, which ends in fiscal year 2025. NOTE 13
—PREFERRED STOCK The Company is authorized to designate and issue up to 5, 000, 000 shares of $ 1. 00 par value preferred
stock in one or more series and to determine the rights and preferences of each series, to the extent permitted by the Articles of
Incorporation, and to fix the terms of such preferred stock without any vote or action by the shareholders. The issuance of any series
of preferred stock may have an adverse effect on the rights of holders of common stock and could decrease the amount of earnings
and assets available for distribution to holders of common stock. In addition, any issuance of preferred stock could have the effect of
delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of the Company. As of December 29, 2024, and December 3 1 ;2623;-and
Jamaary—+-, 2023, there were no shares of preferred stock issued. NOTE 14 - SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY The Company is
authorized to issue 120 million shares of $ 0. 10 par value Common Stock. The Company’ s Common Stock is traded on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market under the symbol TILE. The Company paid cash dividends totaling $ 0. 04 per share, including participating
securities , in each of years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and202+-. The future declaration and payment of dividends is at the discretion of
the Company’ s Board, and depends upon, among other things, the Company’ s investment policy and opportunities, results of
operations, financial condition, cash requirements, future prospects, and other factors that may be considered relevant at the time of
the Board’ s determination. Such other factors include limitations contained in the agreement for its Syndicated Credit Facility and
the indenture governing its 5. 50 % Senior Notes due 2028, which specify conditions as to when any dividend payments may be
made. As such, the Company may discontinue its dividend payments in the future if its Board determines that a cessation of dividend
payments is appropriate in light of the factors indicated above. In the second quarter of 2022, the Company adopted a new share
repurchase program in which the Company is authorized to repurchase up to $ 100 million of its outstanding shares of common stock.
The program has no specific expiration date. No shares of common stock were repurchased pursuant to this program during 2024 or
2023. During 2022, the Company repurchased and retired an aggregate of 1, 383, 682 shares, at a weighted average price of $ 12. 41
per share, pursuant to this program. All treasury stock is accounted for using the cost method. The following tables depict the activity
in the accounts which make up shareholders’ equity for fiscal years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 arnd2021- SHARESCOMMON
STOCKADDITIONALPAID-
INCAPITALRETAINEDEARNINGSPENSIONLIABILITYFOREIGNCURRENCYTRANSLATIONADJUSTMENTTOTAL
(in thousands) Balance, at December 31, 202358, 112 $ 5, 811 $ 252, 909 $ 320, 833 $ (34, 016) $ (119, 590) $ 425, 947 Net
income — — — 86, 946 — — 86, 946 Issuances of stock related to restricted share units and performance shares479 48 (48)
— — — — Restricted stock issuances58 6 941 — — — 947 Unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted stock
awards — — (946) — — — (946) Cash dividends declared — — — (2, 338) — — (2, 338) Compensation expense related to
share- based plans, net of forfeitures and shares received for tax withholdings (345) (35) 8, 172 — — — 8, 137 Pension
liability adjustment — — — — (5, 818) — (5, 818) Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — (23, 727) (23, 727)
Balance, at December 29, 202458, 304 $ 5, 830 $ 261, 028 $ 405, 441 $ (39, 834) $ (143, 317) $ 489, 148 SHARESCOMMON
STOCKADDITIONALPAID-
INCAPITALRETAINEDEARNINGSPENSIONLIABILITYFOREIGNCURRENCYTRANSLATIONADJUSTMENTCASH
FLOWHEDGETOTAL (in thousands) Balance, at January 1, 202358, 106 $ 5, 811 $ 244, 159 $ 278, 639 $ (27, 548) $ (138, 775) $
(749) $ 361, 537 Net income — — — 44, 517 — — — 44, 517 Issuances of stock related to restricted share units and performance
shares85 8 (8) — — ——— Restricted stock issuances107 11 749 — — — — 760 Unrecognized compensation expense related to
restricted stock awards — — (760) — — — — (760) Cash dividends declared — — — (2, 323) — — — (2, 323) Compensation
expense related to share- based plans, net of forfeitures and shares received for tax withholdings (186) (19) 8, 769 — — — — 8, 750
Pension liability adjustment — — — — (6, 468) — — (6, 468) Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — 19, 185 —
19, 185 Reclassification out of accumulated other comprehensive loss — discontinued cash flow hedge — — — — — — 749 749
Balance, at December 31, 202358, 112 $ 5, 811 $ 252, 909 $ 320, 833 $ (34, 016) $ (119, 590) $ — $ 425, 947 SHARESCOMMON
STOCKADDITIONALPAID-
INCAPITALRETAINEDEARNINGSPENSIONLIABILITYFOREIGNCURRENCYTRANSLATIONADJUSTMENTCASH
FLOWHEDGETOTAL (in thousands) Balance, at January 2, 202259, 055 $ 5, 905 $ 253, 110 $ 261, 434 § (53, 888) $ (100, 441) $

(2,722) $ 363, 398 Net income — — — 19, 560 — — — 19, 560 Restricted stock issuances501 50 6, 499 — — — — 6, 549
Unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted stock awards — — (6, 549) — — — — (6, 549) Cash dividends declared
— ——(2,355)———(2, 355) Compensation expense related to share- based plans, net of forfeitures and-shares-reeetrved-fortax
withheldings<(66) (6) 8, 132 — — — — 8, 126 Share repurchases (1, 384) (138) (17, 033) — — —— (17, 171) Pension liability
adjustment — — — — 26, 340 — — 26, 340 Foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — (38, 334) — (38, 334)
Reclassification out of accumulated other comprehensive loss — discontinued cash flow hedge — — — — — — 1,973 1,973

Balance, at January 1, 202358, 106 $ 5, 811 $ 244, 159 $ 278, 639 $ (27, 548) $ (138, 775) $ (749) $ 361, 537 SHARESCOMMON

Imentlve Phn The Compqny hqs a stock mcentlve plan under whlch a commlttee ofmdependent dlrectors is author17ed to grant
directors and key employees, including officers, restricted stock, incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, stock



appreciation rights, restricted share units and performance shares. In May 2626-2024 , the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of an amendment and restatement of the Interface, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan ( the © 2620-Omnibus
Amended and Restated Plan ). The aggregate number of shares of common stock that may be issued or transferred under the 2628
Omnibus-Amended and Restated Plan on or after the effective date of the plan is the sum of 3. 766-200 ., 000 shares not
previously authorized for issuance under any plan, plus the number of shares remaining available for issuance under the
original Interface, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “ Original Plan ) but not subject to outstanding awards
under the Original Plan immediately prior to the effective date of the Amended and Restated Plan, plus the number of shares
remaining available for issuance pursuant to the outstanding awards under the Original Plan immediately prior to the
effective date of the Amended and Restated Plan, including any shares that become available due to the forfeiture,
termination or cancellation of such awards . No award may be granted after the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the 2026
Omnibus-Amended and Restated Plan. Accounting standards require that the Company measure the cost of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair market value of the award. That expense will be
recognized over the period that the employee is required to provide the services — the requisite service period (usually the vesting
period) — in exchange for the award. For certain restricted stock and restricted share unit awards with a graded vesting schedule, the
Company has elected to recognize compensation expense on a straight- line basis over the requisite service period for the entire
award. Restricted Stock Awards During fiscal years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024-, the Company granted restricted stock awards
totaling 58, 400, 107, 100, and 500, 800 ;and-428;480-shares, respectively, of Common Stock. The weighted average grant date fair
value of restricted stock awards granted during 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and2024-was $ 16.22,$ 7. 10, and $ 13. 08 ;and-$14-26-,
respectively. These awards (or a portion thereof) vest with respect to each recipient over a one to three- year period from the date of
grant, provided the individual remains in the employment or service of the Company as of the vesting date. Additionally, certain
awards (or a portion thereof) could vest earlier in the event of a change in control of the Company or upon involuntary termination
without cause. Compensation expense related to awards of restricted stock was § 2. 3 million, $ 4. 5 million ;-and $ 5. 3 million and
$38-mithen-for 2024, 2023 rand 2022 and2024-, respectively. These grants are made primarily to the board of directors and
executive- level personnel at the Company, and as a result, no compensation costs have been capitalized. The Company has reduced
its expense for any restricted stock forfeited during the period. The expense related to awards of restricted stock is captured in SG &
A expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. The following table summarizes restricted stock outstanding as of December
3129, 2023-2024 , as well as activity during the year: Restricted SharesWeighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueOutstanding at
January+-December 31 , 202312023691 , 866-600 $ 12. 55 Granted58 , 400 16 $13-. 22 91-Granted107,100-710-Vested (405
504 . +66-700 ) +4-12 . 43-31 Forfeited or canceled (4+6-3 , 866-000 ) 13. 66-19 Outstanding at December 3429 | 20236954+-2024242
660-300 $ 42-13 . 5592 As of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , the unrecognized total compensation cost related to unvested restricted
stock was $ +0 . 84 million. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted- average remaining vesting period of 0. 73
years. Restricted Share Unit Awards During fiscal year 2024 and 2023, the Company granted awards for 407, 300 and 596, 200
restricted share units to certain employees pursuant to the Company’ s 2026-Omnibus-stock incentive Plan-plan . There were no
restricted share unit awards granted during 2022 er262+. The weighted average grant date fair value of the restricted share units
granted during 2024 and 2023 was $ 13. 38 and $ 10. 36 respectively . Each restricted share unit represents one share of the
Company’ s common stock to be issued to the award recipient once the vesting criteria have been satisfied. Awards of restricted share
units have a graded vesting schedule over a two to three- year period from the date of grant, provided the individual remains in the
employment or service of the Company as of each vesting date. Additionally, certain awards (or a portion thereof) could vest earlier
in the event of a change in control of the Company, upon involuntary termination without cause, or upon retirement provided certain
eligibility criteria are met. Compensation expense related to the restricted share units was $ 3. 5 million and $ 1. 9 million for 2024
and 2023 , respectively . There was no compensation expense related to restricted share unit awards during 2022 2624 These
grants are made primarily to executive- level personnel at the Company and, as a result, no compensation costs have been
capitalized. The Company has reduced its expense for any restricted share units forfeited during the period. The expense related to
awards of restricted share units is captured primarily in SG & A expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. The
following table summarizes restricted share units outstanding as of December 34-29 , 2023-2024 , as well as activity during the year:
Restricted Share UnitsWeighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueOutstanding at January+December 31 , 2023—2023583, 400 $ —
Granted596-10. 35 Granted407, 300 13. 38 Vested (157, 200 ) 10. 77 36-Vested(21+00)1+0--86-Forfeited or canceled (10, 766-200 )
+6-11 . 86-41 Outstanding at December 34-29 | 2023583-2024823 , 406-300 S +6-11 . 35-76 As of December 3429 | 2623-2024 , the
unrecognized total compensation cost related to unvested restricted share units was $ 4-6 . +-0 million. That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted- average remaining vesting period of 21 . 8 years. Performance Share Awards In each of the years 2024,
2023 7and 2022 and2021-, the Company issued awards of performance shares to certain employees. These awards vest based on the
achievement of certain performance- based goals over a performance period of ese-te-three years, subject to (among other things) the
employee’ s continued employment through the last date of the performance period and will be settled in shares of our common stock
or in cash at the Company’ s election. The number of shares that may be issued in settlement of the performance shares to the award
recipients may be greater (up to 200 %) or lesser than the nominal award amount depending on actual performance achieved as
compared to the performance targets set forth in the awards. The expense related to these performance shares is captured in SG & A
expenses in the consolidated statements of operations. The Company evaluates the probability of achieving the performance- based
goals as of the end of each reporting period and adjusts compensation expense based on this assessment. The following table
summarizes the performance shares outstanding as of December 34-29 , 2623-2024 , as well as the activity during the year:
Performance SharesWeighted Average Grant Date Fair ValueOutstanding at Janwary—+December 31 , 2623923-20231 ., 666-115, 000
$ 12. 36 Granted402, 800 13. 24 H-Granted467-50010-—79-Vested ( 82-322 , 306-200 ) +5-13 . H-90 Forfeited or canceled (493-23
,800-900 ) +4-12 . 79-53 Outstanding at December 3429 , 20234-20241 , H-5-171 ,906-700 $ 12. 36-23 Compensation expense
rclatcd to the performance shares for 2024, 2023 --and 2022 &nd—EG%—l—was $ 7. 1 million, $ 3. 9 million ;-and $ 3. 2 mithemand-$+
Fmillion, respectively. The Company has reduced its expense for any performance shares forfeited during the period. Unrecognized
compensation expense related to these performance shares was approximately $ 5-7 . 9 million as of December 34-29 , 2623-2024 .



The amount and timing of future compensation expense will depend on the performance of the Company. The compensation expense
related to these outstanding performance shares is expected to be recognized over a weighted- average remaining vesting period of 1.
78 years. The tax benefit recognized with respect to restricted stock, restricted share units and performance shares was $ 1. 7 million,
$ 0. 9 million, and $ 0. 8 million yard-$-0-—Fmitien-in 2024, 2023 and 2022 and2024-, respectively. NOTE 15 — EARNINGS PER
SHARE The Company computes basic earnings per share (“ EPS ) by dividing net income by the weighted average common shares
outstanding, including participating securities outstanding, during the period as discussed below. Diluted EPS reflects the potential
dilution beyond shares for basic EPS that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised,
converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock that would have shared in the Company’ s earnings. The
Company includes all unvested stock awards that contain non- forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents, whether paid or
unpald in the numbel of shares outstdndmé for bdle ]:PS as ‘rhese dwalds are Lormdeled pdltlupatmb seculmes Aﬂy—uﬂvested

Weﬁ-}d-be-d-&&twe—Un\ ested sharc based awalds of mslrlcled stock are pald dmdcnds equqlly wnh all other shares ofcommon stock
and are considered participating securltles As a result, the Company includes all outstdndm(r restucted stock awards in the
calculation of basic and diluted EPS Any 5 8
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considered non- participating securltles (restrlcted share unlts and performance shares) are 1ncluded in dlluted EPS
calculations when the inclusion of these shares would be dilutive . The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted
EPS: Fiscal ¥e&h”-92—3%92—2%92—1—~——— Year202420232022 (m lhousmds exc.epl per shme dam) Numelator (1) Nel income S 86,946 $
44 517$19 560 % :

th CRFATHAE t COmMon 6 Dcnommdtm Weighted
average shares 0ulslandm057 937 57 349 57 892 SS—B%S—Paltlupalmg seetrﬂ&es—?“l-%—securltles345 743972 992-643-Shares for
basic EPS58, 282 58, 092 58, 865 589 -Dilutive effect of share- based awards ( non- participating seeurities243—-- securities —
) 589 243 — Shares for diluted EPS58, 871 58, 335 58, 865 58;9F4-Basic EPS $1.49 $ 0. 77 $ 0. 33 $6-94-Diluted EPS $ 1. 48 $
0.76 $ 0. 33 (1) Including income attributable to participating securities, which was $ 0. 94-5 million, $ 0. 6 million, and $ 0. 3
million, for fiscal years 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. For 2024, there were no securities excluded from the computation
of diluted EPS that would have been antidilutive. For 2023, 657, 391 non- participating securities that could potentially dilute
basic EPS in the future, consisting of restricted share units and performance shares, were excluded from the computation of diluted
EPS as these securities would have been antidilutive for the respective period. NOTE 16 — RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER
Restructuring, asset impairment, other (gains) and charges by reportable segment are presented as follows: Fiscal ¥ear26232622202+
---- Year202420232022 (in thousands) AMS § — § — § — EAAA — ( 2, 502) | YEAAALRS5021+, 965 3;7-622-Total restructuring,

asset 1mpa1rant other (édll’l%) cll]d Lhdrges % — $ (7 5()7) $1,965 %%tﬂﬁmaiﬁ—e—ﬁfhe—res&ueﬂﬁmg—reset%bﬁ%&ﬂee—

cHEH At Freter-th re-plats: 2071 Restluetuung Plan On September 8, 2021 the Company
committed to a ustructmmﬂ pldn that eeﬂ&ﬁued-te—feeus—focused on efforts to improve efficiencies and decrease costs across its
V\Olld\\ lde opemllons The plan mvolved a leduellon 01 applmnmalely 188 employees and lhe dosure ol lhe Commny s

5 5 6 z A —The Company 1ceogmzcd againof $2.7
million on the sa]c he Th"uland f'l(,lllty dmmg 2()23 Scc Note 7 mtltlcd Plopcrty Plant and Eqmpmcnt for additional

INCOMF TAXFS Income belme income l1xes eonslsled 01 the lollowmg FISL’II Ye”lr %92—3%92%%92—1—202420232022 (m lhounnds)
U. S. operations $ 37,060 $ 3, 611 $ 11, 758 $4:460-Forcign eperationsé0- operations76 , 494 60 , 043 30, 159 68;473-Income




before income taxes $ 113, 554 $ 63, 654 $ 41, 917 $F2,-633-Provisions for federal, foreign and state income taxes in the
consolidated statements of operations consisted of the following components: Fiscal Year 2623262226214-202420232022 (in
thousands) Current expense: Federal $ 7,599 $ 5, 523 § 1, 624 $4;-987 FereigntS-Foreign20 , 982 18 , 330 20, 903 24,372-State2 ,
4812 . 167 1, 307 5448-Current expense26-expense31 , 062 26 , 020 23, 834 24;7FFFDeferred (benefit) expense: Federal ( 3, 279) (
4,810) 346 Foreign (841) (1, 212) (2, 84 Fereign-5 24225053 35-846)-State ( 334) (861) 230 €69H-Deferred benefit ( 4, 454) (
6, 883) (1, 477 HF398-) Total income tax expense $ 26, 608 $ 19, 137 $ 22, 357 $4%399-The Company’ s effective tax rate was
23.4 %, 30. 1 % sand 53. 3 %and24-0-% for fiscal years 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-262+, respectively. The following summary
reconciles income taxes at the U. S. federal statutory rate of 21 % applicable for all periods presented to the Company’ s actual
income tax expense: Fiscal Year 2023208222024+-202420232022 (in thousands) Income taxes at U. S. federal statutory rate $ 23, 846
$ 13,367 $ 8, 803 $45:253-Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from: State income taxes, net of federal tax effeet-effect2 , 319
(432) 817 €8H-Non- deductible business expenses747expenses940 747 237 330-Non- deductible employee compensationl, 587 1,
681 1, 678 45243-Tax effects of Company- owned life insurance ( 576) ( 587) 612 (#623-Tax effects of undistributed earnings from
foreign subsidiaries not deemed to be indefinitely reinvested?79-reinvested443 779 1, 123 :5,249-Foreign and U. S. tax effects
attributable to foreign eperatiensi-operations4 , 532 1, 537 3, 528 5 F48-Expiring tax attributes3-attributes4 , 1253 , 780
Valuation allowance effect ( 7, 330) (879) 2, 898 45349-Research and development tax credits ( 703) ( 820) (917 3H793-) Goodwill
impairment — — 6, 171 Foreign tax rate change related to UK pension (2, 493) — — Unrecognized tax benefits ( 135) (79) (2,
463) 25663>-Otherd3-Others3 43 (130) 592-Income tax expense $ 26, 608 $ 19, 137 § 22, 357 $44-399-On August 16, 2022, the
Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (*“ Inflation Reduction Act ) was signed into law, with tax provisions primarily focused on
implementing a 15 % minimum tax on global adjusted financial statement income (“ AFSI ) for corporations with average AFSI
exceeding $ 1 billion over a three- year period, a 1 % excise tax on share repurchases and various climate and clean energy tax
incentives. The Inflation Reduction Act did not have a material impact on the Company’ s financial statements for the year ended
December 3429 , 2623-2024 . On December 20, 2021, the Organization for Economic Co- operation and Development (“ OECD )
published Pillar Two Model Rules defining the global minimum tax, which calls for the taxation of large corporations at a minimum
rate of 15 %. The OECD has since issued administrative guidance providing transition and safe harbor rules around the
implementation of the Pillar Two global minimum tax. Many non- U. S. tax jurisdictions have either recently enacted legislation to
adopt certain components of the Pillar Two Model Rules beginning in 2024 (including the European Union Member States) with the
adoption of additional components in later years or announced their plans to enact legislation in future years. For fiscal year 2024,
we expect to meet the Transitional Country- by- Country (CbCR) Safe Harbor rules for most if not all jurisdictions and do
not expect these provisions to have a material impact on the Company’ s financial statements. V¢ are-sti-will continue to
closely menitoritig-—--- monitor ongoing developments and evatuating-evaluate the-any potential impact on future periods. Deferred
income taxes for the years ended December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023-andJanuary1—, 2023, reflect the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for income tax purposes. The temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are
as follows: End of Fiscal Year 20232022-20242023 (in thousands) Deferred tax assetskease-assets (1) Lease liability $ 22,329 § 25,
164 $23-649-Net operating loss and interest earryferwards9-carryforwards7 , 964 9 | 587 F-6+6-Federal tax credit earryforwards?
carryforwards4 , 036 7 , 876 +68;-904-Dertvative-nstraments—295-Deferred compensationl6, 521 16, 517 +6-Pensions4 , 577982
6, 304 Property and equipment438 554 [nventory3, 844+3-121 6 , 524-657 Prepaids, accruals and reserves8-reserves9 , 235 8,147
6;-947-Capitalized eests9-costs10 , 327 9 , 442 F-467-Other—>58-Deferred tax asset, gross79-gross78 . 77477953 90 , 934—248
Valuation allowance ( 10, 028) ( 17 357 H8;236-) Deferred tax asset, net $ 62-68 , 447925 § 58-72 , 798-891 Detened tax
HabilittesPreperty-liabilities (1) Property and cquipment $ 24, 662-899 $ 25, 349-216 Inventory4, 014 3, 616 Intangible assets24
assets20 , 970 24 . 411 25:-533-[ easc asset23-asset20 , 887 23 | 868 22;-8HPenstons5-Pensions3 4-, 284-866 6, 309 Foreign
eurreney686-- currencyS56 666-686 Foreign withholding and U. S. state taxes on unremitted earnings?25-earnings773 725 1,146
OthertH-Other158 —171 Deferred tax Habiities74-liabilities76 , 528-79-123 85 , 693-002 Net deferred tax liabilities $ 7, 198 $ 12,
111 $26-(1) In prior year , 895-certain deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances by jurisdiction were presented as
a net position. In the current period presentation, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are presented gross.
Amounts above for 2023 have been recast to conform to the current period presentation. These reclassifications change the
previously disclosed gross deferred tax asset and gross deferred tax liability positions. However, the net deferred tax liability
position presented in the prior year remains unchanged. Management believes, based on the Company” s history of taxable
income and expectations for the future, that it is more likely than not that future taxable income will be sufficient to fully utilize the
federal deferred tax assets at December 3429 , 2823-2024 . As of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , the Company has approximately $ #
4 . 9-0 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards with expiration dates through 2033. A full valuation allowance has been provided
as the Company does not expect to utilize these foreign tax credits before the expiration dates. As of December 3+-29 , 2623-2024 ,
the Company has approximately $ 492-190 . 1 million in state net operating loss carryforwards relating to continuing operations with
expiration dates through 2043-2044 and has provided a valuation allowance against $ 429-127 . 6 million of such losses, which the
Company does not expect to utilize. In addition, as of December 3429 , 2023-2024 , the Company has approximately $ 45-11 . 6-0
million in state net operating loss carryforwards relating to discontinued operations against which a full valuation allowance has been
provided. During fiscal year 2623-2024 , the Company had approximately $ 3-4 . 8-1 million in tax attributes with-related to foreign
tax credit carryovers that explred The explrmg forelgn tax credlt carryover attrlbutes had a full valuation allowance , as

o A A s-a result, the expiration of
thcsc tax &ttﬂbﬁtes-attrlbuted dld not havc an 1mpact on thc Company S Cffcctlvc tax rate Tor ﬁscal year 2023-2024 . As of
December 29, 2024, and December 31 ;72023;andFanuary—+-, 2023, non- current deferred tax assets were reduced by approximately
$ 2. 6 million and $ 2. 8 million of unrecognized tax benefits , respectively . Historically, the Company has not provided for U. S.
income taxes and foreign withholding taxes on the undistributed accumulated earnings of its foreign subsidiaries, with the exception
of its Canada and Thailand subsidiaries and a specific portion of the undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries outside of Canada

and Thailand , because such earnings were deemed to be permanently reinvested. Ja-Septemberof202t-aspart-ofaneoverall




S. income taxcs and forc1 gn Wlthholdmg axes on t-hese» the undlstrlbuted earnings that were not permanently reinvested at
December 29, 2024 and December 31, 2023 andJdantary+-2023- Although the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (the « Tax Act )
created a dividends received deduction that generally eliminates additional U. S. federal income taxes on dividends from our foreign
subsidiaries, the Company continues to assert that all of its undistributed earnings in its non- U. S. subsidiaries, excluding
undistributed earnings for which U. S. income taxes and foreign withholding taxes have been provided, are indefinitely reinvested
outside of the U. S. The Company expects that domestic cash resources will be sufficient to fund its domestic operations and cash
commitments in the future. In the event the Company determines not to continue to assert that all or part of its undistributed earnings
in its non- U. S. subsidiaries are permanently reinvested, an actual repatriation of earnings from its non- U. S. subsidiaries could still
be subject to additional foreign withholding and U. S. state taxes, the determination of which is not practicable. The Company’ s
federal income tax returns are subject to examination for the years 2628-2021 to the present. The Company files returns in numerous
state and local jurisdictions and in general it is subject to examination by the state tax authorities for the years 26482019 to the
present. The Company files returns in numerous foreign Jurlsdlctlons and n gzcncral itis subjcct to cxammdtlon by thc forcubn tax
aulhorllles for lhe years %9—1—2—2013 to lhe presem As-¢

0 e S e-adtsttents e MAPA Mareh 2023 the Comp'my
filed 1equests with both the Competent Authouty in the Netherlands and in the U. K. to initiate a MAP for tax years 2018 through
2020 related to the double taxation arising from the-appheation-ofthe-Her Majesty’ s Revenue & Customs (“ HMRC ) adjusting

the interest rate applied in adjustments-that-were-the intra subjeet-ofthe2642-- 20+7group financing arrangement between the
Company’ s subsidiary in the U. K. and another in the Netherlands Durmg 2023 the MAP was concluded —lﬂ—September%(-)%?r

, the-Competent-Authoritiesreached-ar-and agreement-on-the intere
Company recognized the related adjustments ﬁem—ﬂ&e%@-l—&-%@%@—MﬁP—m 1ts 2023 financml results The Lecogmtlon 01‘ the
adjustments inbeth2022-and-2023-did not have a material impact on the Company’ s effective tax rate or its financial position. As of
December 29, 2024, and December 3 | ;2623 -andJanuary+-, 2023, the Company had $ 4. 8 million and $ 4. 9 mithenand-$5—7

million, 1espect1vely, ot umeeog_)nlzed tax benehts —Fer—t-he—ye&rs—eﬂded—l%eembeﬁ-l— %92—?;—1nclud1ng accrued mterest and
penaltles At

Whlle 1t is reasonably pOSSIbIe that some ofthe unrecogmzed tax benehts will be recog,mzed
within the next 12 months, the Company does not expect the recognition of such amounts will have a material impact on the
Company’ s financial results. If any-efthe $4-9-mithernrofunrecognized-Company were to prevail on all uncertain tax positions
ized-, there would be a favorable impact on the Company’ s effective tax rate of
approximately § 4. 9-8 m11110n in future periods. lf the unrecognized tax benefits-positions are not favorably settled, $ 2. 42 million

of thc total amount of umccoomzcd tax bcncf ts woul d rcqulrc thc use of cash in future pcrlods —Fhe-Companyrecognizes-aceraed

tlmmg ofthc ultlmatc 1esolut10n of the (ompany s tax matters and thc payment and rcc01pt OT rclatcd Cash 1s dcpcndcnt on a number
of factors, many of which are outside the Company’ s control . The Company recognizes accrued interest and income tax
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense. As of December 29, 2024 and December
31, 2023, the Company had accrued interest and penalties of $ 0. 4 million for both periods, which are included in the total
unrecognized tax benefit noted above . A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits is
as follows: Fiscal Year 20232022202+-202420232022 (in thousands) Balance at beginning of year (1) $ 4,532 $ 5, 743-352 $ &7 ,
360 220-51+6;799-Increases related to tax positions taken during the current year320-year316 320 342 265-Increases related to tax
positions taken during the prior yearst46---- years 284— 498 19 109 Decreases related to tax positions taken during the prior years
(54-208 ) (44730 ) —(233) Decreases related to lapse of applicable statute of limitations ( 289) (1, 248-142 ) (2, 225 5742369
Changes due to setlements——836)-Changes-dueto-foreign currency transtattont7- translation — 2)+63— 13 (1) Balance at
end of year (1) $ 4, 948351 $ 4,532 S 5, 743-$-8-352 (1) In prior years , 220-interest and penalties were included in the
reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits. In the current period, interest and
penalties are excluded from the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits.
Amounts for fiscal years 2023 and 2022 above have been recast to conform to the current period presentation. These
reclassifications to the reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of gross unrecognized tax benefits do not impact
the accrual as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. NOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES From time to
time, the Company is a party to legal proceedings, whether arising in the ordinary course of business or otherwise. Seme-One of the
proceedings the Company is involved in are-is summarized below. Lawsuit by Former CEO in Connection with Termination On
January 19, 2020, the Company’ s Board of Directors voted to terminate for cause the employment of Jay D. Gould, then President
and Chief Executive Officer, effective immediately, for violations of the Company’ s working environment policies. On February 14,
2020, Mr. Gould filed a lawsuit against the Company in the United States District Court of the Northern District of Georgia, Gould v.
Interface, Inc., Case No. 1: 20- cv- 00695. In his lawsuit, Mr. Gould asserted several claims against the Company in connection with
his termination, including that the termination was a wrongful retaliation against Mr. Gould and breached his employment contract
with the Company, that public statements made by the Company in connection with his termination defamed Mr. Gould (two counts)
and that the Company’ s investigation into Mr. Gould’ s conduct that preceded the termination was negligently performed. Among
other unspecified relief, Mr. Gould sought in excess of $ 10 million in damages for the breach of contract claim and $ 100 million for



each of the other claims, as well as attorneys’ fees. The Court granted judgment on the pleadings in favor of the Company on Mr.
Gould’ s putative claim of negligent investigation, and Mr. Gould’ s defamation claims were dismissed with prejudice by stipulation
of the parties. On March 31, 2022, the Court entered an order granting the Company’ s motion for summary judgment on all of Mr.
Gould’ s remaining claims, leaving only the Company’ s counterclaim against Mr. Gould for breach of fiduciary duty pending in the
District Court. An attempted interlocutory appeal by Mr. Gould of the summary judgment order was remanded by the 11th Circuit
Court of Appeals back to the District Court as premature. Mr. Gould filed a motion for reconsideration of the Court’ s grant of
summary judgment in favor of the Company on Mr. Gould’ s breach of contract claim. On July 31, 2023, the Court denied that
motion for reconsideration. Also on July 31, 2023, the Company filed a motion to dismiss without prejudice its counterclaim against
Mr. Gould for breach of fiduciary duty. On August 2, 2023, the Court granted that motion to dismiss, resulting in a final judgment in
the trial court. The Court’ s award of summary judgment in favor of the Company on Mr. Gould’ s breach of contract claim was has
beerappealed by Mr. Gould to the U. S. Court of Appeals for the 11th Circuit . On November 19 , and-that-2024, oral arguments
for Mr. Gould’ s appeal were held in front of the U. S. Court of Appeals for the 11th Circuit. The Court of Appeals has not
issued an opinion on Mr. Gould’ s appeal, and it remains pending. The Company believes Mr. Gould” s lawsuit and the appeal
therefrom is W1thout merit and 1ntends to defend Vlgorously a;,amst it —Put&ﬁve—@lass—Aeﬁeﬂ—l:&wsmt—Oerevember—l%—E@%@—the

Contrrbutron and Deferred Compensatlon Plans The Company has a 401 (k) retrrement investment plan (“ 401 (k) Plan ), which is
open to all eligible U. S. employees with at least six months of service. The 401 (k) Plan provides Company matching contributions
on a sliding scale based on the level of the employee” s contribution. The Company may, at its discretion, make additional
contributions to the 401 (k) Plan based on the attainment of certain performance targets by its subsidiaries. The Company’ s matching
contributions are funded bi- monthly and totaled approximately $ 3. 6 million, $ 3. 4 million, and $ 3. 3 million ;-and-$3—0-mithen
for the years 2024, 2023 yand 2022 and2024-, respectively. No discretionary contributions were made in 2024, 2023 -or 2022 ot
2024 Under the Company’ s nonqualified savings plans (“ NSPs ), the Company provides eligible employees the opportunity to
enter into agreements for the deferral of a specified percentage of their compensation, as defined in the NSPs. The NSPs provide
Company matching contributions on a sliding scale based on the level of the employee’ s contribution. The obligations of the
Company under such agreements to pay the deferred compensation in the future in accordance with the terms of the NSPs are
unsecured general obligations of the Company. Participants have no right, interest or claim in the assets of the Company, except as
unsecured general creditors. The Company has established a rabbi trust to hold, invest and reinvest deferrals and contributions under
the NSPs. If a change in control of the Company occurs, as defined in the NSPs, the Company will contribute an amount to the rabbi
trust sufficient to pay the obligation owed to each participant. The deferred compensation liability in connection with the NSPs
totaled $ 30. 3 million and $ 28. 2 millienand-$27—-5-million at December 29, 2024 and December 3 | -2023-andJanuary1- 2023,
respectively. The Company invests the deferrals in insurance instruments with readily determinable cash surrender values and in
exchange traded mutual funds. The value of the insurance instruments was $ 21. 8 million and $ 19. 2 million and-$+6—6-mithen-as
of December 29, 2024 and December 31 52023-andJanuary—-, 2023, respectively. The fair value of the mutual fund investments at
December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2623-andFanuary—+—, 2023 was $ 8. 7 million and $ 9. 2 mithen-and-$H-—6-million,
respectively. Multiemployer Plan On December 31, 2019, a plan amendment was executed to eliminate future service accruals in our
defined benefit pension plan in the Netherlands (the * Dutch Plan ), which resulted in a curtailment of the plan. The Dutch Plan
remains in existence and continues to pay vested benefits. Active participants no longer accrue benefits after December 31, 2019, and
instead participate in the Industry- Wide Pension Fund (the “ IWPF ) multi- employer plan beginning in fiscal year 2020. During
2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2021+-, the Company recorded multi- employer pension expense related to multiemployer contributions of
$ 2. 9 million, $ 2. 7 million ;-and $ 2. 4 mitherand-$2-6-million, respectively. The Company’ s contributions into the IWPF are
less than 5 % of total plan contributions. The IWPF is more than 85 % funded at the end of 2622-2023 , which is the latest date plan
information is available. The IWPF multi- employer plan is not considered to be significant based on the funded status of the plan
and our contributions. The Company has trusteed defined benefit retirement plans which cover many of its European employees. The
benefits under these defined benefit retirement plans are generally based on years of service and the employee’ s average monthly
compensation. In connection with the nora acquisition in 2018, the Company acquired an additional defined benefit plan, which
covers certain employees in Germany (the “ nora Plan ). The nora plan has no plan assets. The Company uses a year- end
measurement date for the plans, which is the closest practlcal date to the Company s ﬁscal year end As descrlbed above on
Decernber 31, 2019 apla RS viee-aeerta g b

euft&rl-meﬂt—o%the—Biﬁeh—Pl&n—P&r&etp&nts—partlapants in the Dutch Plan no longer accrue beneﬁts under the plan a-f-‘ter—Beeembef
34+2649;-and partieipatein-they became eligible to contribute to the [WPF beginning #-fiscal year 2020. Although the Dutch Plan

is frozen to new participants, vested benefits will continue to be accounted for in accordance with applicable accounting standards for
defined benefit plans. The Dutch Plan is financed by assets held in an insurance contract. The guarantee provision included in the
insurance contract, that existed to fund any shortfall between the fair value of plan investments and the benefit obligation, expired on
Dcccmbc1 31 20 9. The Company wrl-l—ls obllgated to fund thc cost to guarantcc vcstcd bencﬁts aﬁd—t-lﬂs—ameuﬁt—rs—reeofded—as—aﬂ

beﬂeﬁts—tﬂ—t-he—frezen—Buteh—P—laﬂ—As—of December 34-29 , %92—3—2024 the under- funded status of the Duteh Plan of $5. -7—1 nnlhon
is recorded on the consolidated balance sheet in other long- term liabilities. Pension expense for our three European defined benefit
plans was $ 1. 8 million, $ 1. 3 million, and $ 2. 0 million yand-$2-5-mithen-for the years 2024, 2023 and 2022 and2624,
respectively. Plan assets are primarily invested in insurance contracts and fixed income securities. As of December 3429 , 2023-2024



, for the European plans, the Company had a net liability recorded of $ +5-19 . +7 million, an amount equal to their under- funded
status, and had recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss an amount equal to $ 29-36 . 9-3 million (net of taxes of
approximately $ 8. 1 million) related to the future amounts to be recorded in net periodic benefit costs. In the next fiscal year,
approximately $ 1. 3 million will be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost. The tables
presented below set forth the funded status of the Company’ s significant foreign defined benefit plans and required disclosures in
accordance with applicable accounting standards: Fiscal Year 26232622-20242023 (in thousands) Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 214, 428 $ 195, 440 $324,408-Scrvice eestd458-840-cost500 458 Interest eost8-cost7 , 933 8,
169 37-793-Benefits and expenses paid (10, 709) (10, 832 3H95896-) Actuarial loss (gain) (4, 321) 12, 760 £96;:-556)-Currency
translation adjustmentS8— adjustment (6, 943) 8 , 433 @F455)rBenefit obligation, end of year $ 200, 888 $ 214, 428 $495, 446
Change in plan assets: Plan assets, beginning of year $ 199, 348 $ 187, 485 $285;-600-Actual return on assetsH—- assets (5, 144) 11
596 66;759-Company contributions2, 626 2, 497 4;-80+Benefits paid (10, 709) (10, 832 H9;-896-) Currency translation
adjustment (4, 968) 8 . 602 25;467-Plan assets, end of year $ 181, 153 $ 199, 348 $48F-485-Funded status $ ( 19,
735) $ (15, 080 y$+%955) Amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheets: Other assets $ 15, 465 $ 25, 235 $26;-586-Current
liabilities (1, 170) (1, 182 H345-0832) Other long- term liabilities, net of current portion ( 34, 030) ( 39, 133 H33;-509-) Under- funded
status at end of fiscal year § (19, 735) $ (15, 080 ¥$+H955-) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss, after
tax: Unrecognized actuarial loss $ 36,323 $ 29, 918 $23:437Total amount recognized, end of year $ 36,323 $ 29, 918 $23-737
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 200, 888 $ 214, 428 $195;440-The above disclosure represents the aggregation of information
related to the Company’ s three defined benefit plans which cover many of its European employees. The inerease-decrease in the
projected benefit obligation of $ 49-13 . 8-5 million for 2823-2024 compared to prior year was primarily due to ¢-an deerease
increase in the weighted average discount rate used to measure the obligation and the impact of foreign currency translation due to
the strengthening-weakening of the Euro and-British Peund-sterhng-against the U. S. dollar in 2623-2024 . As of December 3+29 ,
2023-2024 , one of these plans, which primarily covers certain employees in the United Kingdom (the “ UK Plan ), had assets in
excess of the accumulated benefit obligation. The accumulated benefit obligation of the Dutch Plan exceeded plan assets as of
December 3429 , 2623-2024 . The nora Plan is an unfunded defined benefit plan and the accumulated benefit obligation exceeded
plan assets as of December 34-29 , 2023-2024 . The following table summarizes this information as of December 29, 2024 and
December 3 | ;-2023-andJanuary+— 2023. End of Fiscal Year 20232022-20242023 (in thousands) UK Plan Projected benefit
obligation $ 106, 865 $ 108, 424 $98736-Accumulated benefit ebligatienr}08-obligation106 , 865 108 , 424 98-736-Plan assetsi33
assets122 , 330 133 , 658 425;:345-Dutch Plan Projected benefit obligation $ 63,938 $ 71, 422 $-67-689-Accumulated benefit
ebligation7-obligation63 , 938 71 , 422 67;-689-Plan assetsé5— assets58 , 823 65 . 690 62,376-nora Plan Projected benefit
obligation $ 30, 085 $ 34, 582 $29;-024+-Accumulated benefit obligation34-obligation30 , 085 34 , 582 29:-624-Plan assets — —
Fiscal Year 202320222024-202420232022 (in thousands) Components of net periodic benefit cost: Service cost $ 500 $ 458 $ 840 $
+-08FInterest eestd-cost7 , 933 8 . 169 3, 793 2,-68F-Expected return on plan assets (7, 858) (7, 933) (3, 957 H3;3+2-) Amortization
of prior service eestd37-cost180 137 117 H4-Amortization of net actuarial lesses468-losses1 , 080 468 1, 201 45-968-Net periodic
benefit cost $ 1, 835 $ 1,299 § 1, 994 $2,-544-In accordance with applicable accounting standards, the service cost component of net
periodic benefit costs is presented within operating income in the consolidated statements of operations, while all other components
of net periodic benefit costs are presented within other expense, net, in the consolidated statements of operations. During 2623-2024 ,
other comprehensive loss was impacted by a total net loss of approximately $ 5. 7 million (net of $ 1. 7 million of tax), comprised
of actuarial loss of approx1mately $6.5 mllllon (net of $ 2 0 million of tax) and amortlzatlon of loss of $0.8 mllllon (net of $
0 . 3 million {n A 55 aHe 4 PPttt y—5—6- 8
amerﬁz&&erreﬂess—e%&@%—m*ﬁte&énet—ef—&@—}mﬁmn—of tax) Flscal Year %92—3%92—2%92—1—Weigh’fed--—-- 202420232022Welghted
average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost: Discount rated-rate3 .9 % 4 . 1 % 1. 4 %-6-9-% Expected return on
plan assets4. 6 % 4. 6 % 3. 0 9%5+-5-% Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations: Discount rate4. 7 % 4
1 % 4. 4 %34—6-% The investment objectives of the foreign defined benefit plans are to maximize the return on the investments to
ensure that the assets are sufficient to exceed minimum funding requirements, and to achieve a favorable return against performance
expectations based on historical and projected rates of return over the short term. The goal is to optimize the long- term return on plan
assets at a moderate level of risk, by balancing higher- returning assets, such as equity securities, with less volatile assets, such as
fixed income securities. The assets are managed by professional investment firms and performance is evaluated periodically against
specific benchmarks. The plans’ net assets did not include the Company’ s own stock at December 29, 2024 or December 31 ;2023
erFantary—+-, 2023. Dutch Plan Assets and Indexation Benefit As is common in Dutch pension plans, the Dutch Plan includes a
provision for discretionary benefit increases termed “ indexation. ” The indexation benefit is meant to adjust pension benefits for
cost- of- living increases, similar to U. S. consumer price index- based cost- of- living adjustments for U. S. retirement plans. The
indexation benefit is not guaranteed, and is only provided for and paid out if sufficient assets are available due to favorable asset
returns. Both the vested benefit amounts as well as amounts related to the discretionary indexation benefits under the Dutch Plan are
paid pursuant to an insurance contract with a private insurer (the “ Contract ”’). The Dutch Plan itself is financed by investment assets
held within the Contract. Prior to December 31, 2019, the Contract guaranteed payment of vested benefits, regardless of whether
Dutch Plan assets held through the Contract were ultimately sufficient to pay vested amounts, and also provided for payment of the
indexation amount on a contingent basis if the actual return on Dutch Plan assets were sufficient to pay it. This type of insurance
arrangement is common in The Netherlands, although not necessarily common in other jurisdictions. After the Dutch Plan
curtailment on December 31, 2019, any shortfall in plan assets to pay vested benefits will be funded by the Company. The assets
under the Dutch Plan, including any indexation benefit, are identified as level 3 assets under the fair value hierarchy. Under the
express terms of the Contract, contract value is the greater of (i) the value of the discounted vested benefits of the Dutch Plan and (ii)
the fair value of the underlying investment assets held by the insurance company under the Contract. As between those two values,
the former was the greater for 2024 and 2023 ard-2622-. Because the Company will fund the cost to guarantee vested benefits, the
Company has recorded a provision, which reduces the Dutch Plan assets, that consists of the net present value of the expected future
guarantee payments due to the insurance company pursuant to the Company’ s guarantee. As explained above, the Contract also will




pay the indexation benefit if sufficient assets are available, which the Company believes not to be probable as of the end of 2623
2024 based on recent returns. The indexation benefit for 2024 and 2023 and-2022-is not significant. The Company’ s actual weighted
average asset allocations for 2024 and 2023 and2022-, and the targeted asset allocation for 2824-2025 , of the foreign defined benefit
plans by asset category, are as follows: Fiscal Year 202426232622Asset---- 202520242023 Asset CategoryTarget
AllocationPercentage of Plan Assets at Year EndDebt EndEquityseenrities—%———%—%—%Bebtand debt securities65 %
— 70 % 58 % 59 %-53-% Short- term investments — % — 2 % 9 % 8 %13-% Other investments30 % — 35 % 33 % 34-33 % 100
% 100 % 100 % The following table sets forth by level within the fair value hierarchy the foreign defined benefit plans’ assets at fair
value, as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 | 72023-andJanuary+, 2023. The nora plan is currently unfunded. As required by
accounting standards, assets are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement. As noted above, the Dutch Plan assets as represented by the insurance contract are classified as a level 3 asset and
included in the “ Other ” asset category. Pension Plan Assets by Category as of December 3429 , 2623-2024 Dutch PlanUK
PlanTotal (in thousands) Level 1 $ — § 16, 232-182 $ 16, 232-182 Level 2 — 9290 , 260-92-330 90 , 260-330 Level 365-358 . 690
25-823 15, 226-96-818 74 , 916-641 Total § 65:-690-$133,-658— 58 $199-, 348-823 § 122, 330 $ 181, 153 Pension Plan Assets by
Category as of Jansary+December 31 , 2023 Dutch PlanUK PlanTotal (in thousands) Level 1 $ — $ 44-16 , 335-232 $ 44-16 , 335
232 Level 2 —53-92 . 286-53-200 92 , 286-200 Level 362-365 ., +76-27-690 25 , 694-89-226 90 , 864-916 Total $ 62-65 , +76-690 $
125-133 , 315658 § 187-199 , 485-348 The tables below detail the foreign defined benefit plans’ assets by asset allocation and fair
value hierarchy: End of Fiscal Year 2024Asset CategoryLevel 1Level 2Level 3 (in thousands) Debt and debt securities $ — $ 90,
330 $ 14, 950 Short- term investments (1) 16, 182 — — Other investments (2) — — 59, 691 $ 16, 182 $ 90, 330 $ 74, 641 End
of Fiscal Year 2023 Asset CategoryLevel 1Level 2Level 3 (in thousands) Debt and debt securities $ — $ 92, 200 § 24, 325 Short-
term investments (1) 16, 232 — — Other mvestments (2) —— 66 591 $ 6 232 $ 92, 200 $ 90, 916 End—e-ﬁFrsaa-l—\‘eaﬁG%%sset—

7—24—9fher—m¥estmeﬂfs-(—29—63—9864$44—33§—$53—286—$—89—864{1) Short term mvestments are generally invested in

interest- bearing accounts. (2) Other investments are comprised of insurance contracts. Assets identified as level 2 above pertain to
corporate bonds and other debt securities. The fair values of these assets are calculated based on quoted market prices for similar
assets. With the exception of the Dutch Plan assets as discussed above, the assets identified as level 3 above in 2024 and 2023 and
2022-relate to insured annuities and direct lending assets held by the UK Plan. The fair value of these assets was calculated using the
present value of the future cash flows due under the insurance annuities, and for the direct lending assets the value is based on the
asset value from the latest available valuation with adjustments for any drawdowns and distribution payments made between the
valuation date and the reporting date. The range of discount rates used in the fair value calculation of level 3 assets held by the Dutch
Plan and the UK Plan were 3. 50 % to 5. 35 % for 2024, and 3. 30 % to 4. 50 % for 2023 yand3-70-%to-4—75%for2622-. The
weighted average discount rates were 3. 53 % and 3. 32 % and3-72%for 2024 and 2023 and-2022-, respectively. These amounts
are weighted based on the fair value of level 3 plan assets subject to fluctuations in the discount rate. Any changes in these variables
will impact the fair value of level 3 assets. The table below indicates the change in value related to these level 3 assets during 2024
and 2023 and2622-: Fiscal Year 26232022-20242023 (in thousands) Balance of level 3 assets, beginning of year $ 90,916 $ 89, 864
$424126-Actual return on plan assets (1) (2, 463) 3, 429 245968 -Purchases, sales and settlements, net ( 10, 138) (5, 734 3389
Assets-transferred-fremtevel 3—FH0-) Currency translation adjustment3— adjustment (3, 674) 3 , 357 8;-973)-Balance of level 3
assets, end of year $ 74, 641 $ 90, 916 $89-864~(1) Includes $ (2. 1) million and $ 2. 7 million &nd—$—(—2—2—2—)—mr1-heﬂ—f0r 2024 and
2023 and2022-, respectively, of unrealized (losses) / gains Adessesyrecognized during the period in other comprehensive tneeme€
loss ¥-for assets held at year end. During 2024-2025 , the Company expects to contribute $ 2. 74 million to the foreign defined
benefit plans. It is anticipated that future benefit payments for the foreign defined benefit plans will be as follows: Fiscal
YearExpected Payments (in thousands) 2024-$H;4452025H-- 2025 $ 10 , 244-551 262644202610 , 366-672 262744-202710 ,
484-775 202811, 782041 2029-202911 , 242 2030 - 203359-203456 , 866-744 Domestic Defined Benefit Plan The Company
maintains a domestic nonqualified salary continuation plan (“ SCP ), which is designed to induce selected officers of the Company
to remain in the employ of the Company by providing them with retirement, disability and death benefits in addition to those which
they may receive under the Company’ s other retirement plans and benefit programs. The SCP entitles participants to: (i) retirement
benefits upon normal retirement at age 65 (or early retirement as early as age 55) after completing at least 15 years of service with the
Company (unless otherwise provided in the SCP), payable for the remainder of their lives (or, if elected by a participant, a reduced
benefit is payable for the remainder of the participant’ s life and any surviving spouse’ s life) and in no event less than 10 years under
the death benefit feature; (ii) disability benefits payable for the period of any total disability; and (iii) death benefits payable to the
designated beneficiary of the participant for a period of up to 10 years. Benefits are determined according to one of three formulas
contained in the SCP, and the SCP is administered by the Compensation Committee of the Company’ s Board of Directors, which has
full discretion in choosing participants and the benefit formula applicable to each. The Company’ s obligations under the SCP are
currently unfunded (although the Company uses insurance instruments to hedge its exposure thereunder). The Company is required
to contribute the present value of its obligations thereunder to an irrevocable grantor trust in the event of a change in control as
defined in the SCP. The Company uses a year- end measurement date for the domestic SCP. The tables presented below set forth the
required disclosures in accordance with applicable accounting standards, and amounts recognized in the consolidated financial
statements related to the domestic SCP. There is no service cost component in the change in benefit obligation in 2024 and 2023 and
2022-as there are no longer any participants accruing benefits in the plan. Fiscal Year 20232622-20242023 (in thousands) Change in
benefit obligation: Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 22, 659 $ 22, 731 $-30;-053-Interest costl, 065 1, 134 FH-Benefits paid (1,
873-872 ) (1, 873) Actuarial loss (gain) (787) 667 €6;2208)-Benefit obligation, end of year § 21, 065 $ 22, 659 $22,734+-The amounts
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows: End of Fiscal Year 20232622-20242023 (in thousands) Current
liabilities $ 1, 873 § 1, 873 Non- current hiabilities26-liabilities19 , 192 20 , 786 26;:-858-Total benefit obligation $ 21, 065 $ 22, 659
$22,73+-The components of the amounts in accumulated other comprehensive loss, after tax, are as follows: Fiscal Year 20232022
20242023 (in thousands) Unrecognized actuarial loss § 3,428 § 4, 098 $3;-8++The accumulated benefit obligation related to the
SCP was $ 21. 1 million at December 29, 2024, and $ 22. 7 million at as-efbeth-December 31 ;- 2023-andFanuary—+-, 2023. The




SCP is currently unfunded; as such, the benefit obligations disclosed are also the benefit obligations in excess of the plan assets. The
Company uses insurance instruments to help limit its exposure under the SCP. Fiscal Year 202326222624+-202420232022 (in
thousands, except for assumptions) Assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost: Discount fateS-rate4 . 90 % S . 20 % 2
65 %2—45-% Assumptions used to determine benefit obligations: Discount rated-rate5 . 45 % 4 . 90 % 5. 20 %62-65-% Components
of net periodic benefit cost: Interest cost $ 1, 065 $ 1, 134 § 771 $F06-Amertizations}95—--- Amortization of actuarial losses239
195 557 #43-Net periodic benefit cost $ 1,304 $ 1, 329 § 1, 328 $45449-In accordance with applicable accounting standards, all
components of net periodic benefit cost associated with the SCP are presented within other expense, net, in the consolidated
statements of operations. The change in other comprehensive loss during 2023-2024 related to the SCP as a result of plan activity was
a net gain of approximately $ 0. 7 million (net of $ 0. 3 million of tax), primarily comprised of a net gain during the period of $
0. 6 million (net of $ 0. 2 mllllon of tax) and amortlzatlon of loss e#&ppfea&mafe}y%—er%eﬂ—fﬂet—of $ 0 1 mll ion (ef—taeﬁ—
primariiy-eomprised-ofanct toss-durin ton-fretefS-0—mihonott A
million fretef$-6—Fmithen-of tax). Dulmg 2—92—3—2024 lhg Company contributed $ 1. 9 mllllon in lhc 101m ol dll(,(,l bcnc it
payments for its domestic SCP. It is anticipated that future benefit payments for the SCP will be as follows: Fiscal YearExpected
Payments (in thousands) 2024-2025 $ 1 8732025+ 873 20261, 873 20271, 873 20281, 85+-873 2629-20291 , 838 2030 - 20338
20348 , 670-601 NOTE 20 — SEGMENT INFORMATION The Company determines that an operating segment exists if a component
(1) engages in business activities from which it earns revenues and incurs expenses, (ii) has operating results that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (“ CODM ”) and (iii) has discrete financial information. Additionally, accounting
standards require the utilization of a “ management approach ” to report the financial results of operating segments, which is based on
information used by the CODM to assess performance and make operating and resource allocation decisions. The Company
determined that it has two operating segments organized by geographical area — namely (a) Americas (“ AMS ) and (b) Europe,
Africa, Asia and Australia (collectively “ EAAA 7). The AMS operating segment includes the United States, Canada and Latin
America geographic areas. Pursuant to the management approach discussed above, the Company’ s CODM, our chief executive
officer, evaluates performance at the AMS and EAAA operating segment levels and makes operating and resource allocation
decisions based on segment adjusted-operating income (“ AOI ") -whieh-. The CODM uses AOI to evaluate segment operating
results compared to expectations. AOI is also used by the CODM to develop variable compensation targets and make capital
spend decisions. AOI includes allocations of corporate selling, general and administrative expenses —A©+and global support as
discussed below and excludes : nora purchase accounting amortization; Thailand plant closure inventory write- down; Cyber Event
impact; goodwill and intangible asset impairment charges; and restructuring, asset impairment, severance, and other, net.
Intersegment revenues for 2024, 2023 ;and 2022 and2624-were $ 91. 1 million, $ 82. 8 million yand $ 75. 5 mithenand-$78—+
million, respectively. Intersegment revenues are eliminated from net sales presented below since these amounts are not included in
the information provided to the CODM. The Company has determined that it has two reportable segments — AMS and EAAA, as
each operating segment meets the quantitative thresholds defined in the accounting guidance. During fiscal year 2024, the
Company implemented a cost center realignment initiative to centralize certain global / shared functions. During 2024, SG &
A expenses for these global support functions were allocated to AOI for each reportable segment consistent with the
allocation methodology used to allocate corporate overhead in prior periods. Prior year AOI amounts below were not recast
as there was no material impact to the measure of segment profit for each reportable segment. There were no changes to the
composition of the Company’ s operating or reportable segments. The following table outlines information by reportable
segment including net sales, significant segment expenses, and AOIL. The table also includes a reconciliation to income before
taxes for fiscal years 2024, 2023, and 2022. Fiscal
Year202420232022AMSEAAATOTALAMSEAAATOTALAMSEAAATOTAL (in thousands) Net sales $ 800, 811 $ 514, 847
$1,315,658 $ 736,955 $ 524,543 $ 1,261, 498 $ 753, 740 $ 544,179 $ 1, 297, 919 Less: significant segment expenses (1)
Adjusted cost of sales (2) 494, 185 333, 353 458, 708 356, 591 473, 761 374, 106 Adjusted selling, general, & administrative
expenses (3) 200, 032 146, 691 190, 458 139, 344 177, 609 140, 015 Scgment AOI106, 594 34, 803 141, 397 87, 789 28, 608 116,
397 102, 370 30, 058 132, 428 Reconciliation of AOI to income before taxesRestructuring, severance, asset impairment and
other, net2, 530 5, 631 8, 189 Purchasing accounting amortization5, 172 5, 172 5, 038 Cyber Event impact (711) 1, 072 5, 093
Goodwill & intangible asset impairment — — 36, 180 Thailand plant inventory write down — — 2, 530 Interest expense23,
205 31, 787 29, 929 Other (income) expense, net (2, 353) 9, 081 3, 552 Income before taxes $ 113,554 § 63, 654 $ 41, 917 (1)
Significant segment expense categories and amounts align with segment level information that is regularly provided to the
CODM, included in the measure of segment profit, and considered to be significant. Amounts include allocation of corporate
overhead and global support costs. Intersegment expenses are excluded. (2) Adjusted cost of sales excludes purchase
accounting amortization, the Cyber Event impact, and Thailand plant inventory write down. (3) Adjusted selling, general,
and administrative expenses exclude the cyber event impact and restructuring, asset impairment, severance, and other, net.
Segment depreciation and amortization for 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard20624-is presented in the table below: Fiscal
¥e&r—292-3%922%92—1—---- Year202420232022 (in th()uscmds) Me%%&%%%@%%é—%%%‘%‘%
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698%9—958%—7’%68—Depleuat10n and ammtlzdtlonAMS $ 17 804 $ 17 989 $ 16, 827 $—1—7—963—E14u%A—2—2—EAAA21 52922, 788
23, 510 28;382-Total depreciation and amortization $ 39, 333 $ 40, 774 $ 40, 337 $46;345-A reconciliation of the Company’ s total
operating segment assets to the corresponding consolidated amounts follows: End of Fiscal ¥ear20232022-Year20242023 (in
thousands) AssetsAMS $ 644, 085 $ 627, 782 EAAAS87 $-58%-, HO-EAAA630-639 630 , 939 652,-924-Total segment assets1, 231,
724 1, 258, 721 H4—1—93—1—(01pordtu assets-l-@S—assetslll 761 108 673 -1—1-9—49§—E 1m11mt10ns ( 172 669)( 137, 299 )—685—92—3—)




9—1—4—$—3—7—268—The Company has a large and diverse customer base Whlch includes numerous customers located in forelgn countries.
No single unaffiliated customer accounted for more than 10 % of total sales in any year during the past three years. Sales to
customers in foreign markets in 2024, 2023 ;-and 2022 ard-2024-were approximately 43 %, 46 % sand 47 %-and-50-%, respectively,
of total net sales. These sales were primarily to customers in Europe, Canada, Asia, Australia and Latin America. Net sales and long-
lived assets for the United States and other significant countries (that individually represent 10 % or greater of consolidated totals for
each year presented) are as follows: Fiscal YearNet Sales to Unaffiliated Customers (1) 202320222024-202420232022 (in thousands)
United States $ 744,407 $ 677, 342 § 694, 299 $596;-844-Other forcign eeuntries584-countries571 , 251 584 , 156 603, 620 6035
554-Total net sales $ 1,315,658 $1, 261,498 $ 1,297, 919 $4:200,398-Fnd of Fiscal YearLong- Lived Assets (2) 20232022
20242023 (in thousands) United States $ 151, 130 $ 146, 106 $446;210-Germany66-Germany60 , 391 66 , 740 64,182
Nethertands46-Netherlands36 , 350 40 , 455 42;-422-Other foreign eeuntries-countries34 , 503 33-37, 839 45;4+62-Total long- lived
assets $ 282,374 $ 291, 140 $297-976+(1) Revenue attributed to geographic areas is based on the location of the customer. (2)
Long- lived assets attributed to geographic areas are based on the physical location of the asset. 2024 includes $ 3. 1 million and $ 5.
0 million of leased equipment, net of accumulated amortization, in the United States and foreign countries, respectively. 2023
mcludes $2.2 mllhon and $ 5 0 1n11110n of leased equlpment net of accumulated amortlzatron in the United States and forergn

&S—G—f—t-l‘te-eﬁd-ef—t-h&t—ﬁsea-l—yea-r— NOTE 21 - ITEMS RECLASSIFIED FROM ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS Amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive loss (“ AGEFAOCL "), before tax, to the consolidated
statements of operations for the fiscal years 2024, 2023 -and 2022 and-202+, are reflected in the table below: Fiscal YearStatement
of Operations Leeation262326222024—--- Location202420232022 (in thousands) Loss on foreign subsidiary liquidation (1) Other
(income) cxpense, net $ (2, 152) $ (6, 221) $—9$ — Interest rate swap contracts loss (2) Interest expense — (982) (2, 809 H4;-86+
) Amortization of benefit plan net actuarial losses and prior service cost (3) Other (income) expense, net ( 1, 499) ( 800) (1, 875 HZ
825-) Total loss reclassified from AOCI $ (3, 651) $ (8, 003) $ (4, 684) $44-686)-(1) Fhe-In 2024, the Company’ s foreign
subsidiary in Thailand was substantially liquidated and in 2023, the Company’ s foreign subsidiaries in Russia and Brazil were
substantially liquidated . The #+2023;-and-the-cumulative foreign currency translation losses associated with these entities were
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the respective period . Fre-There is no tax impact effor the Thailand
cumulative foreign currency translation reclassification for 2024 as it is non- deductible. The tax impact for the 2023 is
approximately-cumulative foreign currency translation reclassification was $ 1. 1 million. (2) The tax impact of the interest rate
swap reclassifications were $ 0. 2 million ;and $ 0. 8 mitHenand-$3—4-million for 2023 ;-and 2022 and-2024- respectively, related
to the discontinued cash flow hedges. See Note 10 entitled ““ Derivative Instruments  for additional information. (3) See Note 19
entitled “ Employee Benefit Plans ” for the tax impact of reclassifications related to the Company’ s defined benefit plans. Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Shareholders and Board of Directors Opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Interface, Inc. (the “ Company ) as of December 29,
2024 and December 3 | ;2623;-andJanwary+, 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, and
cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 3429 , 2023-2024 , and the related notes and financial
statements—~ statement schedule listed in the accompanying index (collectively referred to as the *“ consolidated financial statements
). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company
at December 29, 2024 and December 3 1 ;2023;andJantary—+—, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended December 3429 , 2023-2024 , in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States) (“-PCAOB *-), the Company' s internal control over financial reporting as of December 34+-29 , 2623
2024 , based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“~COSO ) and our report dated February 28-26 , 2024-2025 expressed an unqualified
opinion thereon. Basis for Opinion These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’ s management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the
U. S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. Critical
Audit Matter The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts



or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion
on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Impairment
Assessment As described in Notes 1 and 12 of the consolidated financial statements, the Company’ s consolidated goodwill balance
was § +85-99 . 4-9 million as of December 3429 , 2623-2024 , all allocated to the Americas reporting unit. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually and between annual tests if events or changes in circumstances indicate the asset might be impaired. If the
carrying value of the Americas reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value, the Company will recognize an impairment loss equal
to the amount of the excess, limited to the amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The Company estimates the fair value
of the Americas reporting unit using a combination of fair values derived from an income methodology and a market comparable
methodology. The Company’ s consolidated trademarlTrademark and tradename-trade name intangible assets were-was $ 4745 .
72 million as of December 3429 . 2623-2024 . Trademark and tradename-trade name intangible assets acquired in connection with
the nora acquisition are not subject to amortization, but are tested for impairment annually and between annual tests if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the intangible assets below their carrying
amount. The Company prepared valuations of the intangible assets using the present value of cash flows under the relief from royalty
method, which were compared to the carrying value of intangible assets to determine whether any impairment existed. We identified
the income approach valuation methodology used in the impairment evaluation of goodwill for the Americas reporting unit and the
nora tradename-trade name and trademark intangibles as a critical audit matter due to the inherent subjectivity involved in
management’ s determination of (i) forecasts of revenues and (ii) the discount rate. The audit procedures to evaluate the
reasonableness of these assumptions involved a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort, including the
involvement of individuals with specialized skill or knowledge. The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit
matter included: * Evaluating management’ s ability to accurately forecast future revenues by performing a retrospective review
comparing management’ s prior period forecasts to actual results for the same period. * Inquiring of management to understand the
process for developing the forecasts of future revenues and evaluating the consistency of the revenue forecasts used with evidence
obtained in other areas of the audit. * Testing management’ s process used to evaluate goodwill and the nora tradename-trade name
and trademark intangibles for impairment, including evaluating the reasonableness of the forecasts of future revenues by comparing
forecasts of future revenues to (1) historical results and the recent trend of revenue growth rates, (2) forecasted information included
in industry reports for the Company and its peer companies, (3) publicly available industry analyst projections, and (4) external
communications made by the Company. ¢ Utilizing our valuation specialists to assist in evaluating the reasonableness of the
Company’ s discount rate by (i) testing the source information underlying the determination of the discount rate, (ii) testing the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations; and (iii) developing a range of independent estimates and comparing those to the discount
rate selected by management. /s / BDO USA, P. C. We are uncertain as to the year we began serving consecutively as the auditor of
the Company' s financial statements; however we are aware that we have been the Company' s auditor consecutively since at least
1981. Repertofindependen Reg d-Puablie s Firm-Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting We have
audited Interface Inc S (the Company s”) 1nternal control over financial reporting as of December 34-29 , 2623-2024 , based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsorlng Organlzatlons of the
Treadway Commission (the “ COSO criteria ™). In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 34-29 , 2023-2024 , based on the COSO criteria. We also have audited, in accordance
with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Overs1ght Board (United States) (“~“PCAOB %), the consolidated balance
sheets of the Company as of December 29, 2024 and December 3 | ;2023 -andFanuary1-, 2023, the related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 3429 , 2623
2024 , and the related notes and financial statements— statement schedule listed in the accompanying index and our report dated
February 28-26 , 206242025 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. The Company’ s management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, included in the accompanying Item 9A, Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’ s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U. S.
federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB. We
conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Definition and Limitations of Internal
Control over Financial Reporting A company’ s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’ s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. Because of its inherent limitations,
internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of




compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH
ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on Form 10- K, an evaluation was
performed under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and our
principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in
Rule 13a- 15 (e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, pursuant to Rule 13a- 14 (c) under the Act. Based on that evaluation, our
principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as
of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting. There were no changes
in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Management’ s Annual Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting. The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a- 15 (f) or 15d- 15 (f) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Because
of'its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and
presentation. Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 3429 , 2623
2024 based on the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in “
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013). ”” Based on that assessment, management concluded that, as of December 34+-29 ,
2023-2024 , our internal control over financial reporting was effective based on those criteria. Our independent auditors have issued
an audit report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. This report immediately precedes Item 9 of this
Report. ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION During the three months ended December 34-29 , 2623-2024 , no director or officer (as
defined in Rule 16a- 1 (f) of the Exchange Act) of the Company adopted or terminated a “ Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement ™ or
non- Rule 10b5- 1 trading arrangement, ” as each term is defined in Item 408 of Regulation S- K. ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE
REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS PART III ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE The information contained under the captions “ Nomination and Election of
Directors, ” “ Delinquent Section 16 (a) Reports ” and *“ Meetings and Committees of the Board ” in our definitive Proxy Statement
for our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation
14A not later than 120 days after the end of our 2623-2024 fiscal year, is incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to Instruction 3
to Paragraph (b) of Item 401 of Regulation S- K, information relating to our executive officers is included in Item 1 of this Report.
We have adopted the “ Interface Code of Conduct ” (the “ Code ) which applies to all of our employees, officers and directors,
including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. The Code may be viewed on our website at www. interface. com.
Changes to the Code will be posted on our website. Any waiver of the Code for executive officers or directors may be made only by
our Board of Directors and will be disclosed to the extent required by law or Nasdaq rules on our website or in a filing on Form 8- K.
Interface has adopted insider trading policies and procedures governing the purchase, sale, and / or other dispositions of
Interface securities by directors, officers and employees that are reasonably designed to promote compliance with insider
trading laws, rules and regulations, and any listing standards applicable to Interface. ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE
COMPENSATION The information contained under the captions “ Executive Compensation, ” “ Compensation Discussion and
Analysis, ” “ Compensation Committee Report, > “ Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation, ” and * Potential
Payments upon Termination or Change in Control ” in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the
end of our 2623-2024 fiscal year, is incorporated herein by reference. ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN
BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS The information contained under
the captions “ Principal Shareholders and Management Stock Ownership ” and “ Equity Compensation Plan Information ” in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of our 2623-2024 fiscal year, is incorporated herein by
reference. For purposes of determining the aggregate market value of our voting and non- voting stock held by non- affiliates, shares
held by our directors and executive officers have been excluded. The exclusion of such shares is not intended to, and shall not,
constitute a determination as to which persons or entities may be “ affiliates ™ as that term is defined under federal securities laws.
ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE The
information contained under the captions “ Certain Relationships and Related Transactions ”” and “ Director Independence * in our
definitive Proxy Statement for our 2624-2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of our 2023-2024 fiscal year, is incorporated herein by
reference. ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES The information contained under the captions ““ Audit
and Non- Audit Fees ” and “ Policy on Audit Committee Pre- Approval of Audit and Permissible Non- Audit Services of Independent
Auditors ” in our definitive Proxy Statement for our 2024-2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of our 2623-2024 fiscal year, is incorporated
herein by reference. PART IV ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 1. Financial Statements The
following consolidated financial statements and notes thereto of Interface, Inc. and subsidiaries and related Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm are contained in Item 8 of this Report: Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Income — fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023 ;-and January 1, 2023 andJannary2,2022-.
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 29, 2024 and December 3 | %G%—aﬁd—}aﬂﬂ&w—l— 2023. Consolldatcd Statements of
Cash Flows — fiscal years ended December 29, 2024, December 31, 2023, and January 1, 2023 sand-January2;2022-. Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting F irm (BDO USA, P. C., Atlanta, Georgia,
PCAOB ID: 243) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 2.
Financial Statement Schedule The following consolidated financial statement schedule of Interface, Inc. and subsidiaries is included
as part of this Report (see the pages immediately preceding the signatures in this Report). Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying



Accounts and Reserves 3. Exhibits The following exhibits are filed or furnished with this Report: ExhibitNumberDescription of
Exhibit3. 1Restated Articles of Incorporation and accompanying Clarification Certificate (included as Exhibit 3. 1 to the Company’ s
quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 10, 2012, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference).
3. 2Bylaws, as amended and restated February 22, 2017 (included as Exhibit 3. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed
on February 27, 2017, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 4. 1Description of the Company’
s Securities (included as Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s annual report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 29, 2019,
previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 4. 2Indenture governing the Company’ s 5. 50 % Senior
Notes Due 2028, dated as of November 17, 2020 (included as Exhibit 4. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on
November 18, 2020, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 4. 3Form of 5. 50 % Senior Note
Due 2028 (included as Exhibit 4. 2 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on November 18, 2020, previously filed with
the Commission and incorporated herein by reference, and included in Exhibit 4. 2 to this Report). 10. 1Salary Continuation Plan,
dated May 7, 1982 (included as Exhibit 10. 20 to the Company’ s registration statement on Form S- 1, File No. 2- 82188, previously
filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 2Form of Salary Continuation Agreement, dated as of
January 1, 2008 (as used for Daniel T. Hendrix) (included as Exhibit 99. 5 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on
January 7, 2008, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 3Form of Restricted Stock
Agreement, as used for directors (included as Exhibit 10. 3 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 11, 2017,
previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for executive
officers (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 11, 2018, previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference); and Form of Performance Share Agreement for executive officers (included as
Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 11, 2018, previously filed with the Commission and
incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 4Interface, Inc. Executive Bonus Plan, as amended October 28, 2015 (included as Exhibit 99.
2 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on October 28, 2015, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated
herein by reference). * 10. SInterface, Inc. Nonqualified Savings Plan (as amended and restated effective January 1, 2002) (included
as Exhibit 10. 4 to the Company’ s annual report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 30, 2001, previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference); First Amendment thereto, dated as of December 20, 2002 (included as Exhibit
10. 2 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2003, previously filed with the Commission
and incorporated herein by reference); Second Amendment thereto, dated as of December 30, 2002 (included as Exhibit 10. 3 to the
Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q for the quarter ended June 29, 2003, previously filed with the Commission and
incorporated herein by reference); Third Amendment thereto, dated as of May 8, 2003 (included as Exhibit 10. 6 to the Company’ s
annual report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 28, 2003 (the “ 2003 10- K ), previously filed with the Commission and
incorporated herein by reference); and Fourth Amendment thereto, dated as of December 31, 2003 (included as Exhibit 10. 7 to the
2003 10- K, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 6Form of Indemnity Agreement of
Director (as used for directors of the Company) (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on
November 30, 2005, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 7Form of Indemnity
Agreement of Officer (as used for certain officers of the Company, including Daniel T. Hendrix, Laurel M. Hurd, David B. Foshee,
Bruce A. Hausmann, James Poppens and Nigel Stansfield) (included as Exhibit 99. 2 to the Company”’ s current report on Form 8- K
filed on November 30, 2005, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 8Interface, Inc.
Long- Term Care Insurance Plan and related Summary Plan Description (included as Exhibit 99. 2 to the Company’ s current report
on Form 8- K filed on December 20, 2005, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10.
9lInterface, Inc. Nonqualified Savings Plan II, as amended and restated effective January 1, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10. 18 to the
Company’ s annual report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 30, 2012 (the “ 2012 10- K ), previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference); First Amendment thereto, dated February 26, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10. 19 to
the 2012 10- K, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Second Amendment thereto, dated
December 9, 2009 (included as Exhibit 10. 20 to the 2012 10- K, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by
reference); Third Amendment thereto, dated April 15, 2010 (included as Exhibit 10. 21 to the 2012 10- K, previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Fourth Amendment thereto, dated August 9, 2012 (included as Exhibit 10. 22 to
the 2012 10- K, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Fifth Amendment thereto, dated
September 6, 2019 (included as Exhibit 99. 6 to the Company”’ s registration statement on Form S- 8§ filed on March 24, 2023,
previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Sixth Amendment thereto, dated March 30, 2020
(included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on March 31, 2020, previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Seventh Amendment thereto (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s
quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on August 11, 2020, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by
reference); Eighth Amendment thereto, dated November 19, 2020 (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s current report on
Form 8- K filed on November 24, 2020, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); and Ninth
Amendment thereto, dated as of December 31, 2020 (included as Exhibit 10. 9 to the Company' s annual report on Form 10- K for
the year ended January 2, 2022, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 10Second
Amended and Restated Security and Pledge Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2018, among Interface, Inc., certain subsidiaries of the
Company as obligors, and Bank of America, N. A. as Administrative Agent (included as Exhibit 10. 14 to the Company’ s annual
report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 29, 2019, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by
reference). 10. 11First Restatement Agreement, dated as of July 20, 2018, among Interface, Inc., certain subsidiaries of the Company
as borrowers, certain subsidiaries of the Company as guarantors, Bank of America, N. A. as Administrative Agent, and the other
lenders party thereto (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on July 26, 2018, previously
filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 10. 12First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated
Syndicated Facility Agreement, dated as of December 18, 2019 (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form
8- K filed on December 23, 2019, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 10. 13Second



Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Syndicated Facility Agreement dated as of July 15, 2020 (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to
the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on July 16, 2020, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by
reference). 10. 14Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Syndicated Facility Agreement, dated as of November 17,
2020 (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on November 18, 2020, previously filed with the
Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 10. 15Fourth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Syndicated Facility
Agreement dated as of December 9, 2021 (included as Exhibit 99. 2 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K / A filed on
December 21, 2021, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 10. 16Fifth Amendment to Second
Amended and Restated Syndicated Facility Agreement, dated as of October 14, 2022 (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s
current report on Form 8- K filed on October 17, 2022, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference).
10. 17Interface, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K
filed on May 28, 2020, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); Form of 2023 Restricted Share
Unit Agreement for executive officers (included as Exhibit 10. 1 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 9,
2023, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference); and Form of 2023 Performance Share Agreement
for executive officers (included as Exhibit 10. 2 to the Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 9, 2023, previously
filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 18Contract of Employment of Nigel Stansfield dated August
15, 2022 (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on August 19, 2022, previously filed with
the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 19Form of Severance Protection and Change in Control Agreement (as
used for David B. Foshee, Bruce A. Hausmann, and James Poppens) (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on
Form 8- K / A filed on December 21, 2021, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10.
20Severance Protection and Change in Control Agreement of Laurel M. Hurd dated April 18, 2022 (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the
Company’ s current report on Form 8- K / A filed on April 21, 2022, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein
by reference). * 10. 21Severance Protection and Change in Control Agreement of Nigel Stansfield dated August 15, 2022 (included
as Exhibit 99. 2 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on August 19, 2022, previously filed with the Commission and
incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 22Consent Letter to Second Amended and Restated Syndicated Facility Agreement, dated as
of November 23, 2023 (included as Exhibit 10 . 24Subsidiartesef22 to the Company * s annual report on Form 10- K for the
year ended December 31, 2023, filed on February 28, 2024, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by
reference) . 23Consent-10. 23Amended and Restated Interface, Inc. 2020 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan, effective as of May
13, 2024 (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on May 15, 2024, previously filed
with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 10. 24Nigel Stansfield Tax Equalization Agreement, dated as
of October 15, 2024 (included as Exhibit 99. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on October 21, 2024,
previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). * 16. 1Auditor Change Letter from BDO USA
(included as Exhibit 16. 1 to the Company’ s current report on Form 8- K filed on September 9, 2024, previously filed with
the Commission and incorporated herein by reference). 19. 1Insider Trading Policy (included as Exhibit 19. 1 to the
Company’ s quarterly report on Form 10- Q filed on May 7, 2024, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated
herein by reference). 21Subsidiaries of the Company. 23Consent of BDO USA ., P. C ., an Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm . 24Power of Attorney (see signature page of this Report). 31. 1Certification of Chief Executive Officer with
respect to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 3429 , 2623-2024 . 31. 2Certification
of Chief Financial Officer with respect to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 3+29 ,
2023-2024 . 32. 1Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of United States Code by Chief Executive Officer
with respect to the Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 3429 , 2023-2024 . 32.
2Certification Pursuant to Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of United States Code by Chief Financial Officer with respect to the
Company’ s Annual Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2024. 97Interface, Inc. Clawback Policy
(included as Exhibit 97 to the Company’ s annual report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 31, 2023 —9Hnterface-,
Inefiled on February 28, 2024, previously filed with the Commission and incorporated herein by reference . 101 Clawback
Polies101- INSXBRL Instance Document — The Instance Document does not appear in the Interactive Data Files because its XBRL
tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document. 101. SCHXBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document. 101. CALXBRL
Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 101. LABXBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document. 101.
PREXBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document. 101. DEFXBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document. 104The cover
page from this Annual Report on Form 10- K for the year ended December 3429 , 2623-2024 , formatted in Inline XBRL. *
Management contract or compensatory plan or agreement required to be filed pursuant to Item 15 (b) of this Report. ITEM 16.
FORM 10- K SUMMARY SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES COLUMN
ABALANCE, ATBEGINNINGOF YEARCOLUMN BCHARGED TOCOSTS ANDEXPENSES (A) COLUMN CCHARGED
TOOTHERACCOUNTSCOLUMN DDEDUCTIONS (DESCRIBE) (B) COLUMN E BALANCE, ATEND OF YEAR (in
thousands) Allowance for Expected Credit Losses Year ended: December 29,2024 $ 2,953 $ 1,154 § — $ 312 $ 3, 795 December
31, 2023-20233 $3-, 952 $+(527) & $472 $-2, 953 January 1, 20234, 960 (357) — 651 3, 952 January2,20226;-643(705—978
4—969—(A) Includes changes in foreign currency exchange rates. (B) Write off of bad debt and recovery of previously provided for
amounts. COLUMN ABALANCE, ATBEGINNINGOF YEARCOLUMN BCHARGED TOCOSTS ANDEXPENSES (A)
COLUMN CCHARGEDTO OTHERACCOUNTSCOLUMN DDEDUCTIONS (DESCRIBE) (B) COLUMN EBALANCE, ATEND
OF YEAR (in thousands) Warranty and Sales Allowances Reserves Year ended: December 29,2024 $ 4,302 $ 8558 —$(97) $ S,
254 December 31, 2023-20232 $2-, 091 $-3, 624 $—$-1, 413 $4, 302 January 1, 20232, 702 (41) — 570 2, 091 January2,20223;
248-366—H22-762-(B) Represents credits and costs applled against reserve and adjustments to reflect actual exposure. (All other
Schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission are
omitted because they are either not applicable or the required information is shown in the Company’ s consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto.) SIGNATURES Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. Date:



February 28-26 , 2624-2025 INTERFACE, INC. By: / s/ LAUREL M. HURD Laurel M. Hurd President and Chief Executive Officer
POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Laurel M. Hurd as attorney- in- fact, with power of substitution, for him or her in any and all capacities, to
sign any amendments to this Report on Form 10- K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorney- in- fact may do or
cause to be done by virtue hereof. Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. Signature Capacity Date
s/ LAUREL M. HURD President, Chief Executive Officer and Director February 2826 , 2024Eaurel-2025Laurel M. Hurd
(Principal Executive Officer) /s / BRUCE A. HAUSMANN Vice President and Chief Financial Officer February 28-26 , 2624Bruee
2025Bruce A. Hausmann (Principal Financial Officer) /s / ROBERT PRIDGENVice President and Chief Accounting
OfficerFebruary 28-26 , 2024Rebert-2025Robert Pridgen (Principal Accounting Officer) /s / DANIEL T. HENDRIXChairman-of
the-Board-and-DireetorFebruary- HENDRIXDirectorFebruary 28-26 , 2024Bantel-2025Daniel T. Hendrix /s / JOHN P. BURKE
Director February 28-26 , 2024ehn-2025John P. Burke /s / DWIGHT GIBSON Director February 28-26 , 2024Dwight-2025Dwight
Gibson/s/CHRISTOPHER G. KENNEDY PBireetor-Chairman of the Board February 28-26 , 2024Christepher-2025Christopher
G. Kennedy /s / JOSEPH KEOUGH Director February 2826 , 20243eseph-2025Joseph Kcough /s / CATHERINE M. KILBANE
Director February 28-26 , 2024Catherine-2025Catherine M. Kilbane /s / K. DAVID KOHLER Director February 2826 , 2024k
2025K . David Kohler /s / CATHERINE MARCUSDirectorFebruary 28-26 , 2624Catherine-2025Catherine Marcus /s / ROBERT
T. O’ BRI FN Dneum Feb1L1aly2-8—26 %9%4Rebeﬂ—2025R0bertT o’ Bllel]&eeﬁ%ﬂeﬁﬁﬁ%e%mbeﬁ%%@%—}meffaee—}ne—







W&Pfeﬂ—'&‘eeeh—l—H%&e—‘&ee—Pfeﬂdeﬂt—EXhlblt 21 SUBSIDIARIES OF INTERFACE INC Sub51d1ary (l) Jurlsdlctlon of
OrganizationFLOR, Inc. Georgia (USA) Interface Americas Holdings, LLC (2) Georgia (USA) Interface Americas, Inc. Georgia
(USA) Interface Asia- Pacific (HK) Ltd. Hong KonglInterface Aust. Holdings Pty LimitedAustralialnterface Aust. Pty
LimitedAustralialnterface Europe B. V. (3) NetherlandsInterface European Manufacturing BV (4) NetherlandsInterface Europe
Investment B. V. NetherlandsInterface Europe, Ltd. (5) England and WalesInterface Hong Kong Ltd. Hong KonglInterface
International B. V. NetherlandsInterface Leasing, Inc. Georgia (USA) Interface Massachusetts Holdings, Inc. Delaware (USA)
Interface Modular Carpet (China) Co., Ltd. Chinalnterface nora GmbHGermanyInterface Overseas Holdings, Inc. Georgia (USA)
Interface Real Estate Holdings, LLCGeorgia (USA) Interface Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singaporelnterface Yarns, Inc. Georgia (USA)
InterfaceFLOR Canada, Inc. CanadalnterfaceFLOR, LLCGeorgia (USA) InterfaceSERVICES, Inc. Georgia (USA) nora systems
GmbH (6) Germanynora systems, Inc. Delaware (USA) (1) The names of certain subsidiaries which, if considered in the aggregate as
a single subsidiary, would not constitute a *“ significant subsidiary ”, have been omitted. The names of consolidated wholly- owned
multiple subsidiaries carrying on the same line of business have been omitted where the name of the immediate parent, the line of
business, the number of omitted subsidiaries operating in the United States and the number operating in foreign countries have been
given. (2) Interface Americas Holdings, LLC is the parent of five direct subsidiaries organized and operating in the United States, of
which three are in the floorcovering products / services business (FLOR, Inc., Interface Americas, Inc. and InterfaceFLOR, LLC).
Interface Americas Holdings, LLC is also the parent of one direct subsidiary organized in Georgia (Interface Real Estate Holdings,
LLC) and one direct subsidiary organized and operating outside of the United States in the floorcovering products / services business.
(3) Interface Europe B. V. is the parent of four direct subsidiaries organized and operating outside of the United States (including
Interface Europe Investment B. V., Interface European Manufacturing B. V., Interface Asia- Pacific (HK) Ltd. and Interface
Singapore Pte. Ltd.) in the floorcovering products / services business. (4) Interface European Manufacturing B. V. is the parent of
seven direct subsidiaries organized and operating in the Netherlands, and ten direct subsidiaries organized and operating in other
countries outside of the United States, in the floorcovering products / services business. (5) Interface Europe, Ltd. is the parent of two
direct subsidiaries organized and operating in England and Wales, and one direct subsidiary organized and operating in Ireland, in the
floorcovering products / services business. (6) nora systems GmbH is the parent of four direct subsidiaries organized and operating
outside of the United States in the floorcovering products / services business. Exhibit23-Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S- 8 (No. 333- 38677;
No. 333- 120813; No. 333- 248451; and-No. 333- 270822 and Ne. 333- 279932 ) of Interface, Inc. (the Company) of our reports
dated February 28-26 , 2624-2025 | relatmg to the consolidated financial statements and finanetal-statement-sehedutes— schedule ,
and the effectiveness of the Company” s internal control over financial reporting, which appear in the-this Annual Report on Form
10- K. Exhibit 24 The signature page of Interface, Inc’ s Report on Form 10- K for the fiscal year ended December 3+-29 , 2023
2024 includes the power of attorney given by each person whose signature appears on the Report on Form 10- K, which power of
attorney constitutes and appoints Laurel M. Hurd as attorney- in- fact, with power of substitution, for him or her in any and all
capacities, to sign any amendments to the Report on Form 10- K, and to file the same, with the exhibits thereto, and other documents
in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Exhibit 31. 1 CERTIFICATION I, Laurel M. Hurd, certify
that: 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10- K of Interface, Inc.; 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain
any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 3. Based on
my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 4. The
registrant’ s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a- 15 (e) and 15d- 15 (e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a- 15 (f) and 15d- 15 (f)) for the registrant and have: (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which
this report is being prepared; (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial



reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles; (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’ s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based
on such evaluation; and (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’ s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’ s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting; and 5.
The registrant’ s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’ s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’ s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions): (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’ s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’ s internal control over financial reporting. Date: February 28-26 , 2624-202S / s / Laurel M.
HurdLaurel M. HurdChief Executive Officer Exhibit 31. 2 I, Bruce A. Hausmann, certify that: Date: February 28-26 , 2024-2025 / s /
Bruce A. Hausmann Bruce A. Hausmann Chief Financial Officer Exhibit 32. 1 CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U. S. C.
SECTION 1350 I, Laurel M. Hurd, Chief Executive Officer of Interface, Inc. (the “ Company ), certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. §
1350 as adopted by § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the Annual Report on Form 10- K of the Company for the
year ended December 34-29 , 2623-2024 (the “ Report ) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13 (a) or 15 (d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company. Exhibit 32. 2 I, Bruce A. Hausmann, Chief Financial Officer of Interface, Inc.
(the “ Company ”), certify, pursuant to 18 U. S. C. § 1350 as adopted by § 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Act of 2002, that: Date:
February 28-26 , 2624-2025 / s / Bruce A. Hausmann Bruce A. Hausmann Chief Financial Officer Fhis-ClawbaekPeohey{this
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